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Late Shri. Pralhad P Chhabria and Finolex
ino  gan a  a tra ing o ration tart   t  at  ri. ra a  ar ra  a ria in 

n  in t  ar  1 .   ino  ran  a  orn ro  t o or   n  an  i . 
t a  a i  traig t or ar  na  i  oin i nt  t r t  i  r ona it . 
o a  or  t an i  a  on  it ontin  to  a n a nta  attri t  o  t  o an .
ra a  ar ra  a ria  r rr  to a   a  orn in ara i on 1  ar  1  into 

a a t  in  a i .  a i   nt a  ti  in i  nati  to n o  i ar r  
t  o  or i   arri  to t  n  o  i  a . o r  n  a  t t  

ar  o  i  at r i  n  an  t  o ng o  i  a  to ta  a ra ati  t rn. 
it in a  ort ont  t  a i  r  t nni .  a  or  to a  oo  

an  on nt  i  ar r  a   a  to ta   a ri  o  nia  o  in or r to 
 ro i  or t  a i . 

n 1  at t  ag  o  t n   a  to n .  i  it  o  r ati  an  or  
in t ir o  an  in  in or r to arn i  .

o ar  at r  t  nt  o o ing artition a  i  ot r an  rot r  to  ro  
t ir o  in in  an  oin i  in n . n or r to r tor  t  ignit  an  in n n  
o  t  a i   a  or  to tart tra ing a  t  i t an  to arn on  t i  

an  ot r o ng i r n ro  t  i a  a i i  o a  t t ir o  t  
handed. 

e oon egan trading in e e tri a  it he . n tho e da  ne had no e i  e e tri a  
ar et a  i  the a e toda . e got ed to eing ignored  the ho ee er  earning 

to ait iet  o t ide nti  he a  a e  good a e  ta ing a e  e ore entering and 
ho ing hi  er handi e. e ne er too  no  to indi ate o ete re a  and a a  

ret rned to tr  again another da  earning ho  to a e the to er ee  i ortant itho t 
de a ing hi e  and ne er a o ing the ee ing o  re e tion to in en e hi  ne t a tion. 

 the ar et de e o ed in ne   tho ght a o t entering the e d o  an a t ring. i  
o nger rother  hri. i han  hha ria  oined hi . 

 the end o  1  o  hi ted to an a t ring and ino e  egan introd ing inno ati e 
and rati e rod t . ne o  the o t i ortant a  that o  a to o i e ire. er the 
ear  the  a to a e e a e one o  the o an  o t e  rod t .

 1   a e a ro  an ai ing o an  a er  he ei ed the o ort nit  to  
it   the end o  1  the o an  na e a  hanged to ino e  a e  td.

 the 1  rogre ed  the ino e  ine  and rand ere e  e ta i hed and the 
o an  inten i ed it  ore ine  hi e ontin ing to di er i  into ne  rod t  and 

te hno ogie .  1 1  ino e  nd trie  a  regi tered ith thirteen ine  o   i e  
a ong ith i e tting  o  a  t e . 

 the ine  ontin ed to gro   rea i ed that he needed to ti ate the ino e  
dea er net or . e er ona  e e ted di tri tor . he e dea er  and the one  that 
o o ed are the i ar  o  ino e  trength  to thi  da . i  er ona  intera tion ith the  
reated a ee ing o  e onging and eing a art o  the ino e  a i .
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ino e  introd ed an  inno ati e o tion  h a  e ed te e o  a e  and dri  
irrigation.  
n 1 2  it a  ti e to ta e ino e  a e  to the i  and the re t i  hi tor  an 

o er he ing re on e ith the i e o er ri ed i t o r ti e .  hha ria a  
a ointed hair an and  o  the o an . 

hro gh a  the ear  o  tr gg e ahead   onitored the date  on hi h the oan 
re a ent  ere d e  ne er o er te ing on e en a ing e o a ion. hi  a  not done 
to a e e tra intere t or ena t  t ith the ing e inded o  o  i ding redi i it . t 

a  the o an  o id redit hi tor  hi h ga e it one o  it  o t i ortant intangi e 
a et  and ater e a e the o ndation or it  e onentia  gro th.

 1   on ra a h oined the ine  o o ed   on  i a  and ee a  
in 1 1. or near  a de ade  it had een  drea  to an a t re  re in.  et  
an interna  tea  and a ong ith dhe  a er an te hno og  on tr tion o an  
a ro e  i en e a  a ired ro  oe h t  to et  ino e  etro he i a  ant 
in atnagiri in ahara htra on the e t oa t o  ndia.

eing on io  o  the i ortan e o  ed ation   initiated the on tr tion o  an 
ngineering and anage ent o ege  the ino e  anage ent ade  at atnagiri.

n hi  a t e  ear  he had ithdra n ro  a ti e ine  and de oted hi e  to 
hi anthro  thro gh hi  a i  regi tered odie   adha  o ndation and o e 
o ndation and e ear h entre  a ti e in the e d  o  edi a  a i tan e  ed ation and 
o ia  e are. 
here ere t o thing  that ga e  hha ria the on den e to et and a hie e 

in rea ing  a itio  goa . ne a  ino e  on i tent tra  re ord o  e  and hi  
ear er e tion o  the o ort nitie  e ore hi . he other a  hi  dee  irit a  nat re. 

n hi  id ortie  he et a i a  a a and a  a e ted a  a di i e. hro gh the 
di t ine  ti e  and er ona  tragedie  he a ed  hi  r  a  a on tant ort.
oda   hoo  tea h their t dent  on e t  h a  a  the a  and o the tra 
i e . or  hha ria  ho had no  degree  the e ere i e re e t   hi h he 

i ed hi  i e.   hi  ea th and tat  gre  he aintained a i e dai  ro tine  a ing 
and ee ing ear  a oiding o ia  entertain ent  and intera ting ith other  ith ar th 
and h i it  regard e  o  their o ition.  nti  t a e  ee  e ore he died on  a  
2 1  he ontin ed to end ha  o  e er  or ing da  at hi  o e. ter hi  ino e  i  
ontin e to n rt re the a e te  that or  the greate t art o  hi  ega  to er 
are  trategi  gro th  taina i it  and  riti a  in toda  or d o  ra id te hno ogi a  
hange  on tant inno ation.

(This has been compiled from There’s No Such Thing as a Self Made Man, PP Chhabria’s 
biography written by Saaz Aggarwal in 2008)
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inole  ndustries i ited

Chairman’s Message

 
he strong oundations laid out y y ather ate hri ralhad . Chha ria and our highly ethical 

and value ased a roach towards usiness have hel ed us to eco e one o  ndia s ost ad ired 
co anies. s we continue on the ath o  rogress  y ather s hiloso hy ach orning we are 
orn again to wor  hard and live another eauti ul ourney  will always guide us along the way.
ur nancial er or ance during the year under review has een ro ust. he ro t a ter ta  has 

gone u  ro  ` 47.8 crores to ` 2 .6 crores and we have reduced de t y ore than ` 400 crores 
during the year under review through internal generation.

his year  or the rst ti e  your Co any has consolidated the nancial results o  our  associate 
co any vi . inole  lasson ndustries rivate  i ited in accordance with the rovisions o  the 
Co anies ct.

our Co any continues to aintain its nu er one osition in the C i es industry. Being 
ndia s leading C i es and ttings anu acturer with a high rand recall and a strong distri ution 
reach  your Co any is well ositioned to gain ro  various initiatives o  the overn ent o  
ndia  towards develo ent o  in rastructure in irrigation and housing. e are on trac  in ter s o  
e anding our scale o  o erations not only y increasing roduction ca acity  ut also y setting u  
additional warehouses.

our Co any has een conducting C  activities or any years in association with u ul 
adhav oundation  our C  artner. e have een engaging not only with the co unities 

living around our lants  ut also with the u lic at large  through various initiatives in health care  
education  water conservation and sustaina ility.  a  ha y to share with you that your Co any 
has recently een honoured with the Bluedart lo al C  cellence and eadershi  ward  or 

u ort  rove ent in the uality o  ducation  and the ndia C  ward or Best nnovative 
C  ractices in ducation . hese awards were won or our ro ect  u ul adhav idyalaya  
an nglish ediu  school in ola  atnagiri  roviding uality education to over 00 students.

r. aura h . hanor ar  anaging irector is to retire on 0th ove er  2016 a ter  years o  
dedication to the Co any. he Board and  a reciate r. hanor ar s loyalty and co it ent to 
our Co any. urther ore  the ro osal to a oint r. an ay . ath  irector erations  as 

anaging irector with e ect ro  1st ece er  2016 has een reco ended to the e ers. 
he Board oins e in e ressing dee  a reciation to all our e loyees and the anage ent or 

their consistent hard wor  and valued contri ution during the year.

With warm regards,
Prakash P. Chhabria 
Executive Chairman
DIN 00016017
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Forming part o  the Report o  the irectors or the year ended 31st arch, 2016

Industry structure, overview and developments
Indian Economy
India emerged as the world s astest-growing ma or economy in F 2016 ahead o  China. India s 

ross omestic roduct  is estimated to have grown at 7.5  in F  2015-16 as per the 
reports.

he improvement in India s economic undamentals has accelerated in the year 2015-16 with the 
com ined impact o  strong government re orms, the RBI s in ation ocus, supported y enign 
glo al commodity prices.

u lic investment has pic ed up with a aster clearance o  ey pro ects  etter in rastructure and 
greater ease o  doing usiness are promoting private investment, and more generous ene ts 
and wages or pu lic employees are supporting private consumption.

According to a report released in eptem er 2015, India could grow at a potential 8  on average 
rom scal 2016 to 2020 powered y greater access to an ing, technology adoption, ur anisation 
and other structural re orms.

Agriculture Sector
he agriculture sector is the ac one o  the Indian economy. ver 58  o  rural households 

depend on agriculture as their principal means o  livelihood. Agriculture, along with sheries and 
orestry, is one o  the largest contri utors to the ross omestic roduct .

At 157.35 million hectares, India holds the second largest agricultural land in the world. nly 46  
o  the land is irrigated while 54  is still dependant on the monsoon. his is a huge opportunity the 
company is trying to capitalise on.

A ter two consecutive years o  drought, the monsoon is estimated to e normal or F 16-17. he 
agriculture sector is estimated to grow at 6  in the case o  a normal monsoon, as per NI I Ayog.

he 2016-17 udget witnessed a slew o  measures rought in to improve agriculture and increase 
armers  wel are. ne such proposal was or 2.95 million hectares o  land to e rought under 
irrigation. his would generate demand or C pipes and ttings, which would e o  great ene t 
to your company.

PVC Resin
Fundamentally, C is a synthetic resin made rom the polymeri ation o  vinyl chloride. C is a 
product which is derived at the end o  the value chain re  g 1  that egins with industrial grade 
salt NaCl . Caustic and chlorine are produced rom the salt. Chlorine and ethylene gives E C, 
which is used to produce C . C is derived rom C .
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Global Scenario
In the last century, the industry grew at a su stantial rate coupled with an increase in production 
capacity rom a ew thousand tons in the 1930s to 50 mn tons today.

Basic petrochemical Industry  

Naphtha Ethylene Ethylene 

VCM PVC 
(Electrolysis) 

Industrial 
grade salt 

Caustic 
Soda 

Chlorine Chlorine PVC Industry 

Soda Industry 
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rowth in demand is expected to e concentrated in developing countries in Asia, A rica and Latin 
America. he per capita consumption in India o  2 g is low compared to 11.8 g per capita in the 

 and 10.3 g per capita in China re  to gure 3 . he orecasts or the C industry are right. 
he glo al mar et, currently at  56 illion, is expected to reach a revenue o  65 illion in 

2019, with the average annual demand expected to increase y 3.9 .

he glo al consumption o  C in 2014 was estimated at 40 million tons. he region-wise rea -
up is given elow. 
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Indian Scenario
he C industry in India is valued at over Rs. 20,000 crores with ve ma or producers and 

over 6,000 processors, employing tens o  thousands o  people, ma ing consumer and industrial 
products.
Finolex Industries Ltd is one o  the largest C resin producer in India with a capacity o  272,000 

A.
C is the third largest plastic in production and consumption glo ally. A ey eature o  C is 

that it can e com ined with additives and a ricated into a wide variety o  orms. hese include 
pipes and ttings, pro les and tu es, windows and doors, sidings, wires and ca les, lms and 
sheets, toys and other moulded products and oorings.
In India, the main driver or C consumption is irrigation and construction. C pipes  ttings, 
which constituted only 14  o  the total C consumption in 1975, has grown to over 70  now.
Raw Material
43  o  C s content comes rom oil, the alance 57  comes rom salt, meaning that C is 
less dependent on ossil uels compared to other materials. Crude oil prices went down rom 65

arrel in April 15 to 35 arrel in arch 16. hile Crude oil prices went down 46  in the last one 
year, C prices decreased only 9  during the same period.
EDC
Ethylene dichloride E C  is the main raw material or the production o  C. hile E C is a 
derivative o  crude, it ollows its own demand supply e uation.

he total traded E C Ethylene i-chloride  demand is around 2.3  per annum. A high demand 
or caustic soda has led to esta lishing large Chlor Al ali pro ects, which can produce chlorine as 

a y-product. Chlorine is a ha ardous chemical and cannot e transported, and hence it is used 
in ma ing E C. Additional E C capacities are expected to come up over the next two years. his 
is expected to eep E C prices low.
VCM

inyl Chloride onomer C  is an intermediate in E C to C chain and is also used as 
a eedstoc  or the production o  C. he international demand and supply o  C  is very 
alanced. enerally international C  prices ollow the international C prices uite closely. 
oving orward your company expects the availa ility o  C  to e ade uate, and the delta 
etween the C  and the C price is expected to e sta le.

PVC Pipes Market
he ma or end users or C pipes and ttings in India are irrigation, water in rastructure, and 

housing. ue to the increasing demand rom these sectors, the C pipes and ttings industry 
has een growing rapidly since the past several years and during the period rom F  2009 to F  
2016 the growth has een at a dou le digit rate. In terms o  volume, the C pipes mar et is 
1.8 million  in India and highly ragmented with the presence o  a large num er o  players in 
the unorganised sector. he ratio o  organised and unorganised sector is around 60 40 and your 
company has a 25  mar et share in the organised sector. here has een a rapid shi t rom 
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unorganised to the organised sector in the last couple o  years. This will urther increase with the 
implementation o  G T.
Opportunities
Agriculture segment
The Government o  India has launched various programs in the agriculture sector ocusing on 
increasing irrigation, armer s income, and production. These schemes and programs will give 
impetus to demand or pipes  ttings. The Union Budget 16-17 was ocused on oosting the 
rural economy, announcing higher spending in the agri sector to oost demand. In a id to dou le 
armers  income in the next ve years, the government has allocated INR 35,984 crore to the 
arming sector. The government, in F 17, has an all-time high target o  INR 9 la h crore or agri 
credit. Implementation o  89 irrigation pro ects under AIB , which have een languishing, will e 
ast trac ed. These pro ects re uire Rs.17,000 crore next year and Rs.86,500 crore over the next 
ve years.

Government Schemes -
‘Pradhan Mantri Krishi Sinchai Yojana’ (PMKSY)-

ome o  the o ectives o  the scheme
Convergence o  investments in irrigation
Expand cultiva le area under irrigation ar het o pani
Improve on- arm water use e ciency al inchan ,

ustaina le water conservation practices al anchay
Greater private investments in irrigation

 will e implemented in mission mode and 28.5 la h hectares o  land will e rought under 
irrigation under this scheme. This will create a demand or C pipes  ttings.
As per , in aharashtra, only 19  o  the total sown area has irrigation acility against the 
national average o  46 . aharashtra eing the largest mar et, your company tends to ene t 
rom this scheme.
Jalayukt Shivar
The tate Govt. declared a drought in aharashtra in ct 15. An estimated INR 1.35 tn will e 
needed in the next ve years to ght the drought. The aharashtra tate Govt. has started a-
layu ta hivar  which covers localised, smaller,  need- ased water management programmes.
Sardar Sarovar Narmada Nigam
The Gu arat tate Government has increased the allocation to the irrigation sector rom ` 40 
illion to ` 90 illion under ardar arovar Narmada irrigation pro ect and allocated ` 52 illion 
or other ongoing water resource schemes.
Organic farming
To increase crop yields in rain ed areas, which account or nearly 54  o  the country s ara le 
land, organic arming is eing promoted. Towards this end, the Government has launched two 
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important schemes. The rst, the armparagat rishi i as o ana  which will ring 5 la h acres 
o  land under organic arming over a three year period. The second is the launch o  a value chain 
ased organic arming scheme called rganic alue Chain evelopment in North East Region . 

The emphasis is on value addition, so that organic produce grown in these parts nds domestic 
and export mar ets.
Non Agriculture Segment
The demand or C pipes and ttings in the Non Agri segment is expected to grow on account 
o  the ollowing schemes initiated y the Government.
Housing for all by 2022

ousing or all y 2022 will provide 20 million houses in ur an areas and 40 million houses in rural 
areas. The Government in the Union Budget 16-17 has launched various schemes to incentivise 
home uyers. hile the real estate sector is seeing a downturn in ur an areas, rural areas are 
still una ected. As your company has a wide dealer networ , we expect a good demand or C 
pipes  ttings.
Swachh Bharat Mission

wachh Bharat ission B  is another agship programme o  the Government aimed to 
ocus on improving sanitation acilities through the construction o  individual household latrines 
I L , cluster toilets and community toilets especially via  mode . olid and li uid waste 

management is also an important component o  the programme. The government has also 
allocated a total o  Rs 1,96,000 crore to B . Lac  o  sanitation and drin ing water acility 
amongst 13 crore households creates a huge opportunity or C pipes.
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AMRUT: Atal mission for Rejuvenation of urban transport:
The government has also launched its programme Atal ission or Re uvenation and Ur an 
Trans ormation A RUT  to provide asic services to households and to uild amenities in our 
cities. ne o  the purposes o  A RUT is to ensure that every household has access to a steady 
supply o  tap water and sewerage acilities. The igh owered Expert Committee  has estimated 
that Rs 39.2 la h crore is re uired or the creation o  ur an in rastructure, including Rs 8 la h 
crore or services, such as water supply, sewerage, solid waste management and storm water 
drains.
Goods and Services Tax (GST)
G T, whenever implemented, would ene t the organised sector players o  the C pipes and 
ttings industry. Currently, approximately 40  o  the mar et share is held y the unorganised 

sector. ith a single uni ed tax rate, the margins currently en oyed y the unorganised sector, 
manu acturing in erior uality pipes and ttings will shrin  to a great extent.This will ma e it di cult, 
i  not impossi le or the unorganised sector to survive. ur view is that once G T is introduced, 
the share o  the unorganised sector could go down signi cantly ene tting your company.

New Products
our company has launched new pipes and ttings in various si es. The total num er o  U 

stands at more than 1200.
e are also loo ing at exploiting the rand e uity and strong dealer networ  that your company 

has, y introducing new products in the area o  water management. our company is in tal s with 
many companies around the world or various products.
Strategy
Capacity Expansion: our Company is on trac  with the capacity expansion plans. This year we 
have added 30,000 T capacity o  pipes and ttings spread across three plants.
Margin Improvement:

our Company has expanded its existing range o  products during the year. The ttings segment 
is growing at over 20  p.a. and the company is on trac  to increase the share o  ttings in total 
sales volume. ith the increase in the share o  ttings in total sales, the margins will also improve.
New markets: our Company is planning to increase its presence in relatively untapped mar ets 
li e the north east. e have opened a warehouse in Cuttac , disha, in 2015 to e near the 
mar et. This warehouse has helped the company in cutting down transit time. Also, the warehouse 
has helped dealers to stoc  smaller uantities, thus saving their inventory cost.
Branding: hile C pipes and ttings are o  a commodity nature, randing still plays a very 
important role. our company commands a premium o  3-5  over its peers due to its rand e uity. 

e strive to maintain this rand. In the previous year, ` 30 crore, more than 1  o  sales was 
spent on advertisement and randing activities. In rst o  its ind activity, 60 plum er meetings 
were conducted, spread over 28 states which saw an overwhelming participation o  over 3000  
plum ers. our company is the sponsor to its home team in the Indian remier League I L , 

une Rising upergiant.



15

Finolex Industries Limited

Co-sponsor of “Our Marathon for breast cancer awareness” in Pune.

Sponsor of Rising Pune Supergiants at IPLKisan - 2015 in Moshi, Pune

Social media campaign Cultural event “Swarazankar” organized at Pune 
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Cash-n-Carry: e continue to ollow the cash-n-carry usiness model to eep our alance sheet 
light. The company has negligi le de tors as it receives cash up ront.

New Warehouses/Dealers: The Company has added a out 100 dealers across India, ta ing the 
total tally o  dealers to over 700. Finolex products are now availa le at over 17,000 retail outlets 
across India.

Segment wise performance

n a standalone asis the net revenue rom operations stood at INR 24,528 mn in F 16 against 
INR 24,761 n in F 15. EBIT A margin was at 15.3  in F 16, an increase o  680 ps over the 
previous year. argin expansion was due to lower raw material prices and increase in volumes. 

ro t a ter Tax was INR 2,336 mn in F 16 against INR 478 mn in F 15, registering a growth o  
389 .

PVC Resin

our company has a C resin plant at Ratnagiri with an installed capacity o  272,000 T A. 
The resin plant was set up in 1994 which then made eminent usiness sense due to the high 
import duty on C resin and restricted availa ility. Today, the resin plant is a valua le asset to 
the company.

The advantage o  ac ward integration that your Company en oys is, a consistent supply o  high 
uality C resin.

Traditional festival celebration at Gujarat
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In F 16, the company produced 246,901 T o  resin F 15 235,049 T . The capacity utilisation 
in F 16 was 91  v s 86  in F 15, an increase o  500 ps. In F 16,your company sold 106,771 

T o  resin F 15 121,423 T  in the mar et while rest was consumed in house. In terms o  
value, the revenue rom the operations o  resin division was INR 6,696 mn in F 16 against INR 
7,792 mn in F 15. our company is on trac  to increase the captive consumption o  C resin y 
increasing the C pipes and ttings capacity.

our company is on trac  to increase the captive consumption o  C resin y increasing the 
capacity o  C pipes and ttings.

PVC Pipes and Fittings
our company has added a capacity o  30,000 T during the year under review, ta ing total 

installed capacity to 280,000 T A. The total production stood at 207,163 T at utilisation levels 
o  74 .

our company sold 208,763 T o  pipes and ttings in F 16, a growth o  12.4  over F 15. In 
value terms the sales stood at INR 17,822 mn registering a growth o  5.2  over F 15.
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ut o  total sales approx. 70  was to Agri sector and 30  was to Non Agri sector.

Power segment
our company has set up a 43  captive power plant at Ratnagiri in order to provide uninterrupted 

high uality power to its production acility there. Exclusive and etter uality power has led to 
improved productivity at the plant. uring F 16 the plant generated 1,88,788 h.
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Finolex lasson Industries vt. Ltd.
Finolex lasson Industries rivate Ltd. F I L  is an associate company, esta lished in 1992. 

our company holds 46  while Finolex Group excluding FIL  and Israel- ased laschin Ltd. hold 
20  and 34 , respectively. F I L is in the eld o  icro Irrigation in India and has success ully 
executed irrigation systems in various parts o  the country.
F I L o ers a wide range o  products and solutions in the eld o  recise Irrigation and Intensive 
Agriculture Cultivation.
F I L s solutions include complete tailored rip and prin ler Irrigation ystems and Turn- ey 
pro ects or all agriculture sectors such as Row Crops, orticulture, Green ouses, lantations, 

rchards, Nurseries and more.
F I L s services include urvey, lanning and esign acilities or rip, ini  icro prin lers, 
Foggers, isters, Fertigation E uipments, E prin ler ipes etc. or various eld crops, 
horticulture crops, plantations, landscape, Greenhouse and oly-house Irrigation systems, etc.
Risks and Threats:

our Company has a well-documented ris  management policy. This policy is reviewed y 
the anagement periodically and is appropriately modi ed wherever necessary. The volatile 
movements in exchange rates caused y ma or glo al developments undou tedly have an 
impact on Indian companies. But or your Company,the oreign exchange exposures are naturally 
hedged y uture earnings lin ed to oreign currency due to import parity pricing o  C resin. 
The volatility o  crude oil prices and its derivatives is another cause or concern. e continue to 
import our main raw materials, vi ., E C, ethylene, C , and coal. Based on the operations o  
the Company, new ris s, i  any, are identi ed, and appropriate steps are ta en to mitigate them. 
The surplus cash generated during the course o  usiness is sometimes invested with an s  
mutual unds. The detailed guidelines or investment o  the surplus amounts have een laid down 
and the anagement reviews these regularly. our Company continues to accord the highest 
priority or sa ety in all o  its operations. All the manu acturing acilities and processes are su ect 
to regular inspections. A a ety Audit is carried out regularly at the C resin plant at Ratnagiri, 
and preventive measures are ta en to ensure high standards o  sa ety are met. e are proud to 
announce that we have completed 7.10 million man-hours without any reporta le accident at the 

C resin plant at Ratnagiri. our Company has ta en ade uate insurance cover or all its plants 
as well as or third party lia ilities.

Transparency re ers to sharing in ormation and acting in an open manner. rocesses, instructions 
and in ormation are directly accessi le to those concerned with them, and enough in ormation 
is provided to understand and monitor them. our Company elieves in total transparency in 
sharing in ormation a out its usiness operations with all its sta eholders. our Company strives 
to provide maximum possi le in ormation in the anagement iscussion and Analysis which is a 
part o  the Annual Report.

The Company has put in place ade uate internal control procedures, proportionate to the 
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nature o  usiness and si e o  operations or smooth conduct o  usiness. Internal audits are 
conducted at regular intervals at all the plants and cover ey areas o  operations. These audits 
are independent, o ective and responsi le or evaluating and improving the e ectiveness o  
ris  management, control and governance processes. An Audit Committee consisting o  ve 
independent non-executive directors, monitor the per ormance o  the internal audits. This is 
conducted on a periodical asis through audit plans, audit ndings and promptness o  issue 
resolution through ollow-ups.

The Companies Act, 2013 has made signi cant changes in the nancial reporting re uirements to 
ring it in line with international practices. The ey re uirements are entity level controls, nancial 

reporting controls, operational controls and raud prevention controls. The Company has in place 
all the re uired controls and the ramewor  to identi y ey processes and evaluating control 
e ciency.

our company s industrial relations continue to e harmonious. Long term wage agreement has 
een signed in the month o  cto er 2015. In its sustained e orts on training and development, 

your company has implemented a structured leadership programme to develop potential leaders 
to ta e on larger responsi ilities. our Company, has an extensive training programme in place or 
all the employees to ensure development o  their s ill and nowledge and also application o  the 
same in achieving company s overall goals. The employee strength o  your Company currently 
stands at 1194.
Cautionary statement
Estimates and expectations stated in this anagement iscussion and Analysis may e a 

orward-loo ing statement  within the meaning o  applica le securities laws and regulations. 
Actual results could di er materially rom those expected or implied. Important actors that could 
ma e a di erence to your Company s operations include economic conditions a ecting demand, 
supply, price conditions in the domestic and international mar ets, and changes in Government 
regulations, tax laws, other statutes and other incidental actors.
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To the em ers,
our directors have pleasure in presenting the thirty- th annual report together with the audited 
nancial statements including consolidated nancial statements or the year ended 31st arch, 

2016. 

tate o  the Company s a airs

Financial Results   ` in la hs

Standalone Standalone Consolidated 

ro t e ore depreciation  nance charges 43,870.79 20,982.58 44,406.33
Less
Finance charges 4,464.34 7,037.10 4,464.34

ro t e ore depreciation and taxation 39,406.45 13,945.48 39,941.99
eductions or

i  epreciation 5,057.36 5,867.42 5,057.36
ii  rovision or taxation 10,989.68 3,300.23 10,989.68
ro t a ter depreciation and taxation 23,359.41 4,777.83 23,894.95

Add
urplus o  ro t and Loss account o  earlier year 11,959.95 12,688.83 11,959.95

Add  
Excess ividend Tax provision   
Increased

3.00 -- 3,00

Add  
hare o  pro t o  associates or earlier years -- 3,109.50

Less  
epreciation as per chedule II 

Note 7  o  the Companies Act, 2013
2,028.57

Appropriations

i  General reserve 4,000.00 500.00 4,000.00
ii  roposed dividend including prior year  

ad ustments
   12,409.53 2,481.91 12,409.53

iii  Tax on dividend 2,526.29 496.23 2,526.29
Balance carried over to the Balance heet   16,386.54 11,959.95 20,031.58
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Operations
The operational per ormance is summari ed elow

Standalone Standalone Consolidated 

Income 2,49,195.28 2,49,638.51 2,51,550.37

ro t e ore tax 34,349.09 8,078.06 34,884.63

ro t a ter tax 23,359.41 4,777.83 23,894.95

PVC Resin

roduction - in Ts 2,46,901 2,35,049 2,46,901

ale
excluding interdivisional  

- in Ts
- in ` lakhs

1,06,771
66,957.31

1,21,423
77,915.62

1,06,771
66,957.31

PVC Pipes and Fittings

roduction - in Ts 2,07,163 1,85,679 2,07,163

ale - in Ts
- in ` lakhs

2,08,763
1,78,216.58

1,85,786
1,69,381.76

2,08,763
1,78,216.58

Power

roduction -in h 1,88,788 1,65,865 1,88,788

uring the nancial year, 30,000 T p.a capacity was added to C pipes and ttings and, with 
this addition, the total capacity o  C pipes and ttings stands at 2,80,000 T p.a. The sales 
volumes or C pipes  ttings was 2,08,763 T or the nancial year ended 31st arch, 2016 as  
against 1,85,786 T or the nancial year ended 31st arch, 2015. Total income rom operations 
was at ` 2,45,283.09 lakhs or nancial year ended 31st arch, 2016 against ` 2,47,614.93 lakhs 
or the nancial year ended 31st arch, 2015. ro t a ter tax was at ` 23,359.41 lakhs or the 
nancial year ended 31st arch, 2016 as against ` 4,777.83 lakhs or the nancial year ended 31st 
arch, 2015. uring the year the Company reduced total de t y ` 42,555.70 lakhs.  

Dividend 
our directors have recommended dividend on e uity shares  100  ` 10 - per e uity share  

which includes  25  ` 2.50 per share  as pecial ividend or the nancial year 2015-2016 
to pay homage to late r. . . Chha ria, Founder romoter o  the Company. The nal dividend 
on e uity shares including corporate dividend tax, i  approved y the em ers, will a sor   
` 14,935.82 lakhs.
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our directors have proposed to trans er an amount o  ` 4,000.00 lakhs to the general reserves. 
An amount o  `  20,031.58 lakhs is proposed to e retained in the statement o  pro t and loss.

Deposits
our Company has not accepted any deposits, descri ed under Chapter  o  the Companies 

Act, 2013. ence, no details to report pursuant to Rules 8 5  v  and 8 5  vi  o  the Companies 
Accounts  Rules, 2014.  

ursuant to Regulation 34 2  o  the ecurities and Exchange Board o  India Listing ligations 
and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015 the Listing Regulations , a management 
discussion and analysis report orms a part o  this annual report.

As on end o  the nancial year, your Company does not have any su sidiary company. owever, 
it does have two associate companies namely Finolex lasson Industries rivate Limited and 

awas ort Limited. 
The consolidated nancial statements as prepared pursuant to the provisions o  section 129 o  
the Companies Act, 2013 and chedule III o  the Companies Act, 2013 are annexed and orm 
part o  this annual report.

There has een no revision in the nancial statements o  the Company during the nancial year 
2015  2016.

As re uired under Rule 5 o  the Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014, Form A C-1 o  statement 
containing salient eatures o  nancial statements o  the associate or oint venture companies is 
annexed and orms part o  this annual report. 

ursuant to Rule 8 1  o  the Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014, the per ormance and nancial 
position o  the associate or oint venture companies included in the consolidated nancial 
statements is annexed to and orms part o  this annual report. 
Further, it is reported pursuant to Rule 8 5  iv  o  the Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014 that 
during the nancial year 2015-16, Ra asthan live Cultivation Limited has ceased to e an 
associate company, in relation to the Company or oint venture company. Further, during the 
nancial year 2015-16, no company has ecome an associate o  the Company. 

The Company has also ormulated the policy on material su sidiaries in alignment with the 
provisions o  Regulation 16 1  c  o  the Listing Regulations. As re uired under Regulation 46 2
h  o  the Listing Regulations, the aterial u sidiary olicy has een displayed on the we site o  

the Company www. nolexwater.com at the ollowing link   http www. nolexwater.com policies-
code-o -conduct
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ursuant to Regulations 34 3  and 53  the related party disclosures as speci ed in ara A o  
chedule  are as given elow

Sr. 
No.

In the accounts of Disclosures of amounts at the year end and the maximum amount of 
loans/ advances/ Investments outstanding during the year.

1 Holding Company • Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries by name and 
amount.

No Holding 
Company

• Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates by name and 
amount.
• Loans and advances in the nature of loans to rms/companies in hich 
directors are interested by name and amount. 

2 Subsidiary Same disclosures as applicable to the parent company in the accounts of 
subsidiary company.

No Subsidiary 
Company

3 Holding Company Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary 
company  hen the company has made a loan or advance in the nature 
of loan.  

No Holding 
Company

ursuant to section 134 5  o  the Companies Act, 2013, your directors, on the asis o  in ormation 
and documents made availa le to them, con rm that

a  in the preparation o  the annual accounts, the applica le accounting standards had een 
ollowed along with proper explanation relating to material departures

 the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
udgments and estimates that are reasona le and prudent so as to give a true and air view 
o  the state o  a airs o  the Company at the end o  nancial year and o  the pro t o  the 
Company or that period

c  the directors had taken proper and su cient care or  maintenance o  ade uate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions o  the Companies Act, 2013 or sa eguarding the 
assets o  the Company and or preventing and detecting raud and other irregularities   

d  the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern asis

e  the directors had laid down internal nancial controls to e ollowed y the Company and that 
such internal nancial controls are ade uate and were operating e ectively  and

 the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions o  all 
applica le laws and that such systems were ade uate and operating e ectively.

A separate statement o  corporate governance in compliance with corporate governance 
re uirements speci ed in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses  to i  o  su -regulation 2  o  
regulation 46 along with a compliance certi cate o tained rom s   Associates, practicing 
company secretaries is annexed and orms part o  this annual report. 
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our directors con rm that there are no material changes and commitments a ecting the nancial 
position o  the Company which have occurred etween the end o  the nancial year o  the 
Company and the date o  this report. 

The particulars o  related party transactions are stated in the note no. 1.10 in nancial statements, 
Annexures 2, 3 and 5 vi  o  this report.

All related party transactions that were entered into during the nancial year were on an arm s 
length asis and were in the ordinary course o  usiness o  the Company. There are no materially 
signi cant related party transactions made y the Company with its romoters, irectors, ey 

anagerial ersonnel or other designated persons which may have a potential con ict with the 
interest o  the Company at large. 

All Related arty Transactions are placed e ore the Audit Committee or approval. rior omni us 
approval o  the Audit Committee is o tained on a uarterly asis or the transactions which are o  
a oreseen and repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omni us approval 
so granted are audited and a statement giving details o  all related party transactions is placed 
e ore the Audit Committee or their approval on a uarterly asis. The statement is supported y 

a Certi cate rom the Chie  Financial cer. 

The Company has developed a Related arty Transactions anual, tandard perating 
rocedures or the purpose o  identi ying and monitoring such transactions.

The Related arty Transactions olicy o  the Company approved y the Board o  irectors o  
the Company the Board  is displayed on we site o  the Company www. nolexwater.com at the 
ollowing link http www. nolexwater.com policies-code-o -conduct .

Risk management 
uring the nancial year 2014-2015, your directors have constituted a Risk anagement 

Committee. The details o  the Committee and its terms o  re erence are set out in the Corporate 
Governance Report orming a part o  the Board o  irector s Report.

The Company has a ro ust risk management ramework to identi y, evaluate usiness risks 
and opportunities. This ramework seeks to create transparency, minimi e adverse impact on 
the usiness o ectives and enhance the Company s competitive advantage. The usiness 
risk ramework de nes the risk management approach across the enterprise at various levels 
including documentation and reporting. The ramework has di erent risk models which help 
in identi ying risks trend, exposure and potential impact analysis at a Company level as also 
separately or usiness segments. Risk management orms an integral part o  the usiness 
planning and orecasting. The key usiness risks identi ed y the Company and its mitigation 
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plans are included in management discussion and analysis report.

ursuant to Rule 8 5 viii  o  the Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014, the details in respect o  
ade uacy o  internal nancial controls with re erence to the nancial statement are given elow.

The Company has an internal control system which includes internal nancial controls, the 
policies and procedures adopted y the Company or ensuring the orderly and e cient conduct 
o  usiness, including adherence to the Company s policies, the sa eguarding o  the assets, the 
prevention and detection o  rauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness o  the accounting 
records and timely preparation o  relia le nancial in ormation commensurate with the si e, scale 
and complexity o  its operations. 

The scope and authority o  the internal auditor are de ned y the audit committee rom time to 
time. To maintain its o ectivity and independence, the internal auditor reports its o servations to 
the audit committee o  the Board. The internal auditor monitors and evaluates the e cacy and 
ade uacy o  the internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, 
accounting procedures and policies at all locations o  the Company. Based on the report o  the 
internal auditor, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and there y 
strengthen the controls.  Audit o servations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the 
audit committee o  the Board.

ursuant to ections 149 1  and 161 o  the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 5  o  the 
Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014, the ollowing details relating to directors and key managerial 
persons are reported

The Board o  your Company is duly constituted with proper alance o  executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent directors.

r. an ay . ath IN  01874086  retires y rotation as irector at the ensuing annual general 
meeting and eing eligi le, o ers himsel  or reappointment.

The Board at its meeting held on 21st cto er, 2011 had re-appointed r. rakash . 
Chha ria IN  00016017  as anaging irector o  the Company or a period o  ve years vi .  
1st  ecem er, 2011 to 30th Novem er, 2016. Further, the Board, at its meeting held on 20th une, 
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2012 has appointed r. rakash . Chha ria as hole-time irector designated as Executive 
Chairman o  the Company or the period rom the close o  usiness hours o  11th August, 2012 to 
30th Novem er, 2016.

The Board o  irectors has appointed r. an ay . ath IN  01874086  as hole-time 
irector designated as irector perations  or a period o  ve years rom 4th  Fe ruary, 2012 to 

3rd Fe ruary, 2017.

The said appointments o  r. rakash . Chha ria and r. an ay . ath were approved y the 
em ers at their thirty - rst annual general meeting held on 11th August, 2012.

The Board o  irectors at its meeting held on 21st ay, 2016 has reappointed and xed the 
remuneration on the recommendation o  the Nomination and Remuneration Committee o

1. r. rakash . Chha ria as hole-time irector designated as Executive Chairman or a 
period o  ve years rom 1st ecem er, 2016.

2. r. an ay . ath as anaging irector, who shall e hole-time irector, or a period o  
ve years rom 1st ecem er, 2016.

The resolutions or the appointments o  r. rakash . Chha ria as hole-time irector 
designated as Executive Chairman and r. an ay . ath as hole-time irector designated 
as anaging irector including payment o  their remuneration are contained in the notice o  the 
ensuing annual general meeting. 

r. rakash . Chha ria, Executive Chairman, age 53 years is a hole-time irector since arch, 
1992. r. rakash . Chha ria is B. c. in International Business rom University o  Evansville, 
U A has completed Advanced anagement rogramme rom harton Business chool, U A 
and has also completed an Executive rogram rom tan ord, U A. r. rakash . Chha ria is a 
well-known industrialist. e is a director on the Board o  ew pu lic companies and private limited 
companies. r. rakash . Chha ria holds 1,70,749 e uity shares o  the Company.

r. an ay . ath, age 60 years is B.E. Chemicals , U CT and G , um ai. e is a mem er 
o  American Institute o  Chemical Engineering. e has to his credit 40 years o  rich working 
experience in various pro ects and petrochemical plant operations. e has worked in reputed 
organi ations like N CIL, Bom ay yeing, Rama etrochemicals, oudi an u etrochemicals, 
Essar Re nery etc. r. ath has earlier worked with the Company at Ratnagiri rom ecem er 
2004 to uly 2008 as irector anu acturing . r. an ay . ath holds 3,000 e uity shares o  
the Company.

The Board recommends the appointments as stated a ove and payment o  remuneration.

r. aura h . hanorkar, anaging irector is to retire on 30th Novem er, 2016 a ter 33 years 
o  dedication to the Company. The Board o  irectors at its meeting held on 21st ay, 2016 has 
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considered and approved the retirement o  r. aura h . hanorkar,  anaging irector and 
also ey anagerial ersonnel with e ect rom the end o  the current term o  appointment i.e. 
30th Novem er, 2016. The Board appreciates the loyalty and commitment o  r. aura h . 

hanorkar to the Company.

The em ers approved the appointments o  r. an ay . Asher, r. anaiyalal N. Atmaramani, 
r. ara N. amania, r. hrikrishna N. Inamdar r. ra hakar . arandikar and r. unil U. 
athak as independent directors or a period o  ve years e ective 20th eptem er, 2014, who 

are not lia le to retire y rotation. The terms and conditions o  the appointment o  independent 
directors are as per chedule I  o  the Companies Act, 2013. ursuant to section 149 7  o  the 
Companies Act, 2013, all independent directors have given declarations or the nancial year 
2016-2017 that they meet the criteria o  independence as laid down under section 149 6 .

Key managerial personnel
The Board has designated r. aura h . hanorkar, anaging irector, r. Anil . ha i, 
Chie  Financial cer and r. Umesh . Gosavi, Company ecretary as the ey anagerial 

ersonnel o  your Company or nancial year 2015-16.

The Board mem ers are provided with necessary documents rochures, reports and internal 
policies to ena le them to amiliari e themselves with the Company s procedures and practices.

eriodic presentations are made at the Board and Board Committee eetings on usiness and 
per ormance updates o  the Company, glo al usiness environment, usiness strategy and risks 
involved. 

etailed presentations on the Company s usiness segments were made at the separate 
meetings o  the independent directors held during the year.

uarterly updates on relevant statutory changes and landmark udicial pronouncements 
encompassing important laws are regularly circulated to the irectors. 

In compliance o  the Regulation 25 7  o  the Listing Regulations, the Company has adopted the 
amiliari ation programme or independent directors with an aim to provide to the independent 
directors insight in their roles, rights, responsi ilities in the Company, nature o  the industry in 
which the Company operates, usiness model o  the Company, etc.

The details o  the amiliari ation programme or independent directors are availa le on the we site 
o  the Company http www. nolexwater.com wp-content uploads 2015 07 File-5- irectors-
amilari ation-program1.pd .
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee o  the Company is governed y a terms o  
re erence. The Company s nomination and remuneration policy includes directors  appointment 
and remuneration including the criteria or determining uali cations, positive attri utes, 
independence o  a director and other details are urnished in Annexure 1.

The Company has devised a policy or per ormance evaluation o  independent directors, Board, 
Committees and other individual irectors which include criteria such as uali cation, positive 
attri utes, area o  expertise and num er o  directorship and mem erships held in various 
committee in other companies y such person or per ormance evaluation o  the non-executive 
directors and executive directors.

The  nomination and remuneration policy, inter alia, giving details a out the policy on directors  
appointment and remuneration including the criteria or determining uali cations, positive 
attri utes, independence and other details are included in the nomination and remuneration 
policy annexed herewith.

ursuant to Rule 5 1  o  the Companies Appointment and Remuneration o  anagerial 
ersonnel  Rules, 2014, the details o  remuneration o  directors and key managerial personnel 

are as urnished in Annexure 2.

isclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as re uired under section 197 12  o  the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 2  o  the Companies Appointment and Remuneration o  

anagerial ersonnel  Rules, 2014 are urnished  in Annexure 3.

Auditors and Auditor’s Report:

Auditors
ursuant to section 139 o  the Companies Act, 2013, s. . G. Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants, 
une were appointed as auditors until the conclusion o  the annual general meeting to e held 

in the year 2017 su ect to rati cation o  their appointment at every annual general meeting  on 
such remuneration as shall e xed y the Board. s. . G. Bhagwat has issued a certi cate 
o  eligi ility pursuant to section 141 o  the Companies Act, 2013. our directors recommend the 
rati cation o  the appointment o  s. . G. Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants, une rom the 
conclusion o  the annual general meeting o  the Company to e held in the year 2016 until the 
conclusion o  annual general meeting to e held in the year 2017.
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The Board at its meeting held on 21st ay, 2016 has, on the recommendation o  the Audit 
Committee, reappointed s. . R. Bhargave  Co. as cost auditors or carrying out audit o  cost 
accounting records o  the Company or the nancial year ending 31st arch, 2017. ursuant 
to the provisions o  section 148 o  the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, the 
rati cation y the em ers is necessary or the payment o  remuneration to cost auditors. our 
directors recommend the same.

ursuant to the provisions o  section 204 o  the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
Appointment and Remuneration o  anagerial ersonnel  Rules, 2014, the Company has 

appointed s.   Associates, Company ecretaries in practice, une to undertake the 
secretarial audit o  the Company. The secretarial audit report or the nancial year 2015-16 is 
annexed herewith and marked as Annexure 4. 

There is no uali cation, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made y the company 
secretary in practice in his ecretarial Audit Report or the nancial year 2015-16.

ursuant to section 134 3  a  to , there are certain items that are re uired to e reported y 
the Company in the irector s report. our directors are pleased to urnish the re uired details 
as under

The details o  the committee o  the directors and key managerial persons pursuant to the Listing 
Regulations, and the Companies Act, 2013 are descri ed in the corporate governance report o  
the annual report.

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee has een duly constituted as re uired under the provisions o  the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations. 

The details pertaining to the composition o  the Audit Committee, re uired to e given pursuant to 
ection 177 8  o  the Companies Act, 2013, are given in the corporate governance report section 

o  the annual report on page no.73. There are no instances o  the Board not having accepted the 
recommendation o  the Audit Committee during the nancial year 2015-16. 

uring the year under review, ve meetings o  the Board o  irectors were held.  The details o  the 
meetings are provided in the corporate governance report on page no. 73.
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ursuant to section 134 3 a  o  the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies Accounts  
Rules, 2014, the extract o  annual return in the prescri ed ormat GT-9 is annexed herewith and 
marked as Annexure 5.

ursuant to section 177 9  and 10  o  the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 o  the Listing 
Regulations, the Company has esta lished a vigil mechanism named histle Blower olicy 
the B  to report genuine concerns to the Chairman o  the Audit Committee. The B  

provides ade uate sa eguards against victimi ation o  persons who use such mechanism and 
makes provision or direct access to the Chairman o  the Audit Committee in exceptional cases 
as envisaged under the B . The details o  the B  are explained in the corporate governance 
report and also posted on the we site o  the Company. The Company a rms that no director or 
employee has een denied access to the Chairman o  the Audit Committee and that no complaints 
were received during the year. Further, no complaint was received y the Chairman o  the Audit 
Committee during the year.

The Company has in place a policy on prevention o  sexual harassment o  its employees at 
the workplace. In line with the re uirements o  the exual arassment o  omen at orkplace 

revention, rohi ition and Redressal  Act, 2013, an Internal Complaints Committee has een 
constituted y the Company to redress the complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 

our directors state that during the year under review, there was no case led pursuant to the 
exual arassment o  omen at orkplace revention, rohi ition and Redressal  Act, 2013.

Insider Trading
In compliance with the provisions o  the EBI rohi ition o  Insider Trading  Regulations, 2015 
and to preserve the con dentiality and prevent misuse o  unpu lished price sensitive in ormation, 
the Company has adopted a Code o  Conduct to Regulate, onitor and Report Trading y 
Insiders Insider Trading Code  and a Code o  ractices and rocedures or Fair isclosure o  
Unpu lished rice ensitive In ormation Code o  Fair isclosure .

The Insider Trading Code is intended to prevent misuse o  unpu lished price sensitive in ormation 
y insiders and connected persons and ensure that the irectors and speci ed persons o  the 

Company and their dependents shall not derive any ene t or assist others to derive any ene t 
rom access to and possession o  price sensitive in ormation a out the Company which is not in 

the pu lic domain, that is to say, insider in ormation. 

The Code o  Fair isclosure ensures that the a airs o  the Company are managed in a air, 
transparent and ethical manner keeping in view the needs and interest o  all the stakeholders.
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ursuant to section 186 o  the Companies Act, 2013, the details, as applica le, o  loans given, 
investments made or guarantees given are given in note nos. 12, 13 and 15 to the nancial 
statements or the nancial year 2015- 2016 on page nos. 113, 114 and 115 o  the annual report.

It is clari ed that the Company has no loans advances and investments in its own shares.

ursuant to Rule 8 5  vii  o  the Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014, it is reported that no 
signi cant and material orders have een passed y the regulators or courts or tri unals impacting 
the going concern status o  the Company and the Company s operations in uture.

Shares

The paid-up e uity share capital as on 31st arch, 2016 was `12409.53 lakhs. uring the year 
under review, your directors con rm that no shares were issued under the su sisting Finolex 
Industries Limited  Employee tock ption cheme  lan E   o  the Company.

our directors con rm that neither sweat e uity shares nor e uity shares with di erential voting 
rights have een issued y the Company during the year under review.

our Company is committed to achieve the highest standards o  environmental excellence y 
adopting environmentally sustaina le and e ective operating systems and processes in its plants. 

our Company has put in place internationally acclaimed Environment anagement ystem 
under I  14001 certi cation at Ratnagiri. our Company in compliance with all applica le 
environmental regulations in respect o  air, water, noise, ha ardous waste, e-waste etc. to mitigate 
potential environment impact on society.  

our Company s manu acturing plants are well e uipped with re ghting  sa ety e uipment. In 
addition, your Company s C resin manu acturing plant at Ratnagiri has put in place a process 
or sa ety system with well-e uipped re ghting acilities. The plant has its own re tenders which 
are capa le o  per orming re and rescue services or all types o  emergencies. Fire tenders are 
sent on re calls in villages communities near y as well as or attending calls in Ratnagiri city 
and industries around Ratnagiri. To keep re ghting system up-to-date and alert, mock drills and 
re drills are per ormed through-out the year as per n site Emergency anagement lan  with 

participation o  all key personnel in the actory premises. emonstration drills are per ormed in 
near y schools and other esta lishments or the ene t o  the pu lic at large. our Company 
elieves this is an excellent example o  ervice eyond sel . 



33

Finolex Industries Limited

In ormation on conservation o  energy, technology a sorption, oreign exchange earnings and 
outgo re uired to e given under section 134 3  o  the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 3  o  
the Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014 is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure 6.

Business responsibility statement
Business Responsi ility Report as stipulated under Regulation 34 o  the EBI Listing ligations 
and isclosures Re uirements  Regulations, 2015 has een hosted on the we site o  the Company 
www. nolexwater.com as is availa le to all the mem ers, and should e deemed as contain in 
this annual report. A physical copy o  the Business Responsi ility Report will e made availa le 
on a re uest y any mem er in writing to the Company ecretaty at the registered o ce o  the 
Company. uring the year under review, your Company continued its ocus on various initiatives 
on environments, social and governance perspective and the details o  the same are given elow.

our Company has installed processes to comply with the re uirement o  National Am ient Air uality 
tandards. All 12 parameters including particulate matters, sul ur dioxide and oxides o  nitrogen are 

analy ed as per the standards. All stack emissions are also regularly monitored and the ue gas 
uality is under control as per speci cation laid down y respective ollution Control Boards.

As a part o  its endeavor to keep the environment and water odies, around its plants at Ratnagiri 
ree rom contaminants and pollution, your Company has success ully achieved its goal or ero 
discharge o  its treated e uent outside the plant premises partly y recycling it ack in the system 
and y using the remaining or irrigation o  tree plantation within the plant premises. The pipes 
and ttings manu acturing plant do not generate any e uent and are ree rom pollution. Ground 
water uality is monitored regularly y sampling and analysis o  orewell water.

The a ueous e uent generated during the C manu acturing processes undergoes various 
treatments in your Company s world class e uent treatment plants such as e uali ation, 
occulation, oc separation, aeration activated sludge process, clari cation, polishing using 

activated car on lter etc. The treated e uent is checked regularly to ensure that it meets with  
ollution Control Board speci cations.

art o  the treated e uent undergoes urther treatment in e uent recycle plant such as iological 
treatment, phosphate removal, ultra ltration and deminerali ation process or recycling it in the 
plant operations. 
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Tree Plantation
Remaining treated e uent t or irrigation is used or growing trees planted in the plant premises. 

our Company has planted and nurtured close to 50,000 trees o  di erent varieties including 
ruit earing trees such as mangoes, chikoo, cashew, coconut etc. within the C manu acturing 
plant and captive power plant premises.  Tree lantation activity is carried out annually during the 
week-long cele rations o  orld Environment ay commencing on 5th une every year. 

Rain water harvesting
our Company has uilt two large reservoirs which help in collecting rain water rom near y land. 

Also, these reservoirs are lled y pumping water rom a dam on near y river. This dam has also 
helped in ringing up the ground water ta le in the near y vicinity.

ursuant to section 135 o  the Companies Act, 2013, during 2015, the Board has constituted 
Corporate ocial Responsi ility C R  Committee and also ramed the corporate social 
responsi ility policy. The details o  C R Committee are given in the corporate governance report 
section o  this report.

The corporate social responsi ility policy o  the Company is displayed on we site o  the Company 
www. nolexwater.com at the ollowing link  http www. nolexwater.com policies-code-o -
conduct .

As a responsi le corporate citi en, your Company actively contri utes to the social and economic 
development o  the communities in and around  its plants  locations. our Company in association 
with ukul adhav Foundation F , a charita le trust,  has partnered in this ourney or many 
years. our Company has een actively contri uting to the social and economic development o  
the underprivileged in the villages in and around your Company s plants situated at Ratnagiri and 
Urse in the state o  aharashtra and asar in the state o  Gu arat. pecial ocus has een placed 
on education, health care, community development, environment and sel -development. 

The C R activities carried out y your company through F is headed y rs. Ritu . Chha ria, 
irector, a driving orce in accompnishing the activities on day-to-day asis.

uring the nancial year 2015-16, your Company in association with F has incurred 
expenditure on various C R activities aggregating to `352 lakhs against the mandatory C R 
expenses o  `317 lakhs. 

hile a detailed report on the C R activities is annexed as Annexure 7. The details o  the activities 
undertaken y your Company in association with F are circulated seperately and is displayed 
on we site o  the Company www. nolexwater.com. 
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Cautionary statement
tatements in the Board o  irectors  Report and the anagement iscussion  Analysis 

descri ing the Company s o ectives, expectations or orecasts may e orward-looking within 
the meaning o  applica le securities laws and regulations. Actual results may di er materially 
rom those expressed in the statement. Important actors that could in uence the Company s 
operations include glo al and domestic demand and supply conditions a ecting selling prices 
o  nished goods, input availa ility and prices, changes in government regulations, tax laws, 
economic developments within the country and other actors such as litigation and industrial 
relations.

our directors take this opportunity to place on record their sense o  gratitude to the anks, 
nancial institutions, central and state government departments and their local authorities or their 

guidance and support. our directors are also grate ul to the customers, suppliers and usiness 
associates o  the Company or their continued co-operation and support. our directors express 
their deep appreciation or the commitment, dedication and hard work put in y the employees 
at all levels. Lastly, your directors are grate ul or the con dence and aith shown in them y the 

em ers o  the Company.

 For and on ehal  o  the Board o  irectors

  Prakash  P. Chhabria
lace  une  Executive Chairman
ate  21st ay, 2016 IN  00016017
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
1. PREAMBLE
 1.1 Finolex Industries Limited the Company  recogni es the importance o  attracting, 

retaining and motivating personnel o  high cali er and talent or the purpose o  ensuring 
e ciency and high standard in the conduct o  its a airs and achievement o  its goals 
esides securing the con dence o  the shareholders in the sound management o  the 

Company. For the purpose o  attaining these ends, the Company has constituted a 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee which is entrusted with the task o  devising a 
transparent reasona le and air policy o  remuneration or its directors, key managerial 
personnel and other employees.

 1.2 The Companies Act, 2013 vide su -section 3  o  section 178, the Companies eetings 
o  Board and its owers  Rules, 2014 and Clause 49 o  the Listing Agreement as amended 
and relevant Regulations o  EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  
Regulations, 2015  y the ecurities and Exchange Board o  India vide aster Circular 
dated April 17, 2014 makes it mandatory or the Board o  irectors o  every listed 
company to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 1.3 The o ective o  the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board 
o  irectors o  the Company and its controlled entities in ul lling its responsi ilities to 
shareholders y 
1.3.1. Considering the re uirement o  skill sets on the Board, eminent people having an 

independent standing in their respective eld pro ession and who can e ectively 
contri ute to the Company s usiness and policy decisions are considered y 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, or appointment, as Independent 

irectors on the Board. The Committee, inter alia, considers uali cation, positive 
attri utes, area o  expertise and num er o  irectorships and mem erships held 
in various committees o  other companies y such persons. The Board considers 
the Committee s recommendation and takes appropriate decision.

1.3.2. ensuring that the Board o  irectors is comprised o  individuals who are est a le 
to discharge the responsi ilities o  directors in consonance with the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the norms o  corporate governance  and

1.3.3. ensuring that the nomination processes and remuneration policies are e uita le 
and transparent. 

 1.4 The responsi ilities o  the Committee include 
1.4.1 ormulating a criteria or determining uali cations, positive attri utes and 

independence o  a director
1.4.2 recommending to the Board o  irectors a policy or recommendation, relating to 

the appointment and remuneration or the directors, key managerial personnel 
and other employees which includes one level elow key managerial personnel
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1.4.3 ormulating a criteria  recommendation or evaluation o  per ormance o  
independent directors and the Board o  irectors and on the asis o  the report o  
per ormance evaluation, it shall e determined whether to extend or continue the 
term o  appointment o  the independent director  

1.4.4 devising a policy  recommendation on Board diversity  and
1.4.5 identi ying persons who are uali ed to ecome directors and who may e 

appointed as part o  the senior management  or core management team o  the 
Company in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommending to the 
Board o  irectors the appointment and removal o  such personnel.

 1.5 This Nomination and Remuneration olicy has een ormulated with a view to 
1.5.1 Consider selection, appointment o  directors including independent directors, 

key managerial personnel and one level elow key managerial personnel in 
compliance o  the provisions o  the Companies Act, 2013, and EBI Listing 

ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015, as amended, 
devise a transparent system o  determining the appropriate level o  remuneration 
throughout all levels o  employees and teams in the Company

1.5.2 encourage personnel to per orm to their highest level
1.5.3 provide consistency in remuneration throughout the Company  and
1.5.4 o er incentives on the premise o  aligning the per ormance o  the usiness with 

the per ormance o  key employees and teams within the Company.
 1.6 The Nomination and Remuneration olicy elucidates the types o  remuneration to e 

o ered y the Company and actors to e considered y the Board o  irectors o  the 
Company, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and management o  the Company. 

2. DEFINITIONS
 ome o  the key terms used in the Nomination and Remuneration olicy are as under  
 2.1 ‘Board’ means the Board o  irectors o  Finolex Industries Limited or the Company.
 2.2 ‘Committee’ means the Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted y the 

Board o  irectors o  the Company in accordance with section 178 o  the Companies Act, 
2013.

 2.3  means a director appointed on the Board o  the Company including executive  
non-executive  and independent directors. 

 2.4 ‘Employee’ means every employee o  the Company whether working in India or a road , 
including the directors in the employment o  the Company. 

 2.5 ‘Key managerial personnel’ includes managing director, or chie  executive o cer or 
manager and in their a sence, a whole-time director  company secretary  and chie  
nancial o cer.

 2.6 ‘Member’ means a director o  the Company appointed as mem er o  the Committee.
 2.7  shall mean the policy o  remuneration o  

directors, key managerial personnel and other employees o  the Company ormulated y 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
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 2.8 ‘One Level below KMP or Senior management’ means the personnel o  the company 
who are mem ers o  its core management team excluding Board o  irectors comprising 
all mem ers o  management who are one level elow the executive directors commonly 
known as the unctional heads.

3.  NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
 3.1 The Committee shall e ormed y the Board o  the Company. It shall consist o  three or 

more non-executive directors out o  which not less than one-hal  shall e independent 
directors. The Board o  the Company shall nominate directors as mem ers o  the 
Committee rom time to time.

 3.2 The Chairman o  the Committee shall e an independent director ut shall not e the 
Chairperson o  the Company. e shall e present at the Annual General eeting, to 
answer the shareholders  ueries and may determine as to who should answer the 

ueries. 
 3.3 The presently nominated mem ers o  the Committee are nominated y the Board o  

irector. 
  The Board will nominate irectors on the Committee, rom time to time.
 3.4 In respect o  the policy on Board iversity, the Committee shall ensure that the Board has 

re uisite num er o  independent, executive and other category o  irectors as prescri ed 
in the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder and EBI Listing ligations and 

isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015, as amended may e applica le rom time 
to time.

4.  LETTER OF ENGAGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT
 4.1 Non-executive directors shall enter into a letter o  engagement with the Company, the 

terms and conditions o  which shall e approved y the Board. The letter o  engagement 
shall set orth the terms and conditions o  the engagement, the per ormance expectations 
or the position, the remuneration package, the availa ility o  the latter eing contingent 
upon ul llment o  certain expectations o  the Company measured y enchmarks o  
per ormance. 

 4.2 Executive directors, key managerial personnel and senior management employees shall 
enter into a contract  employment contract or acceptance o  appointment  increment letter 

contract o  employment  with the Company clearly setting out the terms and conditions 
o  the remuneration package or such person. The contract o  employment shall set out 
the expectations or the per ormance, the key per ormance indicators, measures and 
criteria or assessment or evaluation o  per ormance.

 4.3 The Committee and the Board must approve the contracts o  employment or the senior 
management and directors. 

 4.4 The Board shall disclose the terms and conditions o  any contract o  employment in 
accordance with the law and the employment rules, as applica le rom time to time.

5.  REMUNERATION STRUCTURE
 5.1 Remuneration to Executive irectors, ey anagerial ersonnel and enior anagement
  The Board shall, in consultation with the Committee approve and nali e the orms o  
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remuneration to e o ered to executive and non executive directors, key managerial 
personnel, senior management and other employees. The remuneration package shall 
e composed o  amounts that are xed and varia le and the endeavor o  the Board and 

the Committee shall e to strike a alance etween the xed and varia le components 
and there y promote sustaina le value or the Company and its shareholders over time. 
5.1.1 Fixed Remuneration
 The contract o  employment entered into y the executive directors, key 

managerial personnel and senior management employees with the Company 
shall demarcate a xed gross annual salary or ase salary paya le to the 
employee. The xed remuneration or salary shall e determined according to 
complexities o  the position and role o  the employee, the relevant laws and 
regulations, conditions prevalent in the la our market and the scale o  the 

usiness relating to the position. The xed remuneration will re ect the core 
per ormance re uirements and expectations o  the Company. 

5.1.2 er ormance ased remuneration or incentive or Ex-gratia onus ased 
payments

 The per ormance or incentive or Ex-gratia onus ased payments shall orm 
part o  the varia le component o  the salary paya le to the employee. In 
addition to the xed remuneration, the Company shall implement a system o  

onuses and incentives re ecting short and long term per ormance o ectives 
appropriate to the working o  the Company and designed to lay emphasis on the 
direct relationship etween per ormance and remuneration. er ormance ased 
remuneration shall e proportionate to and contingent upon the attainment o  
speci c per ormance targets y employees in the Company. Incentive- ased 
payments take into account actors such as per ormance o  the employee, 
his conduct, responsi ilities, position and role and shall e calculated as a 
percentage o  the xed remuneration.

5.1.3 everance Fees or Termination Bene ts
 Each contract o  employment entered into y the executive directors, key 

managerial personnel and senior management employees with the Company 
shall demarcate in advance the entitlement to payment upon termination o  
employment or each employee or shall part o  employee s service contract or 
appointment letter. aking o  such payments shall e approved y the Board 
and the Committee and shall e in consonance with the Nomination and 
Remuneration olicy o  the Company.

5.1.4 Employee Bene ts
 The Company shall comply with all legal and industrial o ligations in determining 

the ene ts availa le with employees, namely short-term ene ts such as 
salaries, social security contri utions, onuses, post-employment ene ts such 
as gratuity, other long-term employee ene ts.

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and  or Board o  irectors shall carry 
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out per ormance review o  each o  the irector atleast once a year. According to the 
per ormance o  each irector, the Company shall pay remuneration to non-executive 
directors in such a manner so as to attract and maintain high uality mem ers on the 
Board. Non-executive directors shall receive a xed remuneration, or their service. Non-
executive directors shall not e entitled to any per ormance- ased incentives, onus 
payments or retirement ene ts. Board o  irectors shall e authorised to decide any 
other mode o  remuneration, as may e agreed upon y resolution passed y the Board 
at the meeting.

6.  DISCLOSURE
 6.1 The Nomination and Remuneration olicy shall e disclosed in the Board s report o  the 

Company prepared in accordance with su -section 3  o  section 134 o  the Companies 
Act, 2013.

 6.2 ayments to non-executive directors shall e either disclosed in the Annual Report o  the 
Company and  or put up on the we site o  the Company and re erence drawn thereto 
in the Annual Report as per mandatory re uirement or decided y the ey anagerial 
person rom time to time.

  Further, the num er o  shares and converti le instruments held y non-executive directors 
shall e disclosed y the Company in its Annual Report.

 6.3 ith regard to payment o  remuneration, the section on the corporate governance o  the 
Annual Report o  the Company shall contain the ollowing disclosures, namely 
6.3.1 All elements o  remuneration package o  individual directors summari ed under 

ma or groups, such as salary, ene ts, onuses, stock options, pension etc  
6.3.2 etails o  xed component and per ormance linked incentives, along with the 

per ormance criteria  
6.3.3 ervice contracts, notice period, severance ees  and
6.3.4 tock option details, i  any - and whether issued at a discount as well as the 

period over which accrued and over which exercisa le. 
7. REVIEW AND IMPLEMENTATION 
 7.1 The ey anagerial erson shall conduct an evaluation o  per ormance or all employees 

on an annual asis to monitor and review, and i  necessary, revise the appropriateness o  
each remuneration package.

 7.2 The remuneration package paya le to the employees o  the Company shall e approved 
y the Committee or Board, as may e applica le rom time to time.

 7.3 The Committee shall e responsi le or monitoring the implementation o  the policy, 
conducting a review o  the same rom time to time and advising the Board on the mode 
o  revision o  the policy such as inclusion o  long-term incentives that would contri ute 
towards creating a sustaina le value or shareholders o  the Company. 

  Any amendment in the Act, Rules, EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  
Regulations, 2015 will e applica le rom the date o  the noti cation. This policy will e 
deemed to e amended rom such date. Chairman o  the Committee shall e authorised 
to amend the policy rom time to time.
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The in ormation re uired under section 197 12  o  the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 1  o  the 
Companies Appointment and Remuneration o  anagerial ersonnel  Rule, 2014 are given elow
i  The percentage increase in remuneration o  each director, chie  nancial o cer, company 

secretary or manager, i  any, in the nancial year 2015-16, the ratio o  the remuneration o  
each director to the median remuneration o  the employees o  the Company or the nancial 
year 2015-16 and the comparison o  remuneration o  each ey anagerial ersonnel 
against the per ormance o  the Company are as under

r. 
No.

Name o  irector  
and esignation
Remuneration o   

irector  or  
Financial year

2015-16

Remuneration
o  irector

 or
Financial year

2015-16

 increase
decrease  

in
Remunera-

tion
in the

Financial 
Year

2015-16#

Ratio o
remuneration

o  each
irector

to median
remuneration
o  employees

times

Comparison
o  the

remuneration
o  the 
against the

per ormance
o  the

Company

1 r. rakash . Chha ria
Executive Chairman

 95,670,743 156 242.83 ro t e ore
tax increased

y 325.21
and ro t
A ter Tax
increased

y 388.91  in
nancial year
2015-16.

2 r. aura h . hanorkar
anaging irector 

 22,566,199 70 57.28

3 r. an ay . ath
irector- perations

 18,093,834 82 45.92

4 r. an ay . Asher
Non- Executive irector

 980,000 139 2.49 -

5 r. anaiyalal N. Atmaramani
Non- Executive irector

 1,140,000 
  

115 2.89
-

6 rs. Ritu . Chha ria
Non- Executive irector

940,000 100 2.39 -

7 r. ara N. amania
Non- Executive irector

 1,140,000 65 2.89 -

8 r. hrikrishna N. Inamdar
Non- Executive irector

 1,440,000 53 3.65 -

9 r. ra hakar . arandikar
Non- Executive irector

 1,320,000 39 3.35 -

10 r. unil U. athak
Non- Executive irector

 1,460,000 68 3.71 -
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11 r. Anil . ha i
Chie  Financial cer 

 7,957,462 4 20.20 ro t Be ore 
Tax incresed

y 325.21
and ro t 

A ter
Tax increased
y 388.91  in
nancial year
2015-16.

12 r. Umesh  Gosavi
Company ecretary 

 3,049,559 6 7.74

# Based on annualised remuneration
ii  The median remuneration o  employees o  the Company during the nancial year 2015-16 

was ` 3,93,987 per annum.    
iii  In the nancial year 2015-16, there was an increase o  4.11  in the median remuneration 

o  employees.    
iv  There were 1194 permanent employees on the rolls o  the Company as on 31st arch, 

2016     
v  Relationship etween average increase in remuneration and company per ormance  The 

ro t e ore Tax or the nancial year 2015-16 Increased y 325.21  whereas the increase 
in median remuneration was 4.11 . The remuneration increase is in line with the market 
trend in the industry. er ormance pay is linked to organi ation per ormance in addition to 
individual per ormance.    

vi  Comparison o  the remuneration o  the key managerial personnel against the per ormance 
o  the Company  ro t Be ore Tax increased y 325.21  and ro t A ter Tax increased y 
388.91  in nancial year 2015-16. Remuneration o  the  increased y 80.01 .

vii  a  ariations in the market capitalisation o  the Company  The market capitali ation as on 
31st arch, 2016 was ` 452,079.47 lakhs ` 363,661.51 lakhs as on 31st arch, 2015 .

 rice Earnings Ratio o  the Company was 19.36 as at 31st arch, 2016 and was 73.67 
as at 31st arch, 2015.    

c  ercentage increase over  decrease in the market uotations o  the shares o  the 
Company as compared to the rate at which the Company came out with the last pu lic 
o er in the year     

 The Company has come out with pu lic o er in 1992. An amount o  ` 40 in the said last 
pu lic o er would e worth ` 364.30 as on 31st arch, 2016 indicating a compounded 
annual growth rate o  9.23 . This is excluding the dividend accrued and paid thereon. 

viii  Average percentile increase made in the salaries o  employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last nancial year 2015-16 was 13.87 , whereas the increase in the 
managerial remuneration or the same nancial year was 80.01 .   

ix  The key parameters or any varia le component o  remuneration availed y the directors 
are considered y the Board o  irectors ased on the recommendations o  the Nomination 
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and Remuneration Committee as per nomination and remuneration policy or directors, key 
managerial personnel.    

x  The ratio o  the remuneration o  the highest paid director to that o  the employees who 
are not directors ut receive remuneration in excess o  the highest paid director during the 
nancial year 2015-16  Not applica le.    

xi  It is here y a rmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Nomination and Remuneration 
olicy or directors and key managerial personnel.

    

In ormation as per Rule 5 2  o  Chapter III, the Companies Appointment and Remuneration o  
anagerial ersonnel  Rule, 2014. 

Sr.  
No.

Name 

Duties

Age Total Gross 
remuneration 

Paid ` 

Last 
employment 

employee 

the Company

shares 
held by the 
employee

Whether 
Employee is 

give name 

1 r. rakash 
. Chha ria

Executive 
Chairman

B. c. Intl. 
Business U A

53 31 13.03.1992  95,670,743 Finolex Ca les 
Limited

0.137 rs. Ritu  
.  

Chha ria
2 r. aura h 

. hanorkar
anaging 
irector 

B.Com. 
ons , FCA

60 37 14.06.1983  22,566,199 irloskar 
Brothers Ltd

0.004 No

3 r. an ay 
. ath

irector 
perations

B.E. Chem. , 61 41 13.12.2011  18,093,834 I.G.  
etrochemicals  

Ltd

0.002 No

4 r. Anil . 
ha i

resident 
Finance  
CF

B. c., ACA 56 32 11.08.2014  7,957,462 otkar Energy 
ynamics vt. 

Ltd.

 - No

5 r. Nitin 
ulkarni

resident 
ales  
arketing

B.Com., BA 49 28 19.12.2014  7,084,310 indware IL 
Ltd.  

 - No

6 r. iptesh 
atel 

Chie  
In ormation 

cer

B. c., 44 21 07.11.2015  3,479,242  teel Ltd.  - No

Note:         
 Employee oined during the nancial year 2015-16.    

1. The a ove Employement are permanent in nature and contractual.
2. uring the nancial year 2015-16 no employee received remuneration in excess o   

hole-time irectors.
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COMPANY SECRETARIES
4th Floor, edwati Apartments, hiva inagar, une 411005
Telephone  020 6900 0666, email  deulkarcs gmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
F R T E FINANCIAL YEAR EN E  31st arch, 2016

ursuant to section 204 1  o  the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 o  the Companies  
Appointment and Remuneration o  anagerial ersonnel  Rules, 2014

To,
The em ers,
Finolex Industries Limited
Gat No. 399, illage Urse,
Taluka aval, istrict - une-410506

e have conducted the secretarial audit o  the compliance o  applica le statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices y Finolex Industries Limited hereina ter called the 
Company . ecretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasona le asis 
or evaluating the corporate conducts statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our veri cation o  the Company s ooks, papers, minute ooks, orms and returns 
led and other records maintained y the Company and also the in ormation provided y the 

Company, its o cers, agents and authori ed representatives during the conduct o  secretarial 
audit, we here y report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
nancial year ended on 31st complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to 
the extent, in the manner and su ect to the reporting made hereina ter
i  The Companies Act, 2013 the Act  and the rules made thereunder in so ar as they are 

made applica le
ii  The ecurities Contracts Regulation  Act, 1956 CRA  and the rules made thereunder
iii  The epositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws ramed thereunder
iv  Foreign Exchange anagement Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent o  Foreign irect Investment, verseas irect Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings not  applica le to the company during the audit period

v  The ollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescri ed under the ecurities and Exchange 
Board o  India Act, 1992 EBI Act  -
a  The ecurities and Exchange Board o  India u stantial Ac uisition o  hares and 

Takeovers  Regulations, 2011
 The ecurities and Exchange Board o  India rohi ition o  Insider Trading  Regulations, 

1992 upto 14th ay, 2015  and ecurities and Exchange Board o  India rohi ition o  
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Insider Trading  Regulations, 2015 e ective rom 15th ay, 2015
c  The ecurities and Exchange Board o  India Issue o  Capital and isclosure 

Re uirements  Regulations, 2009  not applica le to the Company during the Audit 
eriod

d  The ecurities and Exchange Board o  India hare Based Employee Bene ts  
Regulations, 2014 not applica le to the Company during the Audit eriod  

e  The ecurities and Exchange Board o  India Issue and Listing o  e t ecurities  
Regulations, 2008

 The ecurities and Exchange Board o  India Registrars to an Issue and hare Trans er 
Agents  Regulations, 1993  The in-house Investor ervices Centre o  the Company, 
registered with EBI as a Category II hare Trans er Agent, provides share registration 
and related services.

g  The ecurities and Exchange Board o  India elisting o  E uity hares  Regulations, 
2009 not applica le to the Company during the Audit eriod  and

h  The ecurities and Exchange Board o  India Buy ack o  ecurities  Regulations, 1998 
not applica le to the Company during the Audit eriod .

vi  The speci c laws applica le to the Company -
a  Indian Boiler Act, 1923

 etroleum Act, 1934 and etroleum Rules, 2002 
e have also examined compliance with the applica le clauses and regulations o  the ollowing

i  ecretarial tandards issued y The Institute o  Company ecretaries o  India  e ective 
rom 1st uly, 2015

ii  The Listing Agreements entered into y the Company with tock Exchange s  till 30th 
Novem er, 2015  and the provision o  su  regulation 4  o  the Regulation 23 and Regulation 
31A o  EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015, applica le 
rom 2nd eptem er, 2015  and

iii  The Listing Agreement entered into y the Company with tock Exchange s  pursuant to 
EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015 e ective rom 1st 
ecem er, 2015.

uring the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions o  the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, tandards, etc. mentioned a ove.

 
The Board o  irectors o  the Company is duly constituted with proper alance o  Executive 

irectors, Non-Executive irectors and Independent irectors. The changes in the composition 
o  the Board o  irectors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions o  the Act.
Ade uate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board eetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists or seeking and 
o taining urther in ormation and clari cations on the agenda items e ore the meeting and or 
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meaning ul participation at the meeting.
All decisions at Board eetings and Committee eetings are carried out unanimously as 
recorded in the minutes o  the meetings o  the Board o  irectors or Committees o  the Board, as 
the case may e.

e urther report that there are ade uate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the si e and operations o  the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applica le 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

e urther report that during the audit period, there are no speci c events  actions having a ma or 
earing on the company s a airs in pursuance o  the a ove re erred laws, rules, regulations, 

guidelines, standards, etc. re erred to a ove.

For 
  Company ecretaries

 . . eulkar
 artner

lace  une FC  No. 1321
ate  21st ay, 2016 C. . No  965

Note  This report is to e read with letter o  even date y the ecretarial Auditors, which is annexed 
as Annexure A and orms an integral part o  this report.
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IATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

4th Floor, edwati Apartments, hiva inagar, une 411005
Telephone  020 6900 0666, email  deulkarcs gmail.com

To,
The em ers,
Finolex Industries Limited
Gat No. 399, illage Urse, 
Taluka aval, istrict une-410506

ur ecretarial Audit Report o  even date is to e read along with this letter.
 
Management’s Responsibility 
1. It is the responsi ility o  the management o  the Company to maintain secretarial records, 

devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions o  all applica le laws and 
regulations and to ensure that the systems are ade uate and operate e ectively. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
2. ur responsi ility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and 

procedures ollowed y the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.
3. e elieve that audit evidence and in ormation o tained rom the Company s management 

is ade uate and appropriate or us to provide a asis or our opinion.
4. herever re uired, we have o tained the management s representation a out the 

compliance o  laws, rules and regulations and happening o  events, etc. 

5. The ecretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the uture via ility o  the Company 
nor o  the e cacy or e ectiveness with which the management has conducted the a airs o  
the Company.

For 
  Company ecretaries

 . . eulkar
 artner

lace  une FC  No. 1321
ate  21st ay, 2016 C. . No  965 



48

35th Annual Report 2015-16

E TRACT F ANNUAL RETURN 
as on the nancial year ended on 31st arch, 2016

ursuant to section 92 3  o  the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 1  o  the Companies 
anagement and Administration  Rules, 2014

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i  CIN  L40108 N1981 LC024153     
ii  Registration ate  28th arch, 1981
iii  Name o  the Company  Finolex Industries Limited
iv  Category  u -Category o  the Company  u lic Limited Company
v  Address o  the Registered o ce and contact details  Gat No.399, illage Urse, Taluka 

aval, istrict une 410 506, aharashtra tate. Tel No.02114-237251 Fax No.02114-
237252 E-mail  investors nolexind.com  

vi  hether listed company Yes  No  Yes
vii  Name, Address and Contact details o  Registrar and Trans er Agent, i  any
 Finolex Industries Limited, In- ouse hare Trans er Agent TA  ,Investor Relations Centre, 

 1 10 I C, Chinchwad, une 411019. Tel no. 020-27408200, Fax No.020-27479000, 
 E-mail  investors nolexind.com, e site  www. nolexwater.com  

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the usiness activities contri uting 10  or more o  the total turnover o  the company shall e 
stated -

l. 
No.

Name and escription o  main products  services NIC Code o  the 
roduct  service

 to total turnover 
o  the company

1 C 20131 26.86
2 C I E   FITTING 22209 71.67

l. 
No.

Name and address o  the 
Company

CIN GLN olding  
u sidiary  

Associate

 o  
shares 
held

Applica le 
section

1 Finolex lasson Industries 
rivate Limited 

Gat No. 399 Urse Tal- aval 
ist- une, 410506 aharashtra

U41000 N1992 TC 
067896

Associate 46.35 2 6

2 awas ort Limited 
 1 10, I C. Chinchwad, 
une 411 019, aharashtra

U45203 N2007 LC 
130990

Associate 49.99 2 6
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(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year i.e. 
on 1st April, 2015

No. of Shares held at the end of the year i.e. on 
31st March, 2016

% 
Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/
HUF

1376249 0 1376249 1.11 1376249 0 1376249 1.11 0.00

b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) State Govt (s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Bodies 
Corp.

63737448 0 63737448 51.36 63737448 0 63737448 51.36 0.00

e) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f) Any Other…. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (A) 
(1):-

65113697 0 65113697 52.47 65113697 0 65113697 52.47 0.00

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - 
Individuals

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Other – 
Individuals

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

c) Bodies 
Corp.

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Any 
Other….

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Sub-total (A) 
(2):-

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

65113697 0 65113697 52.47 65113697 0 65113697 52.47 0.00
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B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual 
Funds

5808857 8878 5817735 4.69 7666036 8878 7674914 6.18 1.49

b) Banks / FI 22736 3251 25987 0.02 32518 3251 35769 0.03 0.01
c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) State 
Govt(s)

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

e) Venture 
Capital 
Funds

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

f) Insurance 
Companies

0 450 450 0.00 0 400 400 0.00 0.00

g) FIIs 5946233 700 5946933 4.79 6399736 700 6400436 5.16 -4.37
h) Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (B)
(1):-

11777826 13279 11791105 9.50 14098290 13229 14111519 11.37 1.87

2. Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.
     i) Indian 6603202 51194 6654396 5.36 6137704 50944 6188648 4.99 0.37
     ii)Overseas 0 400 400 0.00 0 400 400 0.00 0.00
b) Individuals
i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital upto 
` 1 lakh

15072681 9494701 24567382 19.80 13948923 9143978 23092901 18.61 1.19

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in 
excess of ` 
1 lakh

14396017 52490 14448507 11.64 13593092 35500 13628592 10.98 0.66

c) Others 
(specify)
Clearing 
member

45799 0 45799 0.04 60642 0 60642 0.05 0.01

Corporate 
Body - Margin 
Account

149839 0 149839 0.12 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
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Corporate 
Body - Broker

72612 0 72612 0.06 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Corporate 
Body - Central 
Government

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Corporate 
Body CM/
TM client 
Bene ciary 
Account

47550 0 47550 0.04 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Corporate 
Body CM/TM 
client Margin 
Account

22126 0 22126 0.02 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Corporate 
Margin 
Account

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

Individual CM/
TM Client 
Bene ciary 
Account

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

NRI 432283 210575 642858 0.52 414667 207388 622055 0.50 -0.02
Limited Liability 
Partnership

40683 0 40683 0.03

Trustees 65827 0 65827 0.05 1400 0 1400 0.00 -0.05
Alternate 
Investment 
Funds

0 0 0 0.00 842927 0 842927 0.68 0.68

/Finolex 
Industries 
Limited 
Employees 
Welfare Trust

0 432600 432600 0.35 0 432600 432600 0.35 0.00

Sub-total (B)
(2):-

36948619 10241960 47190579 38.03 34999355 9870810 44870165 36.16 -1.87

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2)

48726445 10255239 58981684 47.53 49097645 9884039 58981684 47.53 0.00

C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

113840142 10255239 124095381  100.00 114211342 9884039 124095381 100.00 0.00
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl  

No.
Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year i.e.1st April, 2015
Share holding at the end of the 

year i.e. 31st March, 2016
No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

% change 
in 

share 
holding 

during the 
year

1 AMIT KATARA 18782 0.02 0 18782 0.02 0.00 0.00
2 AMIT KATARA 950 0.00 0 950 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 AMRITA KATARA 22125 0.02 0 22125 0.02 0.00 0.00
4 AMRITA MUKESH KATARA 950 0.00 0 950 0.00 0.00 0.00
5 AMIT KATARA 5400 0.00 0 5400 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 KATARA AMRITA MUKESH 3500 0.00 0 3500 0.00 0.00 0.00
7 KATARA ARUNA MUKESH 146720 0.12 0 146720 0.12 0.00 0.00
8 KATARA ARUNA MUKESH 111000 0.00 0 111000 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 KATARA MUKESH DOLUMAL 23030 0.02 0 23030 0.02 0.00 0.00

10 KATARA MUKESH DOLUMAL 3500 0.00 0 3500 0.00 0.00 0.00
11 AMIT KATARA 15500 0.01 0 15500 0.01 0.00 0.00
12 AMRITA KATARA 15500 0.01 0 15500 0.01 0.00 0.00
13 DEEPAK KISHAN CHHABRIA 80921 0.07 0 80921 0.07 0.00 0.00
14 KAVITA SANJAY RAHEJA 37002 0.03 0 37002 0.03 0.00 0.00
15 KAVITA SANJAY RAHEJA 55877 0.05 0 55877 0.05 0.00 0.00
16 KISHAN PARSRAM CHHABRIA 170342 0.14 0 170342 0.14 0.00 0.00
17 KISHAN PARSRAM CHHABRIA 200 0.00 0 200 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 PRIYA VIJAY CHHABRIA 60200 0.05 0 60200 0.05 0.00 0.00
19 RISHI VIJAY CHHABRIA 1350 0.00 0 1350 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 SUNITA KISHAN CHHABRIA 153592 0.12 0 153592 0.12 0.00 0.00
21 VIJAY KISHAN CHHABRIA 200 0.00 0 200 0.00 0.00 0.00
22 VIJAY KISHAN CHHABRIA 106150 0.09 0 106150 0.09 0.00 0.00
23 VINI DEEPAK CHHABRIA 26400 0.02 0 26400 0.02 0.00 0.00
24 GAYATRI PRAKASH CHHABRIA 74825 0.06 0 74825 0.06 0.00 0.00
25 HANSIKA HIYA PRAKASH CHHABRIA 66975 0.05 0 66975 0.05 0.00 0.00
26 PRAKASH PRALHAD  CHHABRIA 170549 0.14 0 170549 0.14 0.00 0.00
27 PRAKASH PRALHAD CHHABRIA 200 0.00 0 200 0.00 0.00 0.00
28 PRALHAD PARSRAM CHHABRIA 59 0.00 0 59 0.00 0.00 0.00
29 RITU PRAKASH CHHABRIA 4450 0.00 0 4450 0.00 0.00 0.00

30 ORBIT ELECTRICALS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 23330901 18.80 0 23330901 18.80 0.00 0.00

31 KATARA DENTAL PVT. LTD. 213950 0.17 0 213950 0.17 0.00 0.00
32 FINOLEX CABLES LIMITED 39432597 31.78 0 39432597 31.78 0.00 0.00
33 FINOLEX CABLES LIMITED 760000 0.61 0 760000 0.61 0.00 0.00

At the end of the year (or on the date of 
separation, if separated during the year) 65113697 52.47 0 65113697 52.47 0.00 0.00
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(ii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify if there is no change)

Sl 
No. Name of Promoters Shareholding

Date

Increase/ 
Decrease 
in Share 
holding

Reason

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

(01-04-2015 to 31-03-2016)
No of 

Shares 
at the 

beginning 
/end of the 

year

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

1 At the beginning of the year 65113697 52.47 0 0 0 0 0

2

Date ise increase/decrease in 
promoters shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/transfer/
bonds/s et e uity etc.)

No change in promoters’ shareholding during the year

3 At the end of the year 65113697 52.47 0 0 0 65113697 52.47
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters)

Sl 
No. Name of shareholder Shareholding

Date

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

in Share 
holding

Reason 
for 

increase/ 
decrease

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

(01-04-2015 to 31-03-2016)

No of 
Shares 
at the 

beginning 
/end of 

the year

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

1 Anuj Anantrai Sheth 4681002 3.77 1-Apr-15 0 No 
change 0 0

4681002 3.77 31-Mar-16 0 4681002 3.77
2 Franklin India Smaller Companies 

Fund 1527252 1.23 1-Apr-15 0 No 
change 0 0

1527252 1.23 31-Mar-16 0 0 1527252 1.23
3 DSP Blackrock MICRO Cap Fund 941175 0.76 1-Apr-15 0 0 0 0

1-May-15 56181 Transfer 997356 0.80
8-May-15 236 Transfer 997592 0.80

15-May-15 32897 Transfer 1030489 0.83
12-Jun-15 7371 Transfer 1037860 0.84
10-Jul-15 11044 Transfer 1048904 0.85
17-Jul-15 24176 Transfer 1073080 0.86
24-Jul-15 100221 Transfer 1173301 0.95

21-Aug-15 10522 Transfer 1183823 0.95
28-Aug-15 15719 Transfer 1199542 0.97
4-Sep-15 3543 Transfer 1203085 0.97

18-Sep-15 4756 Transfer 1207841 0.97
25-Sep-15 8436 Transfer 1216277 0.98
23-Oct-15 212159 Transfer 1428436 1.15
11-Dec-15 20095 Transfer 1448531 1.17
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18-Dec-15 41249 Transfer 1489780 1.20
25-Dec-15 15090 Transfer 1504870 1.21
31-Dec-15 1315 Transfer 1506185 1.21

1506185 1.21 31-Mar-16 1506185 1.21
4 Hiten Anantrai Sheth 1500000 1.21 1-Apr-15 No 

change
1500000 1.21 31-Mar-16 1500000 1.21

5 Gagandeep Credit Capitals Pvt.Ltd 1389500 1.12 1-Apr-15 No 
change

1389500 1.12 31-Mar-16 1389500 1.12
6 Kuroto Fund LP 219766 1.12 1-Apr-15

10-Apr-15 61352 Transfer 281118 0.23
17-Apr-15 20648 Transfer 301766 0.24
24-Apr-15 8618 Transfer 310384 0.25
1-May-15 606325 Transfer 916709 0.74
8-May-15 5003 Transfer 921712 0.74

15-May-15 254000 Transfer 1175712 0.95
22-May-15 70962 Transfer 1246674 1.00
29-May-15 111000 Transfer 1357674 1.09

5-Jun-15 427400 Transfer 1785074 1.44
26-Feb-16 -356400 Transfer 1428674 1.15
25-Mar-16 -12401 Transfer 1416273 1.14

1382318 1.11 31-Mar-16 -33955 Transfer 1382318 1.11
7 Warburg Value Fund 1282996 1.03 1-Apr-15

11-Mar-16 -11086 Transfer 1271910 1.02
18-Mar-16 -71910 Transfer 1200000 0.97

1200000 0.97 31-Mar-16 1200000 0.97
8 Finolux Auto Private Limited 1184658 0.95 1-Apr-15 No 

change
1184658 0.95 31-Mar-16 1184658 0.95

9 Prescient Securities Limited 1188198 0.96 1-Apr-15
4-Mar-16 -138198 Transfer 1050000 0.85

1050000 0.85 31-Mar-16 1050000 0.85
10 DSP Blackrock Emerging Stars Fund 0 0.00 1-Apr-15

31-Dec-15 23104 23104 0.02
8-Jan-16 19187 42291 0.03

15-Jan-16 168327 210618 0.17
22-Jan-16 19103 229721 0.19
29-Jan-16 193630 423351 0.34
5-Feb-16 55134 478485 0.39

12-Feb-16 70057 548542 0.44
19-Feb-16 70381 618923 0.50
26-Feb-16 96746 715669 0.58

4-Mar-16 79433 795102 0.64
11-Mar-16 47825 842927 0.68

842927 0.68 31-Mar-16 842927 0.68
11 Zafar Ahmadullah 704732 0.57 1-Apr-15 No 

change
704732 0.57 31-Mar-15 704732 0.57

12 Shivani T.Trivedi 672674 0.54 1-Apr-15
1-May-15 -255104 Transfer 417570 0.34

22-May-15 -417000 Transfer 570 0.00
29-May-15 10202 Transfer 10772 0.01
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17-Jul-15 -10000 Transfer 772 0.00
23-Oct-15 30569 Transfer 31341 0.03
30-Oct-15 34783 Transfer 66124 0.05
6-Nov-15 92896 Transfer 159020 0.13

13-Nov-15 10500 Transfer 169520 0.14
20-Nov-15 100 Transfer 169620 0.14

169620 0.14 31-Mar-16 169620 0.14
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl 
No. Name of Director/ KMP Shareholding

Increase/ 
Decrease 
in Share 
holding

Reason 
for 

increase/ 
decrease

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 
(01-04-2015 to  
31-03-2016)

No of 
Shares 
at the 

beginning /
end of the 

year

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company
Date No. of 

Shares
% of total 

shares of the 
Company

1 Mr.Prakash P.Chhabria
Executive Chairman

170549 0.137 1-Apr-15 No 
transaction

170549 0.137 31-Mar-16 170549 0.137

2 Mr.Sanjay K.Asher
Director

0 0 1-Apr-15 0 No shares 
held 0 0

0 0 31-Mar-16 0 0 0

3 Mr.Kanaiyalal N. Atmaramani
Director

0 0 1-Apr-15 0 No shares 
held 0 0

0 0 31-Mar-16 0 0 0

4 Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria
Director

4450 0.004 1-Apr-15 No 
transaction

4450 0.004 31-Mar-16 4450 0.004

5 Mr.Dara N.Damania
Director

900 0.001 1-Apr-15 No 
transaction

900 0.001 31-Mar-16 0 900 0.001

6 Mr.Saurabh S.Dhanorkar
Managing Director

5381 0.004 1-Apr-15 No 
transaction

5381 0.004 31-Mar-16 0 5381 0.004

7 Mr. Shrikrishna N. Inamdar
Director

2000 0.002 1-Apr-15 No 
transaction

2000 0.002 31-Mar-16 0 2000 0.002

8 Mr.Prabhakar D.Karandikar
Director

0 0 1-Apr-15 0 No shares 
held 0 0

0 0 31-Mar-16 0 0 0

9 Mr.Sanjay S.Math
Director (Operations)

3000 0.002 1-Apr-15 No 
transaction

3000 0.002 31-Mar-16 0 3000 0.002

10 Mr.Sunil U.Pathak
Director

300 0.000 1-Apr-15 No 
transaction

300 0.000 31-Mar-16 0 300 0.000

11
Mr.Anil V. Whabi
President (Finance) and Chief 
Financial Of cer

0 0 1-Apr-15 0 No shares 
held 0 0

0 0 31-Mar-16 0 0 0

12
Mr. Umesh M. Gosavi
Genenal Manager (Legal) and 
Company Secretary

0 0 1-Apr-15 0 No shares 
held 0 0

0 0 31-Mar-16 0 0 0
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V.   INDEBTEDNESS
 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment                       (` in lakhs)

Secured Loans 
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the  nancial year
i) Principal Amount  61,590.14  2,115.80  Nil  63,705.94 
ii) Interest due but not paid  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil 
iii) Interest accrued but not due  469.50  Nil  Nil  469.50 
Total (i+ii+iii)  62,059.64  2,115.80  Nil  64,175.44 
Change in Indebtedness during the nancial year 
2015-16
• Addition  69,694.94  Nil  Nil  69,694.94 
• Reduction  (110,289.55)  (2,115.80)  Nil  (112,405.35)
Net Change  (40,594.61) (2,115.80)    Nil  (42,710.41)

i)   Principal Amount  21,171.20  Nil  Nil  21,171.20 
ii)  Interest due but not paid  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil 
iii) Interest accrued but not due  293.83  Nil  Nil  293.83 
Total (i+ii+iii)  21,465.03  Nil  Nil  21,465.03 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:                                                                             ` 
Sr. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration Mr.Prakash 

P. Chhabria,
Mr.Saurabh 

S.Dhanorkar,
Mr.Sanjay 
S.Math, Total AmountExecutive 

Chairman
Managing 
Director

Director 
(Operations)

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961
 9,714,600  4,851,000  3,330,432  17,896,032 

(b) Value of per uisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961  7,965,929  4,278,471  4,203,556  16,447,956 
(c) Pro ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 

1961
 -    -    -    -   

2 Stock Option  -    -    -    -   
3 S eat E uity  -    -    -    -   
4 Commission  74,900,000  12,500,000  10,000,000  97,400,000 

-    as % of pro t 2.19% 0.37% 0.29% 2.85%
-   others, specify  -    -    -    -   

5 Others, please specify- Retirement bene ts  3,090,214  936,728  559,846  4,586,788 
Total (A)  95,670,743  22,566,199  18,093,834  136,330,776 
Ceiling as per the Act: ` 3,419.95 lakhs( being 10% of the net pro t of the Company as per Section 198 of the Companies Act, 
2013.
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B.   Remuneration to other directors: `
Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Total 
AmountMr.Sanjay 

K.Asher
Mr.Kanaiyalal 

N. 
Atmaramani

Mrs.Ritu 
P.Chhabria

Mr.Dara 
N.Damania

Mr.Shrikrishna 
N.Inamdar

Mr. Prabhakar 
D. Karandikar 

Dr.Sunil 
U.Pathak

1 Independent Directors
• Fee for attending board / 
committee meetings

 280,000  440,000  -  440,000  440,000  620,000  760,000 29,80,000

• Commission  700,000  700,000  -  700,000  1,000,000  700,000  700,000 45,00,000
• Others, please specify  - 
Total (1)  980,000  1,140,000  -  1,140,000  1,440,000  1,320,000  1,460,000 74,80,000

2 Other Non-Executive 
Directors (Non-
Independent)
• Fee for attending board / 
committee meetings

 -  -  240,000  -  -  -  -  240,000 

• Commission  -  -  700,000  -  -  -  -  700,000 
• Others, please specify- 
Retirement bene ts

 -  -  -  -  -  - 

Total (2)  -  -  940,000  -  -  -  -  940,000 
Total (B)=(1+2)  980,000  1,140,000  940,000  1,140,000  1,440,000  1,320,000  1,460,000  8,420,000 
Total Managerial 
Remuneration (A+B)

 
144,750,776

Overall Ceiling as per 
the Act

Ceiling as per the Act: ` 3,761.95 lakhs (being 11% of the net pro t of the Company as per Section 198 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD `
Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Anil V. 

Whabi,
Mr. Umesh  
M. Gosavi,

Total
CFO Company 

Secretary
1 Gross salary

a)  Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961

 2,496,000  834,000  3,330,000 

b)  Value of per uisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961  5,040,684  1,948,164  6,988,848 
c)  Pro ts in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax  

Act, 1961
 -    -    -   

2 Stock Option  -    -    -   
3 S eat E uity  -    -    -   
4 Commission  -    -    -   

  -   as % of pro t  -    -    -   
  -   others, specify  -    -    -   

5 Others, please specify Retirement bene ts  420,778  267,395  688,173 
Total  7,957,462  3,049,559  11,007,021 
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
No instances of penalties/Punishment/Compounding of offence or Other of cers in default

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief Description etails o  
enalty  

unishment  
Compounding 
ees imposed

Authority R   
NCLT  Court

Appeal 
made, i  
any give 

etails

A: Company
 Penalty - - - - - - - - -
 Punishment - - - - - - - - -
 Compounding - - - - - - - - -
B: Directors
 Penalty - - - - - - - - -
 Punishment - - - - - - - - -
 Compounding - - - - - - - - -
C. Other Of cers in default
 Penalty - - - - - - - - -
 Punishment - - - - - - - - -
 Compounding - - - - - - - - -

The particulars o  conservation o  energy, technology a sorption and oreign exchange earnings 
and outgo as re uired under Rule 8 o  the Company Accounts  Rules, 2014 are given elow

A  Conservation o  energy-

i  the steps taken or impact on conservation o  energy

C , C and C  lant

  A multistage centri ugal pump taking suction rom an atmospheric pressure  water 
tank was replaced with a new pump taking suction rom a high pressure  water 
network has saved 11 kw hr.

  irect heat recovery system o  hot e uent water o  poly reactors or air heating was 
getting ouled due to tur idity. It was converted to indirect system wherein  water is 
heated with the e uent in a E and heated  water is used in an air heating coil in 
a closed circulated system. This has resulted in steam saving o  0.8 ton per hour.

  A high capacity treated water pump -9617 was replaced with a small capacity pump 
or normal operation to pump out small volumes in normal case has saved 43 .

  All 3 sea water pumps in R  unit -3401-A B C  were re uired to run or pumping 
clari ed water to lter stream in sea water desalination R  unit due to lower dis-
charge pressure. These pumps are modi ed y changing to higher si e impeller and 
installing higher rating motor. Now only 2 pumps are re uired or normal operation as 
per design. This has resulted in saving o  456  per day o  power and also resulted 
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in stand y availa ility.

  urplus steam at atmospheric pressure was eing vented is now used in waste water 
stripper in C  plant achieving steam reduction o  0.8 ton per hour.

  In the employee canteen, 76 num ers o  uorescent tu e lights units 40 x 2 watt 
each  were replaced with 38 num er o  20 watt LE  tu e lights to save 3  units 
per day.

ii   

 The Company decided to install a pellet making machine to convert garden gar age into 
compressed pellets or using in stoves in canteen. This is expected to partially replace L G 
used in canteen.

iii  

•  Indirect heat recovery scheme o  oly reactor e uent y preheating  water to use 
in air heating coils will e implemented or other 2 production lines.

•  In ETF, existing high capacity cooling water pumps cater the demand during reli e ca-
tion system which runs only 10  o  time. ence a low capacity pump to run during 
normal demand is eing installed or power saving. Expected power saving to the tune 
o  25 kw  hour.

resently  water rom  sites is pumped to C  with multistage pumps o  the 
existing system. As the head re uirement or this duty is less, it is proposed either to 
modi y existing pumps with less num er o  stages or to install a new low head pump 
or re uired duty so as to save power consumption.

Impact o  the measures at ii  and iii  a ove or reduction o  energy consumption and 
conse uent impact on the cost o  production o  goods.

Resulted in reduction in consumption o  energy and cost o  production o  goods.

1 peci c areas in which R  has een conducted.

• Change rom crape paper ags to poly-coated paper ags o  etter tear resistance or 
E C agging has reduced in improved customer acceptance.

• accumi ing E-1420 shell side has resulted in higher condensation o  process gases 
and has helped in maintaining etter process control at end o  run condition o  plant.

• ea water was taken to oth compartments o  storage tank in C  and pumped to 
cooling tower with suction rom oth compartments. Now inlet line to R  compart-
ment is kept closed y providing a valve and the valve in suction line rom L  too is 
kept closed so that water now over ows rom L  compartment to R  compartment 
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there y increasing the sand settling time and reducing tur idity rom 6 NTU to 1 NTU.

•  usion welded studs on ed coils o  Boiler No 2 are replaced with  304 usion 
welded in ay 2015 to increase the ed coil li e and prolong the oiler shutdown or 
coil repairs. This is ased on the experience with similar change in oiler No1 ed 
coils in ept 2013.

• An organic waste converter o  50 kg per day capacity is installed or converting can-
teen ood waste ood to good uality manure. This has resulted in reduction o  odor 
nuisance o  canteen ood waste and improved overall environmental per ormance.

• Up gradation o  C cooling tower y providing additional high sur ace area lls in 
the availa le space has lowered down approach to wet ul  temperature. This has 
resulted in lower cooling water supply temperature and improved C reaction atch 
time.

• Up gradation o  two cells o  C  cooling tower with GI structure replacing old tim er 
wood structure has resulted in higher dura ility and also stoppage o  wood in repair 
works. This will e done or remaining two cells in coming years.

• C sampling system in C drying sections is modi ed to recycle the ushing C 
resin to avoid resin wastage. This has resulted in recovering approximately 3.6 T A 

C ack to product stream o  prime uality.

ii   the ene ts derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or im-
port su stitution

- Improvement in reaction e ciencies

- Improvement in on stream time

- Conservation o  ase material

- Environmental protection and e uent uality improvement

Future plans

• It is planned to install an acoustic enclosure at one o  the three Aer en air lowers or C 
conveying and is expected to reduce the noise level rom 105 dB to 90 dB.

• Reduction o  Chloro acetaldehyde CAA  impurity in urnace E C is presently done is a 
atch operation. The same will e converted to a continuous process or etter operational 

control.

• A ellet making system comprised o  coarse and ne shredders, a screw conveyor eeder, 
a pelleti er and a cyclone dust controller will e installed to convert garden gar age into 
compressed pellets which will e used or preparing ood in employee canteen y using 
specially made stoves. This is in line with company s policy o  opting or renewa le energy 
sources wherever possi le.
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}
}

• It is planned to install  type dri t eliminators in one o  4 cells o  C  sea water cooling tower 
to reduce dri t losses rom 0.05  to 0.001  o  circulating sea water and reduction in splash 
o  sea water to near y structure. It is expected to reduce the structure corrosion rate. Based 
on per ormance,  type dri t eliminators will e installed one y one in the remaining three 
cells. 

• C  coal trans er tower T4 in coal handling system supporting the coal trans er elt will e 
covered with C sheets in north end to avoid sea water corrosion. This is ased on the 
experience with similar covering or coal trans er tower T3 during ec 2014.

• A volute system will e installed to concentrate phosphate sludge in e uent recycle plant to 
improve sludge handling process.

• It is proposed to recycle high T  e uent water y installing a ull- edged recycle plant 
consisting o  chemical treatment, ltration, ultra ltration and reverse osmosis. This will help 
the company to achieve ero e uent discharge L  norms. 

iii  in case o  imported technology imported during the last three years reckoned rom the 
eginning o  the nancial year -

a. the details o  technology imported

 No technology imported during last three years.

. the year o  import
c. whether the technology een ully 

a sor ed
d. i  not ully a sor ed, areas 

where a sorption has not taken 
place, and the reasons thereo  
and

 the expenditure incurred on Research and evelopment.

a Capital The development work is carried out y the
concerned departments on an ongoing asis.
The expenses and the cost o  assets are 
grouped under the respective heads.

Recurring
c Total
d Total R   expenditure as a per-

centage o  total turnover

B  Foreign exchange earnings and utgo-

 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms o  actual in ows during the year and the Foreign 
Exchange outgo during the year in terms o  actual out ows are stated in the nancial 
statements note no. 1.7  1.9 on page no.123.
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Annual Report on Corporate ocial Responsi ility C R  activities or the nancial year 2015-16

1 A rie  outline o  the Company s C R olicy including overview o  
projects or programs proposed to e undertaken and a re erence 
to the we -link to the C R olicy and projects or programs and the 
composition o  C R Committee.

lease re er irectors  
Report and we link 
mentioned therein

2 Average net pro t o  the Company or last three nancial years ` in lakhs  15,861.89 
3 rescri ed C R expenditure ` in lakhs

two percent o  the amount mentioned in item 2 a ove
 317.24 

4 etails o  C R spent during the nancial year
Total amount spent or the nancial year ` in lakhs  352.83 
Amount unspent, i  any ` in lakhs Nil

anner in which the amount spent during the nancial year
etails o  expenditure on C R activities during the nancial year 2015-16

r. 
No.

C R roject or activity 
company can undertake 
as per chedule II 
o  the Companies Act, 
2013

ector in 
which the 
project is 
covered  
Clause 

no. o  
chedule 
II to the 

Compa-
nies Act, 
2013, as 
amended

roject or 
programs  
1  Local area 

or other  
2  peci y 

the state and 
district where 
projects or 
programs 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

udget  
project 
or pro-
grams 
wise 
` in 
lakhs

Amount  
spent on 
project or 
programs  
1  irect 

expenditure  
2  ver-

heads 
` in lakhs

Cumula-
tive ex-
penditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period 
i.e. 2015-
16 
` in lakhs

Amount  spent 
 irect or 

through imple-
menting agency 
modalities 

o  execution 
o  project or 
programs

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
1 Eradicating hunger, 

poverty and 
malnutrition, promoting 
preventive health care 
and sanitation and 
making availa le sa e 
drinking water

i Ratnagiri, 
une- 
aharashtra, 
asar- Gujarat

 135.00  145.52  215.38 irect
Implimenting 
Agency ukul 

adhav 
Foundation

2 romoting education, 
including special 
education and 
employment enhancing 
vocation skills 
especially among 
children, women, 
elderly and di erently 
a led and livelihood 
enhancement projects

ii Ratnagiri, 
une- 
aharashtra, 
asar- Gujarat

 30.00  42.93  108.37 irect
Implimenting 
Agency ukul 

adhav 
Foundation
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
3 Ensuring environmental 

sustaina ility, ecological 
alance, protection o  
ora and auna, animal 

wel are, agro orestry, 
conservation and 
natural resources and 
maintaining uality o  
soil, air and water

iv Ratnagiri, 
une- 
aharashtra, 
asar- Gujarat

 12.00  25.60  25.60 irect
Implimenting 
Agency ukul 

adhav 
Foundation

4 Training to promote 
rural sports, nationally 
recogni ed sports, 

aralympic sports and 
lympic sports

vii Ratnagiri, 
une- 
aharashtra, 
asar- Gujarat

 3.00  2.29  4.47 irect
Implimenting 
Agency ukul 

adhav 
Foundation

5 Rural development 
project

x Ratnagiri, 
une- 
aharashtra, 
asar- Gujarat

 12.24  11.50  52.37 irect
Implimenting 
Agency ukul 

adhav 
Foundation

6 onation to NG  
engaged in C R 
activities

uali ed 
projects
programs 
under i  
to x

aharashtra 
and Gujarat 

tate

 125.00  125.00  330.00 irect
Implimenting 
Agency ukul 

adhav 
Foundation

Grand total  317.24  352.83  736.19 

Responsibility statement
The Responsi ility tatement o  the Corporate ocial Responsi ility Committee o  the Board o  

irectors o  the Company is reproduced elow 
The implementation and monitoring o  the Corporate ocial Responsi ility C R  olicy, is in 
compliance with the C R o jectives and policy o  the Company.

   
aura h . hanorkar  rakash . Chha ria
anaging irector   Executive Chairman
IN  00011322 IN  00016017 
em er- C R Committee  Chairman, C R Committee 

lace  une 
ate  21st ay, 2016  
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COMPANY SECRETARIES
4th Floor, edwati Apartments, hivajinagar, une 411005
Telephone  020 6900 0666, email  deulkarcs gmail.com

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

To 
The em ers o  Finolex Industries Limited

e have examined the compliance o  conditions o  corporate governance y Finolex Industries Limited 
hereina ter re erred the Company , or the year ended on 31st arch, 2016 as stipulated in Clause 

49 o  the Listing Agreement Listing Agreement  o  the Company with the stock exchanges or the 
period 1st April, 2015 to 30th Novem er, 2015 and as per relevant provisions o  Chapter I  o   ecurities 
and Exchange Board o  India Listing ligations and isclosures re uirements  Regulations, 2015 
Listing Regulations  or the period 1st ecem er, 2015 to 31st arch, 2016. 

The compliance o  conditions o  corporate governance is the responsi ility o  the management. ur 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereo , adopted y the company or 
ensuring the compliance o  the conditions o  the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression o  opinion on the nancial statements o  the Company.

In our opinion and to the est o  our in ormation and according to the explanations given to us, we 
certi y that the Company has complied with the conditions o  corporate governance as stipulated in the 
a ove mentioned Listing Agreement Listing Regulations, as applica le. 

e urther state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the uture via ility o  the Company 
nor e ciency or e ectiveness with which the management has conducted the a airs o  the Company.

 For 
Company ecretaries

   
S. V. Deulkar 

 Partner  
  

lace  une  F.C.S. 1321 
ate  21st ay, 2016  C.P. No. 965
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 The Company always strives to achieve optimum per ormance at all levels y adhering to 
corporate governance practices, such as
 Fair and transparent usiness practices.
 E ective management control y the Board.
 Ade uate representation o  promoter, executive and independent and woman directors 

on the Board.
 Accounta ility or per ormance.
 onitoring o  executive per ormance y the Board.
 Compliance o  laws.
 Transparent and timely disclosure o  nancial management in ormation.

 
 The Board consists o  10 directors. The Company has an optimum com ination o  three 

executive, one woman non-executive and non-independent director and six non-executive 
independent directors.

 The Board is represented y three executive directors. r. rakash . Chha ria is Executive 
Chairman rom the promoter group o  the Company. r. aura h . hanorkar is anaging 

irector and r. anjay . ath is irector perations  in the category o  the Executive 
irectors.

 rs.Ritu . Chha ria is woman non-executive and non-independent  director rom the 
promoter group.

 The Board is represented y six non-executive independent directors namely r. anjay 
. Asher, r. anaiyalal N. Atmaramani, r. ara N. amania, r. hrikrishna N. Inamdar, 
r. ra hakar . arandikar and r. unil U. athak.

 The details o  attendance o  directors at meetings o  the Board, other committees o  the 
Board, annual general meeting held during the nancial year 2015-2016, committee positions 
held in the various committees o  the Company and outside directorships and committee 
positions held y the directors are given in Ta le 1
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Table 1

Mr. Prakash P. 
Chhabria

Mr. Sanjay 
K. Asher

Mr. Kanaiyalal       
N.  

Atmaramani

Mrs. Ritu     P. 
Chhabria

Mr.   Dara 
N. Damania

Mr. 
Saurabh  S. 
Dhanorkar

Mr. 
Shrikrishna N. 

Inamdar

Mr. 
Prabhakar D. 
Karandikar

Mr.   Sanjay 
S. Math

Dr.  Sunil  
U. Pathak

Executive 
Chairman 

(Whole- time 
Director)

Independent 
Director

Independent 
Director

Non- inde-
pendent Non- 

Executive
Director

Independent 
Director

Managing 
Director

(Whole-time 
Director)

Independent 
Director

Independent 
Director

Director 
(Operations) 
(Whole-time 

director)

Independent 
Director

Attendence 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
th August, 2015

AGM attended Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Audit Committee
Membership Not member Not member Member Not member Member Not member Chairman & 

Member
Member Not member Member

Attendence NA NA 4 NA 4 NA 4 4 NA 4
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

Membership Member Not member Chairman 
& Member

Not member Member Not member Member Member Not member Member

Attendence 4 NA 4 NA 4 NA 4 4 NA 4
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Membership Not member Member Member Not member Member Not member Chairman & 
Member

Member Not member Member

Attendence NA 4 4 NA 4 NA 4 4 NA 4

Membership Chairman & 
Member

Not membe Not membe Member Not member Member Not member Not member Not member Member

Attendence 4 NA NA 2 NA 4 NA NA NA 4
Risk Management Committee

Membership Chairman & 
Member

Not member Not member Not member Not member Member Not member Not member Not member Member

Attendence 1 NA NA NA NA 1 NA NA NA 1

Membership Chairman & 
Member

Member Not member Not member Not member Member Not member Not member Not member Not member

Attendence No meeting held during the nancial year 2015-2016
Share Transfer Committee

Membership Chairman & 
Member

Not member Not member Not member Not member Member Not member Member Not member Member

Attendence 17 NA NA NA NA 18 NA 9 NA 11
Directorships in other companies

Chairman Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 1 Nil Nil
Member 6 19 2 Nil 6 1 7 8 Nil 1

Committee Positions held in other companies
Chairman Nil 4 Nil Nil 1 Nil 2 1 Nil Nil
Member Nil 6 4 Nil 4 Nil 2 3 Nil Nil

No of shares of 
` 10 each held 
of the Company

170749 0 0 4450 900 5381 2000 0 3000 300

 utside directorships include directorships in pu lic and private limited companies. 
 None o  the Independent irectors on the Board is serving as an Independent irector in 

more than seven listed companies. 
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 The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have een made y all the 
irectors. As re uired under Regulation 26 o  the EBI Listing ligations and isclosure 

Re uirements  Regulations, 2015, the disclosure includes mem ership chairmanship o  audit 
committee and stakeholder relationship committee listed and unlisted pu lic companies .

 The composition o  the Board o  irectors is in accordance with the Regulation 17 o  EBI 
Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015. 

uring 2015-2016, the Board o  irectors met 5 ve  times vi . 28th ay, 2015, 7th August, 2015, 
29th August, 2015, 6th Novem er, 2015 and 13th Fe ruary, 2016. The time gap etween two 
meetings was not more than 120 days. 

None o  the directors are relatives o  each other except r. rakash . Chha ria, Executive 
Chairman and rs. Ritu . Chha ria, oman, non-executive director are related to each other 
as hus and and wi e.

The Company does not have any converti le instruments. 
The details o  shares held y the executive and non-executive directors are given in Ta le 1.

http www. inolexwater.com wp-content uploads 2015 07 File-5- irectors- amilari ation-
program1.pd

As on 31st arch, 2016, the Audit Committee the Committee  consisted o  5 ve  
independent directors vi . r. hrikrishna N. Inamdar Chairman o  the Committee , 

r. anaiyalal N. Atmaramani, r. ara N. amania,, r. ra hakar . arandikar and 
r. unil U. athak.

All mem ers o  the Audit Committee are nancially literate and have accounting or related 
nancial management expertise.

Re uired in ormation or review was placed e ore the Audit Committee meetings held 
during the year.

uring 2015-16, the Audit Committee met 4 our  times  vi . 28th April, 2015, 7th August, 2015, 6th 
Novem er, 2015 and 13th Fe ruary, 2016.
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The details o  the attendance o  the directors at the Audit Committee meetings during the year 
are given in Ta le 1.

r. Umesh . Gosavi, Company ecretary o  the Company acts as secretary to the committee.

Terms o  re erence and other re uirements o  the Audit Committee pursuant to the provisions 
o  section 177 o  the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 o  EBI Listing ligations and 

isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015 are as under
 Recommendation or appointment, remuneration and terms o  appointment o  auditors o  the 

Company.
 Approval o  payment to statutory auditors or any other services rendered y the statutory 

auditors.
 Review and monitor the auditor s independence and per ormance and e ectiveness o  audit 

process.
 Examination and review o  the uarterly and annual nancial statement and auditors  report 

thereon e ore su mission to the Board.
 Approval or any su se uent modi cation o  transactions o  the Company with related parties.
 crutiny o  inter-corporate loans and investments.
 aluation o  undertakings or assets o  the Company, wherever it is necessary.
 Evaluation o  internal nancial controls and risk management systems.
 onitoring the end use o  unds raised through pu lic o ers and related matters.
 Investigate into any matter as re erred to it y the Board and or this purpose shall have power 

to o tain pro essional advice rom external sources and have ull access to the in ormation 
contained in the records o  the Company.

 versight o  the Company s nancial reporting process and the disclosure o  its nancial 
in ormation to ensure that the nancial statement is correct, su cient and credi le.

 Reviewing, with the management, the annual nancial statements and auditor s report 
thereon e ore su mission to the Board or approval with particular re erence to
a. atters re uired to e included in the irector s Responsi ility tatement to e included 

in the Board s report in terms o  clause c  o  su -section 3 o  section 134 o  the 
Companies Act, 2013.

. Changes, i  any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons or the same.
c. ajor accounting entries involving estimates ased on the exercise o  judgement y the 

management.
d. igni cant adjustments made in the nancial statements arising out o  audit ndings.
e. Compliance with listing and other legal re uirements relating to nancial statements.
. isclosure o  any related party transactions.
g. uali cations in the dra t audit report.

 Reviewing, with the management, the statement o  uses  application o  unds raised through 
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an issue pu lic issue, rights issue, pre erential issue etc.  the statement o  unds utili ed or 
the purposes other than those stated in the o er document prospectus  notice and the report 
su mitted y the monitoring agency monitoring the utili ation o  proceeds o  a pu lic or rights 
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

 Reviewing with the management, per ormance o  statutory and internal auditors ade uacy o  
the internal control systems.

 Reviewing the ade uacy o  internal audit unction, i  any, including the structure o  the internal 
audit department, sta ng and seniority o  the o cial heading the department, reporting 
structure coverage and re uency o  internal audit. 

 iscussion with internal auditors o  any signi cant ndings and ollow up thereon.
 Reviewing the ndings o  any internal investigations y the internal auditors into matters 

where there is suspected raud or irregularity or a ailure o  internal control systems o  a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the oard.

 iscussion with statutory auditors e ore the audit commences, a out the nature and scope 
o  audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area o  concern.

 To look into the reasons or su stantial de aults in the payment to the depositors, de enture 
holders, mem ers in case o  non-payment o  declared dividend  and creditors.

 To review the unctioning o  the histle Blower mechanism.
 Approval o  appointment o  Chie  Financial cer the CF  i.e. the whole-time Finance 

irector or any other person heading the nance unction or discharging that unction  a ter 
assessing the uali cations, experience and ackground etc. o  the candidate.

 Carrying out any other unction as may e delegated to it y the Board.

The Board at its meeting held on 27th cto er, 2012 has constituted a Remuneration Committee. 
The Board at its meeting held on 12th ay, 2014 renamed the Remuneration Committee as 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The six independent directors namely r. anjay . Asher, r. anaiyalal N. Atmaramani, r. 

ara N. amania, r. hrikrishna N. Inamdar Chairman o  the Committee , r. ra hakar 
. arandikar and r. unil U. athak are the mem ers o  the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee.

The terms o  re erence o  Nomination and Remuneration Committee cover all the areas mentioned 
in section 178 o  the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 o  EBI Listing ligations and 

isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015 read with art  o  chedule II thereto.
The o jective o  the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board o  the 
Company and its controlled entities in ul lling its responsi ilities to mem ers y
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 considering the re uirement o  skill sets y the Board, eminent people having an 
independent standing in their respective eld pro ession and who can e ectively contri ute  
to the Company s usiness and policy decisions are considered y the uman Resources, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or appointment as Independent irectors on 
the Board. The Committee inter alia, considers uali cation, positive attri utes, area o  
expertise and num er o  irectorships and em erships held in various committees o  other 
companies y such persons. The Board considers the Committee s recommendation and 
takes appropriate decision.

 ensuing that the Board o  irectors is comprised o  individuals who are the est a le to 
discharge the responsi ilities o  directors in  consonance with the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the norms  o  corporate governance  and

 ensuring that the nomination process and remuneration policies are e uita le and 
transparent.

 The responsi ilities o  the Committee include
- ormulating a criteria or determining uali cations, positive attri utes and independence 

o  a director and recommending to the Board a policy relating to the appointment and 
remuneration or the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

- ormulating a criteria or evaluation o  per ormance o  Independent irectors and the 
Board o  irectors. 

- devising a policy on diversity o  Board o  irectors
- identi ying persons who are uali ed to ecome directors and who may e appointed 

as part o  the senior management o  the Company in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, and recommend to the Board the appointment and removal o  such personnel.

- recommending extension or continuation o  the term o  appointment o  the Independent 
irectors ased on evaluation o  their per ormance. 

uring the year, our meetings o  the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on 28th 
ay , 2015, 7th August, 2015, 6th Novem er,2015 and 13th Fe ruary, 2016. The attendance details 

are given in Ta le 1.

The nomination and remuneration policy o  the Company on recommendation y the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee was approved y the Board and the same is in place. The same 
is annexed as Annexure 1 o  the irectors  report and given on we site o  the Company at www.
nolexwater.com at like http www. nolexwater.com policies-code-o -conduct.

None o  the non-executive directors has any pecuniary relationship or transaction vis- -vis the 
Company. r. rakash . Chha ria, Executive Chairman and rs. Ritu . Chha ria, oman non-
executive director are related to each other as hus and and wi e.
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Criteria o  making payment to non-executive directors.

The criteria o  making payment to non-executive directors are given on we site o  the Company 
at link  http www. nolexwater.com wp-content uploads 2015 08 FIL- olicies- aster-document
revised.pd

etails o  remuneration paid to the executive directors or the nancial year 2015-2016 are given 
elow

Particulars Mr. Prakash  P. Chhabria, 
Executive Chairman

Mr. Saurabh S. 
Dhanorkar, Managing 

Director

Mr. Sanjay S. Math, 
Director – Operations

Salary and Allo ances 1,57,37,609 81,59,271 68,67,902
Contribution to PF 11,65,752 5,82,120 3,99,652
Superannuation / Special allo ance 14,57,190 1,21,275 -
Gratuity fund 4,67,272 2,33,333 1,60,194
Performance incentive/ Bonus 19,42,920 9,70,200 6,66,086
Sub-total 2,07,70,743 1,00,66,199 80,93,834
Commission payable 7,49,00,000 1,25,00,000 1,00,00,000
Total 9,56,70,743 2,25,66,199 1,80,93,834
Notice Period 6 months 3 months 3 months
Service contract Five  years Five  years Five years

The details o  remuneration paid to the non-executive directors and num er o  shares held y 
them are given elow

Sr. 
No.

Name Remuneration (`)

Commission Sitting fees Shares held

1 Mr. Sanjay K. Asher 7,00,000 2,80,000 Nil
2 Mr. Kanaiyalal N. Atmaramani 7,00,000 4,40,000 Nil
3 Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria 7,00,000 2,40,000 4450
4 Mr. Dara N. Damania 7,00,000 4,40,000 900
5 Mr. Shrikrishna  N. Inamdar 10,00,000 4,40,000 2,000
6 Mr. Prabhakar  D. Karandikar 7,00,000 6,20,000 Nil
7 Dr. Sunil U. Pathak 7,00,000 7,60,000 300

The non-executive directors are not getting any remuneration rom the Company except the 
sitting ees and commission not exceeding ` 10.00 lakhs per annum as approved y the Board 
rom time to time. All independent directors are expert in their respective elds and their services 
are ene cial to the Company.
No stock options were issued during the nancial year 2015-2016.
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Stakeholder Relationship Committee:

ursuant to the provisions o  section 178 o  the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 o  
EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015 read with art  o  
chedule II thereto, the takeholders  Relationship Committee is constituted as under

As on 31st arch, 2016, the takeholders  Relationship Committee consisted o  six directors vi . 
r. anaiyalal N. Atmaramani Chairman o  the committee , r. ara N. amania, r. hrikrishna 

N. Inamdar, r. ra hakar . arandikar and r. unil U. athak the non-executive directors and 
r. rakash . Chha ria, the Executive Chairman o  the Company.
r. Umesh . Gosavi, Company ecretary is the compliance o cer o  the Company.

The terms o  re erence o  the takeholders  Relationship Committee shall e as ollows
- To resolve grievances o  the stakeholders in relation to trans er o  shares, non-receipt o  

annual report and non receipt o  declared dividends etc.
- To review and note certi cate received rom ractising Company ecretary in compliance 

o  Regulation 40 9  to 11  o  EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  
Regulations, 2015.

- To review hal  yearly report o  the in-house hare Trans er Agent in terms o  EBI circular 
No.CIR IR 7 2012 dated 5th uly, 2012.

- To review and note the status o  Investor Complaints.
- To review and note the status o  unclaimed dividend.
- To take necessary actions on the matters delegated y the Board rom time to time.

uring 2015-16, the takeholder Relationship Committee met 4 our  times  vi . 28th ay, 2015, 
7th August, 2015, 6th Novem er, 2015 and 13th Fe ruary, 2016. The attendance or the same is 
given in Ta le 1.

No. of complaints received during the 
nancial year 2015-16

No. of complaints resolved to the 
satisfaction of complainants

No. of pending complaints at the end of 
nancial year i.e. as on 31st March, 2016

22 22 0
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Risk Management Committee

The Board at its meeting held on 26th uly, 2014 has constituted the Risk anagement Committee. 
As on 31st arch, 2016, the Risk anagement Committee consisted o  three directors vi . 

r. rakash . Chha ria Chairman o  the Committee , r. aura h . hanorkar and r. unil 
U. athak.

ursuant to Regulation 21 o  EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 
2015 the Company is not included in top 100 listed entities determined on the asis o  market 
capitali ation on B E and N E as at the end o  the nancial year on 31st arch, 2016.  

uring 2015-16, the Risk anagement Committee met 1 one  time vi . on 6th Novem er, 2015.
The details o  attendance o  Risk anagement Committee meeting y the directors during the 
year is given in Ta le 1.

Terms o  re erence o  the Risk anagement Committee shall e as ollows
a. The Risk anagement Committee R C  shall have at least three directors or mem ers o  

the Committee.
. R C shall review the Risk anagement plan and policy at its meeting and in orm the Board 

a out the risk assessment and minimi ation procedure.
c. The Board may delegate monitoring and reviewing o  the risk management plan and such 

other unctions as it deem t to R C and or the Executive Chairman and or anaging 
irector as may e necessary or e ective implementation o  the Risk anagement lan
olicy.

d. To take necessary actions on the matters delegated y the Board rom time to time.

As re uired under section 135 o  the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted the 
Corporate ocial Responsi ility Committee.
As on 31st arch, 2016, the Corporate ocial Responsi ility Committee consisted o  our directors 
vi . r. rakash . Chha ria Chairman o  the Committee , rs. Ritu . Chha ria appointed on 
7th August 2015 , r. aura h . hanorkar and r. unil U. athak.

uring  2015-16, the Corporate ocial Responsi ility Committee met our  times vi . on 28th ay, 
2015, 7th August, 2015, 6th Novem er, 2015 and 13th Fe ruary, 2016.
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The details o  attendance o  Corporate ocial Responsi ility meeting y the directors during the 
year is given in Ta le 1.

Terms o  re erence o  the Corporate ocial Responsi ility Committee shall e as ollows
a  Formulate and recommend to the Board a Corporate ocial Responsi ility olicy which shall 

indicate the activities to e  undertaken y the Company  as speci ed in chedule II o  the 
Companies Act, 2013 the Act  as amended. 

 Recommend the amount o  expenditure to e incurred on the activities re erred to in a ove.
c  onitor the Corporate ocial Responsi ility olicy o  the Company rom time to time.
d  onitor and ensure that the surplus arising out o  C R projects or programs or activities shall 

not orm part o  the usiness pro ts o  a Company.
e  Ensure that all the income generated y way o  C R activities is credited ack to the C R 

corpus.
 Review and comply with the re uirements o  the provisions o  the Act and rules made under 

and periodical disclosure re uirements.

As on 31st arch, 2016, the hare Trans er Committee consisted o  our directors vi . r. rakash 
. Chha ria Chairman o  the Committee , r. aura h . hanorkar, r. ra hakar . arandikar 

and r. unil U. athak.

- Consider and approve the trans er and transmission o  securities i.e. shares, de entures and 
other security documents.

- Consider and approve issue o  duplicate share certi cates.
- Consider and approve split, consolidation o  share de enture certi cate and issue resh 

share certi cates and de enture certi cates.
- Consider any other assignment as directed y the Board.
- Consider and approve demateriali ation and remateriali ation o  securities.
- To take necessary actions on the matters delegated y the Board rom time to time.

uring 2015-16, the hare Trans er Committee met twenty  times. The details o  attendance o  
hare Trans er Committee meetings y the directors during the year is given in Ta le 1.
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As on 31st arch, 2016, the Finance Committee consisted o  our directors vi . r. rakash . 
Chha ria Chairman o  the Committee , r. aura h . hanorkar, r. anjay . Asher and 

r. unil U. athak.

- To consider and review various nancial  proposals or the nancial investments, orrowings 
and give recommendation to Audit Committee  Board  and

- To take necessary actions on the matters delegated y the Board rom time to time.
No meeting o  the Finance Committee was held during the year 2015-2016.

The Independent irectors had a meeting on 13th Fe ruary, 2016 without the attendance o  Non-
Independent irectors and the mem ers o  the anagement. All the Independent irectors were 
present at such meeting. At the eeting, they 
a. Reviewed the per ormance o  Non-Independent irectors and the Board as a whole.
. Reviewed the per ormance o  the Chairperson o  the Company, taking into account the views 

o  the anaging irector and Executive irectors.
c. Assessed the uality, uantity and timeliness o  ow o  in ormation etween the Company s 

anagement and the Board that is necessary or the Board e ectively and reasona ly 
per orm their duties.

The Independent irectors hold an unanimous opinion that the Executive irectors are senior 
usiness managers with vast experiences in their usiness. Their knowledge and experience 

was ound extremely use ul or the Company. Independent irectors are highly knowledgea le 
oth on products and the regions o  Company s operations and ound them to e very competent, 

experienced, engaging, committed and participative. They have demonstrated their good listening 
skills and have een ound to e logical. cogent, convincing and good o servant.
The level o  engagement amongst the irectors is very high. The Board has diversity o  experience 
and each mem er has sound domain knowledge in their respective elds. The irectors have 
a well-co-ordinated, harmonious working relationship. All irectors are pro essional, they add 
value, contri ute to the high uality o  discussions at meetings, with a view to continually pro ing 
avenues or sustaina le growth. The Chairperson provides e ective leadership to the Board 
encourages active engagement, participation and discussion y all em ers and communicates 
e ectively. e is seen to e meticulous, caring and well prepared    or the eetings. e is an 
active listener and provides meaning ul contri ution to the development o  strategy.
The in ormation provided y the Company s anagement is complete, o  high uality and 
urnished with ull disclosures in a pro essional and timely manner.
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The Company s Code o  Conduct provides guidelines to e ollowed y all em ers o  the Board 
o  irectors and enior anagement to ensure the highest standards o  pro essional conduct. 

em ers o  the Board o  irectors and enior anagement have a rmed compliance with the 
Code o  Conduct and Ethics or the year ended 31st arch, 2016 on ehal  o  themselves and to 
the extent o  they are aware, on ehal  o  all employees reporting to them. The said Code can e 
viewed on the Company s we site at the ollowing link  http www. nolexwater.com wp-content
uploads 2015 08 Code-o -Conduct-Finolex-Industries-Limited.pd . A declaration signed y the 

anaging irector o  the Company to this e ect is given elow

As re uired y Clause 49 II E  2  o  the erstwhile listing agreement with the tock Exchanges 
and Regulation 34 3  read with ara  o  the chedule  to the EBI Listing ligations and 

isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015, I here y declare that the Company has adopted a 
Code o  Conduct and Ethics or all Board em ers and enior anagement o  the Company. The 
Code is availa le on the Company s we site.
I urther declare that the Company has in respect o  the nancial year ended 31st arch, 2016, 
received rom all the Board em ers and enior anagement ersonnel o  the Company, an 
a rmation o  compliance with the Code, as applica le to them.

For Finolex Industries Limited 
aura h . hanorkar

lace  une  anaging irector 
ate  9th ay, 2016                                                                                             IN  00011322 

In compliance with ara F o  chedule  to the EBI Listing ligations and isclosure 
Re uirements  Regulations, 2015, the in ormation relating to the e uity shares lying in the suspense 
account, the Company con rms that no shares o  the Company are lying in uspense Account.

ursuant to Regulation 53  o  EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  
Regulations, 2015, the Related arty isclosure is given in note no. 1.10 o  notes to accounts on 
page no.124 o  annual report. 
There were no materially signi cant related party transactions with the Company s romoters, 

irectors, anagement or their relatives, which could have had a potential con ict with the interest 
o  the Company. The Company does not have any su sidiary ut has associate companies. 
Transactions with related parties are entered into y the Company in the normal course o  
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usiness and on arm s length. The details o  transactions are   periodically placed e ore the 
Audit Committee or review and approval. em ers may re er to the notes to the accounts or 
details o  related party transactions.
The Board o  irectors o  the Company has, on the recommendation o  the Audit Committee, 
adopted a policy to regulate transaction etween the Company and its Related arties, in 
compliance with the applica le provisions o  the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules ramed 
thereunder including the EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 
2015 and the erstwhile Listing Agreement. The Related arty Transactions olicy has een 
placed on the Company s we site at www. nolexwater.com policies

 The Company has complied with all applica le Accounting tandards in the preparation o  
nancial statements pursuant to amended schedule III o  the Companies Act, 2013. There 

are no audit uali cations in the Company s nancial statements or the year under review

 The Company has complied with the re uirements o  the Regulatory Authorities on Capital 
arkets. Neither has there een any instances o  non-compliance y the Company on any 

matters related to the capital markets, nor has any penalty or strictures een imposed on the 
Company y the Regulatory Authorities or any statutory authority, on any matter related to 
capital markets, during last three years.

 In line with the est Corporate Governance practices, the Company has put in place a system 
through which the irectors, employees and usiness associates may report concerns a out 
unethical ehavior, actual or suspected raud or violation o  the Company s Code o  Conduct 
and Ethics without ear o  reprisal. The Company has put in place a process y which 
employees and usiness associates have direct access to the Audit Committee Chairperson, 

anaging irector, Chairperson o  the Board and Compliance cer.
 The histle- lower olicy is placed on the notice oard o  the Company and on its we site 

at www. nolexwater.com policies.
 No person has een denied access to the Chairman or mem er o  audit committee. 

 The Chie  Financial cer and anaging irector have urnished a compliance certi cate o  
the Board o  irectors  under Regulation 17 8  read with art B o  chedule II o  the EBI 
Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015.

 ursuant to Regulation 16 1  c  o   the EBI Listing ligations and isclosure 
Re uirements  Regulations, 2015, the Company has ormulated a policy on material 
su sidiaries. The policy is availa le on we site o  the Company at a link  http www.
nolexwater.com wp- content uploads 2015 08 FIL- olicies- aster-document revised.pd
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 For ipes and C industry, the prices and costs are linked to and dependent on

a. same underlying commodity crude oil  and
. demand supply or each component in value chain

 ue to strong interdependence, any major change in price o  one input or output, the prices 
o  rest o  the components in value chain are a ected al eit with a lag o  some time. ue to 
this margins are only temporarily a ected whether positively or negatively, until the prices 
reach e uili rium. Generally, over a period o  year, the impact o  price movements gets 
compensated and results in normal margins. ence, the commodity price movements are a 
temporary risk which does not need to e hedged.

 
 C pricing is on import parity and the import parity value o  sales o  the Company 

approximately e uates the U  paya les on a six monthly rolling asis due to which a 
natural hedge exists and hence the Company does not generally need to resort to hedging 
y way o  orward contracts, options, etc.

 The Company has complied with the re uirements o  the Corporate Governance and has 
made disclosures to the extent re uired and applica le to it, as stipulated in the EBI Listing 

ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015. These are the ollowing
 The discretionary re uirements o  unmodi ed opinion s  in audit report, separate posts 

o  chairperson and chie  executive o cer, reporting o  internal auditor directly to the 
audit committee o  ara E o  chedule II have een adopted. 

 u -paras 2 to 10 o  ara C o  chedule 
 Regulations 17 to 27  and
 Regulation 46 2   to j

The Company has o tained a certi cate rom practicing Company ecretary con rming 
compliance o  the conditions o  Corporate Governance as stipulated in ara E o  chedule  o  
the EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  Regulations, 2015 and Clause 49 o  
the erstwhile Listing Agreement. The Certi cate is annexed to this Report.

General body meetings

Year 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015
Date of AGM 14/9/2013 20/9/2014 29/8/2015
Time 11.30 a.m. 11.00 a.m. 11.00 a.m.
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Place of AGM Training Centre of 
Finolex Cables Limited, 
Urse,      Taluk Maval,          
Dist. Pune - 410506

Kirloskar Institute of Advanced 
Management Studies,     Gat 

No.356 &  357, Near Tata  
Foundry     Maval Village, 
Dhamane, Taluka Maval,     

District Pune 410 506.

Kirloskar Institute of Advanced 
Management Studies,     Gat 

No.356 &  357, Near Tata  
Foundry     Maval Village, 
Dhamane, Taluka Maval,     

District Pune 410 506.

b) 
meetings

Date of AGM Item of special resolution
1 14.9.2013 No special resolution as passed.
2 20.9.2014 1 To obtain approval for creation of any kind of mortgage(s), hypothecation(s), 

and/or charge(s), in addition to the mortgage(s), hypothecation(s), pledge(s) 
and / or charge (s) already created, from time to time as and by ay of 
rst/exclusive  charge(s) / second or subse uent charge(s) of any nature 
hatsoever,  and on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem t, on 

all or any part  of the movable and/or immovable properties of the Company.
2 To obtain approval for borro ing any sum or sums of money, from time to time, 

here the moneys  to be borro ed together ith the moneys already borro ed 
by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from 
the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed, at any 
time, the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the Company and its free reserves 
(that is to say reserves not set apart for any speci c purpose), provided that the 
total amount so borro ed shall not at any time exceed ` 2,000 crores (Rupees 
t o thousand crores) over and above.

3 To obtain approval for making offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to secured/
unsecured redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) on a private 
placement basis, in one or more tranches during the year on such terms and 
conditions, as may be decided by the Board ithin the overall borro ing limits 
of the Company.

4 To obtain approval for a sum not exceeding one percent per annum of the 
net pro ts of the Company calculated in accordance ith the provisions of 
section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, be paid to and distributed by ay 
of commission amongst the directors other than the managing director or  
Whole-time Directors of the Company.

3 29.8.2015 To accord  consent to the Board for making offers or invitations to subscribe 
to secured Non-convertible Debentures on private placement basis in one 
or more tranches during a period of one year from the date of passing the 
resolution ithin the overall borro ing limits of the Company.

 All resolutions were passed y majority.
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c)
pattern

 No special resolution was passed during the year under review through postal allot.

 No postal allot was conducted during the year under review.

 No special resolution is proposed to e conducted through postal allot.

 No special resolution is proposed through postal allot, hence the details o  procedure are 
not given.

 The uarterly results were pu lished during the year under review in leading national and 
regional newspapers.

 The uarterly results are displayed on www. nolexwater.com and on we sites o  B E and 
N E.

 The o cial news releases o  the Company are displayed on the we sites o  B E and N E.
 resentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts are availa le on we site o  

the Company.
 The anagement iscussion and Analysis Report is orming a part o  annual report. etailed 

report is given on page no. 8.

a Annual general 
meeting date, time 
and venue

Date: 11th August, 2016 
Time: 10.00 a.m. 
Venue: 
Kirloskar Institute of Advanced 
Management Studies, 
Gat No. 356 & 357, 
Near Tata Foundry Maval, 
Village Dhamane, Taluka Maval, 
District Pune 410 506.

b Financial year Announcement of uarterly 
results of 2016-17 & 
annual general meeting

Quarterly results by 14th August, 2016, 14th November, 2016, 
14th February, 2017 and 30th May, 2017 and annual general 
meeting by end of September, 2017.

c Dividend Payment 
date

17th August, 2016

d Book closure period From 30th July, 2016 to 11th August, 2016 (both days inclusive)
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e The name and 
address of each 
stock exchange(s) at 

hich the Company’s 
securities are listed 
and a con rmation 
about payment of the 
listing of fees

E uity Shares and NCDs:  
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Listing Department 
5, Exchange Plaza 
Bandra-Kurla Complex 
Bandra (East), 
Mumbai 400051

E uity Shares:  
BSE Limited 
Listing Department 
Registered Of ce: Floor 25 
P.J.To ers 
Dalal Street 
Mumbai 400 001

The Company has paid all due listing fees.

f Stock Code: BSE: E uity- 500940/FINOLEXIND 
NSE : E uity- FINPIPE 
NSE : NCDS- FIN16

g Market Price data of 
E uity Shares- High, 
lo  during each 
month in last nancial 
year 2015-2016

Month BSE NSE
High ` Lo  ` High ` Lo  ` 

Apr-15 312.00 269.20 312.20 269.95
May-15 298.70 247.70 299.00 247.00
Jun-15 292.70 250.30 293.20 251.10
Jul-15 292.85 256.00 292.90 253.80
Aug-15 309.40 245.10 309.00 250.00
Sep-15 270.50 247.95 269.95 248.00
Oct-15 333.70 258.50 334.10 245.60
Nov-15 333.90 277.25 334.00 277.00
Dec-15 308.00 282.70 309.90 284.00
Jan-16 319.00 259.50 319.50 260.40
Feb-16 323.60 273.60 324.00 272.50
Mar-16 383.60 307.00 384.00 308.00

h Performance in comparison broad based indices such as BSE Sensex, CRISIL Index etc.

Monthly high/lo  price of Company’s  
e uity shares on BSE Monthly high/lo  price of S&P BSE Sensex
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i In case the securities 
are suspended from 
trading, the directors 
report shall explain 
the reasons thereof. 

No such case. 

j Registrar to an issue 
and share transfer 
agent

In-House Share Transfer Agent (STA) Registered ith SEBI  
SEBI Registration no. INR000001765 
Investor Relations Centre 
D 1/10, MIDC, Chinch ad, Pune 411019

k Share transfer system The share transfer committee attends to share transfer formalities normally 
once in a fortnight. Demat re uests are con rmed ithin 15 days from the 
date of receipt of re uest, if found in order.

l Distribution of 
shareholding Category Total 

Investor % of B Total 
Shares % of D

A B C D E
1-500 116732 94.74 16531865 13.32
501-1000 4392 3.52 3230333 2.60
1001-2000 1252 1.00 1801790 1.45
2001-3000 315 0.25 796179 0.64
3001-4000 136 0.11 487776 0.39
4001-5000 95 0.08 448745 0.36
5001-10000 155 0.12 1135566 0.92
Above 10000 221 0.18 99663127 80.31
TOTAL 123298 100.00 124095381 100.00

m Dematerialization of 
shares and li uidity

Depository/Physical No of shares % of total shares
NSDL 100565582 81.04
CDSL 13645760 11.00

Physical 9884039 7.96
Total 124095381 100.00

Shares are regularly traded on BSE and NSE.
n Outstanding 

GDR,ADR or arrants 
or convertible 
instruments, 
conversion date and 
likely impact on e uity

No such issue made by the Company.

o Commodity price risk 
or foreign exchange 
risk and hedging 
activities

The details are included in this report on page no. 84.
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p Plant locations PVC, PVC Pipes and Po er Plants:
Ranpar – Pa as Road
District Ratnagiri 415 616 Maharashtra State
PVC Pipes and Fittings Plants:
1. Gat No.399, Urse, Taluka Maval, District – Pune 410 506 Maharashtra 
State
2. D 1/10 MIDC, Chinch ad, Pune 411019 Maharashtra State
PVC Pipes Plant:
Village Masar, Taluka Padra, District Vadodara 391 421 Gujarat State

Address for 
correspondence

Investor Relations Center
D 1/10 MIDC, Chinch ad, Pune 411 019, Maharashtra State, India.

Disclosure re uired
a disclosures on materially signi cant related 

party transactions that may have potential 
con ict ith the interests of listed entity at 
large

No such transactions 

b details of non-compliance by the listed 
entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the 
listed entity by stock exchange(s) or the 
board or any statutory authority, on any 
matter related to capital markets, during 
the last three years

No such cases

c details of establishment of vigil mechanism, 
histle blo er policy, and af rmation that 

no personnel has been denied access to 
the audit committee

Vigil mechanism, histle blo er policy are in place. No 
personnel has been denied access to the audit committee

d details of compliance ith mandatory 
re uirements and adoption of the non-
mandatory re uirements

The Company has complied ith the applicable mandatory 
re uirements of the earst hile clause 49 of the listing 
agreement and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Re uirements) Regulations, 2015.
The Company has adopted follo ing non-mandatory 
re uirements as speci ed in Part E of Schedule II of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Re uirements) 
Regulations, 2015.
a. Company is having Executive Chairman.
b. During the 2015-2016, there as no audit uali cation 

in the Auditors’ Report on the Company’s Financial 
Statement. 

c. The Chairman and Managing Director of the Company 
are different persons. 

The internal auditor is permanent invitee to the audit committee 
and regularly attends the meetings of the Committee.



84

35th Annual Report 2015-16

e eblink here policy for determining 
‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed

http:// . nolex ater.com/ p-content/uploads/2015/08/FIL-
Policies-Master-document_revised.pdf

f eblink here policy on dealing ith 
related party transactions

http:// . nolex ater.com/ p-content/uploads/2015/08/FIL-
Policies-Master-document_revised.pdf

g disclosure of commodity price risks and 
commodity hedging activities

The details included in this report on page no. 84.

 No such non-compliance.
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Independent auditors’ Report

Report on the Standal
e have audited the accompanying standalone nancial statements o  Finolex Industries 

Limited the Company , which comprise the Balance heet as at 31st arch, 2016, the 
tatement o  ro t and Loss, the Cash Flow tatement or the year then ended, and a summary 

o  the signi cant accounting policies and other explanatory in ormation.

The Company s Board o  irectors is responsi le or the matters stated in ection 134 5  o  the 
Companies Act, 2013 the Act  with respect to the preparation o  these standalone nancial 
statements that give a true and air view o  the nancial position, nancial per ormance and 
cash ows o  the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting tandards speci ed under ection 133 o  the Act, read with Rule 
7 o  the Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014. This responsi ility also includes maintenance o  
ade uate accounting records in accordance with the provisions o  the Act or sa eguarding o  the 
assets o  the Company and or preventing and detecting rauds and other irregularities  selection 
and application o  appropriate accounting policies  making judgments and estimates that are 
reasona le and prudent  and design, implementation and maintenance o  ade uate internal 
nancial controls, that were operating e ectively or ensuring the accuracy and completeness o  

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation o  the standalone nancial 
statements that give a true and air view and are ree rom material misstatement, whether due 
to raud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
ur responsi ility is to express an opinion on these standalone nancial statements ased on our 

audit. e have taken into account the provisions o  the Act, the accounting and auditing standards 
and matters which are re uired to e included in the audit report under the provisions o  the Act 
and the Rules made there under. e conducted our audit in accordance with the tandards on 
Auditing speci ed under ection 143 10  o  the Act. Those tandards re uire that we comply 
with ethical re uirements and plan and per orm the audit to o tain reasona le assurance a out 
whether the standalone nancial statements are ree rom material misstatement.
An audit involves per orming procedures to o tain audit evidence a out the amounts and 
the disclosures in the standalone nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditor s judgment, including the assessment o  the risks o  material misstatement o  the 
standalone nancial statements, whether due to raud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal nancial control relevant to the Company s preparation o  the 
standalone nancial statements that give a true and air view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
o  the accounting policies used and the reasona leness o  the accounting estimates made y the 
Company s irectors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation o  the standalone nancial 
statements.

e elieve that the audit evidence we have o tained is su cient and appropriate to provide a 
asis or our audit opinion on the nancial statements.
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Opinion
In our opinion and to the est o  our in ormation and according to the explanations given to us, the 
a oresaid standalone nancial statements give the in ormation re uired y the Act in the manner 
so re uired and give a true and air view in con ormity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, o  the state o  a airs o  the Company as at 31st arch, 2016 and its pro t and 
its cash ows or the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As re uired y the Companies Auditor s Report  rder, 2016 the rder , issued y the 

Central Government o  India in terms o  su -section 11  o  section 143 o  the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A , a statement on the matters speci ed in paragraphs 
3 and 4 o  the rder, to the extent applica le.

2. As re uired y ection 143 3  o  the Act, we report that
a  e have sought and o tained all the in ormation and explanations which to the est o  

our knowledge and elie  were necessary or the purposes o  our audit.
 In our opinion, proper ooks o  account as re uired y law have een kept y the 

Company so ar as it appears rom our examination o  those ooks.
c  The Balance heet, the tatement o  ro t and Loss and the Cash Flow tatement 

dealt with y this report are in agreement with the ooks o  account. 
d  In our opinion, the a oresaid standalone nancial statements comply with the Accounting 

tandards speci ed under ection 133 o  the Act, read with Rule 7 o  the Companies 
Accounts  Rules, 2014.

e  n the asis o  the written representations received rom the directors as on 31st arch, 
2016 taken on record y the Board o  irectors, none o  the directors is dis uali ed as on 
31st arch, 2016 rom eing appointed as a director in terms o  ection 164 2  o  the Act.

 ith respect to the ade uacy o  the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting 
o  the Company and the operating e ectiveness o  such controls, re er to our separate 
Report in Annexure B .

g  ith respect to the other matters to e included in the Auditor s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 o  the Companies Audit and Auditors  Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the est o  our in ormation and according to the explanations given to us
i. The Company has disclosed the impact o  pending litigations on its nancial 

position in its standalone nancial statements  re er note 1.2 to the standalone 
nancial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts, 
having any material oreseea le losses.

iii. There has een no delay in trans erring amounts, re uired to e trans erred, to the 
Investor Education and rotection Fund y the Company.

For s .G.B AG AT
Chartered Accountants

Firm s Registration No.  101118
A hijeet Bhagwat

artner
em ership No.  136835

une 
21st ay, 2016
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Annexure A
Re erred to in paragraph 1 under the heading, Report on ther legal and Regulatory 
Re uirements  o  our report on even date
i  a  The Company is maintaining proper records showing ull particulars, including 

uantitative details and situation o  xed assets.

 The xed assets are eing physically veri ed y the management at regular intervals 
ased on the programme o  veri cation which in our opinion is reasona le. art o  

the major xed assets has een veri ed y the management in the current year and 
discrepancies noticed on such physical veri cation were not material and the same 
have een properly dealt with in the ooks o  account. 

c  The title deeds o  immova le properties are held in the name o  the company.
(ii) hysical veri cation o  inventory has een conducted y the management during the current 

year. In our opinion, the interval o  such veri cation is reasona le. iscrepancies noticed on 
physical veri cation were not material and the same have een properly dealt with in the 
ooks o  account.

(iii) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, rms, Limited 
Lia ility artnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 o  
the Companies Act, 2013 in the current year. Accordingly, clause iii  a ,  and c  are not 
applica le to the Company.

(iv) According to the in ormation and explanations provided to us, in respect o  loans, investments, 
guarantees, and security  provisions o  section 185 and 186 o  the Companies Act, 2013 
have een complied with.

(v) According to in ormation and explanation provided to us, the Company  has not accepted 
deposits, hence the directives issued y the Reserve Bank o  India and the provisions o  
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions o  the Companies Act and the rules ramed 
there under, are not applica le to it.  According to in ormation and explanation provided to 
us, no order has een passed y Company Law Board or National Company Law Tri unal or 
Reserve Bank o  India or any court or any other tri unal.

(vi) e have roadly reviewed the ooks o  account relating to materials, la our and other items 
o  cost maintained y the Company pursuant to the rules made y the Central Government 
or the maintenance o  cost records under su -section l  o  section 148 o  the Companies 

Act, 2013 and we are o  the opinion that prima acie the prescri ed accounts and records 
have een made and maintained. e have not however made a detailed examination o  
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate and complete.

(vii) a  The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident 
und, employees  state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty o  customs, 

duty o  excise, value added tax ,cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities. According to the in ormation and explanation provided to us, no undisputed 
amounts paya le in respect o  statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st arch, 2016, or 
a period more than six months rom the date they ecame paya le.
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 According to the in ormation and explanation provided to us, there are no dues o  
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty o  customs, duty o  excise, value added tax 
or cess which have not een deposited on account o  any dispute except those 
mentioned elow

Name of the Statue Nature of Dues Amount  
( in lakhs)

Period to hich the 
amount relates

Forum here dispute 
is pending

Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty 26.94 2000-01 CESTAT

Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty 1,170.55 2013-14 Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 181.62 1998-99, 2005-06, 
2010-11, 2012-13, 
2013-14

CESTAT

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 20.82

12.42

3,303.05

5.38

45.01

2012-13 

2005-06, 2008-09, 
2011-12, 2012-13

2007-08, 2011-12

2006-07
2008-09

Additional 
Commissioner

Assistant 
Commissioner 
(Appeals)

Commissioner

Deputy Commissioner

Joint Commissioner
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 40.44 1996-97, 1999-2000 High Court
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 26.76 2007-08, 2010-11 CESTAT

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 642.72

101.40
24.72

2001-02, 2006-07, 
2008-09, 2010-11

2007-08
2008-09, 2009-10

Commissioner

Deputy Commissioner
Joint Commissioner

Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 489.12 2005-06 High Court

MVAT VAT 326.55 2005-06 Bombay Tribunal

viii  Based on our audit procedures and according to the in ormation and explanation provided 
to us, the Company has not de aulted in repayment o  dues to a nancial institution, ank, 
government or dues o  de enture holders.

(ix) According to in ormation and explanation provided to us, the Company has not raised 
moneys y way o  initial pu lic o er or urther pu lic o er including de t instruments  in the 
current year. According to the in ormation and explanations given to us, term loans availed 
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y the company were, prima acie  applied or the purpose or which the loans were o tained.
(x) Based upon the audit procedures per ormed y us and according to the in ormation and 

explanations provided to us y the management, no raud y the Company or any raud on 
the Company y its o cers or employees has een noticed or reported to us during the year.

(xi) According to the in ormation and explanation provided to us, the managerial remuneration 
has een paid and provided in accordance with the re uisite approvals mandated y the 
provisions o  section 197 read with chedule  to the Companies Act.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly, Clause xii  o  the rder is not 
applica le to the Company.

(xiii) According to the in ormation and explanation provided to us, all transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 o  Companies Act, 2013 wherever 
applica le and the details have een disclosed in the Financial tatements as re uired y 
the applica le accounting standards.

xiv  According to the in ormation and explanation provided to us, the Company has not made any 
pre erential allotment or private placement o  shares or ully or partly converti le de entures 
during the year under review.

xv   According to the in ormation and explanation provided to us, the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

xvi  According to the in ormation and explanation provided to us, the Company is not re uired to 
e registered under section 45-IA o  the Reserve Bank o  India Act, 1934.

For s .G.B AG AT
Chartered Accountants

Firm s Registration No.  101118
A hijeet Bhagwat

lace  une  artner
ate  21st ay, 2016  em ership No.  136835
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Annexure B
To the Independent Auditors  Report o  even date on the standalone nancial statements o  
Finolex Industries Limited
Report on the Internal Financial Controls
Under Clause i  o  u -section 3 o  ection 143 o  the Companies Act, 2013 the Act

e have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting o  Finolex Industries 
Limited the Company  as o  31st arch, 2016 in conjunction with our audit o  the standalone 
nancial statements o  the Company or the year ended on that date.

The Company s management is responsi le or esta lishing and maintaining internal nancial 
controls ased on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria esta lished y the Company 
considering the essential components o  internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
o  Internal Financial Controls ver Financial Reporting issued y the Institute o  Chartered 
Accountants o  India. These responsi ilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
o  ade uate internal nancial controls that were operating e ectively or ensuring the orderly and 
e cient conduct o  its usiness, including adherence to company s policies, the sa eguarding o  
its assets, the prevention and detection o  rauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness o  
the accounting records, and the timely preparation o  relia le nancial in ormation, as re uired 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
ur responsi ility is to express an opinion on the Company s internal nancial controls over 
nancial reporting ased on our audit.  e conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on Audit o  Internal Financial Controls ver Financial Reporting the Guidance Note  and 
the tandards on Auditing, issued y ICAI and deemed to e prescri ed under section 143 10  o  
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applica le to an audit o  internal nancial controls, oth 
applica le to an audit o  Internal Financial Controls and, oth issued y the Institute o  Chartered 
Accountants o  India. Those tandards and the Guidance Note re uire that we comply with ethical 
re uirements and plan and per orm the audit to o tain reasona le assurance a out whether 
ade uate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting was esta lished and maintained and 
i  such controls operated e ectively in all material respects.

ur audit involves per orming procedures to o tain audit evidence a out the ade uacy o  the 
internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting and their operating e ectiveness. ur 
audit o  internal nancial controls over nancial reporting included o taining an understanding o  
internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating e ectiveness o  internal control ased 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor s judgement, including the 
assessment o  the risks o  material misstatement o  the nancial statements, whether due to raud 
or error.
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e elieve that the audit evidence we have o tained is su cient and appropriate to provide a 
asis or our audit opinion on the Company s internal nancial controls system over nancial 

reporting.

A company s internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasona le assurance regarding the relia ility o  nancial reporting and the preparation o  
nancial statements or external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company s internal nancial control over nancial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that 1  pertain to the maintenance o  records that, in reasona le detail, 
accurately and airly re ect the transactions and dispositions o  the assets o  the company  2  
provide reasona le assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
o  nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures o  the company are eing made only in accordance with authorisations 
o  management and directors o  the company  and 3  provide reasona le assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection o  unauthorised ac uisition, use, or disposition o  the company s 
assets that could have a material e ect on the nancial statements.

Because o  the inherent limitations o  internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including 
the possi ility o  collusion or improper management override o  controls, material misstatements 
due to error or raud may occur and not e detected. Also, projections o  any evaluation o  the 
internal nancial controls over nancial reporting to uture periods are su ject to the risk that the 
internal nancial control over nancial reporting may ecome inade uate ecause o  changes 
in conditions, or that the degree o  compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an ade uate internal nancial controls 
system over nancial reporting and such internal nancial controls over nancial reporting were 
operating e ectively as at 31st arch, 2016, ased on the internal control over nancial reporting 
criteria esta lished y the Company considering the essential components o  internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit o  Internal Financial Controls ver Financial Reporting 
issued y the Institute o  Chartered Accountants o  India.

For s P.G.BHAGWAT
Chartered Accountants

Firm s Registration No.  101118
A hijeet Bhagwat

artner
em ership No.  136835

une 
21st ay, 2016
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st

` in lakhs
Particulars Note  

No.
As at  

31st March 2016
As at  

31st March 2015
A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 1 Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share Capital 2  12,409.54  12,409.54 
(b) Reserves & Surplus 3  83,371.84  66,330.45 
Sub-total - Shareholders' funds  95,781.38  78,739.99 

 2 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term borro ings 4  -   18,365.80 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 5  11,800.68  11,077.75 
(c) Other long-term liabilities 6  39.21  39.01 
(d) Long-term provisions 7  1,121.70  864.12 
Sub-total - Non-current liabilities  12,961.59  30,346.68 

 3 Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borro ings 8  11,171.20  40,340.14 
(b) Trade payables
  (i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises   1.4  60.22  25.19 
  (ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
    enterprises and small enterprises  24,258.53  19,974.91 
(c) Other current liabilities 9  22,670.24  13,417.16 
(d) Short-term provisions 10  15,045.24  3,070.66 
Sub-total - Current liabilities  73,205.43  76,828.06 
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  181,948.40  185,914.73 

B ASSETS
 1 Non-current assets

(a) Fixed assets 11
    (i) Tangible assets  84,697.96  86,485.32 
    (ii) Intangible assets  266.62  291.24 
    (iii) Capital ork-in-progress  661.56  1,039.74 
(b) Non-current investments 12  12,038.19  12,461.09 
(c) Deferred tax assets (net)  -   -  
(d) Long-term loans and advances 13  7,686.98  5,880.50 
(e) Other non-current assets 14  -   -  
Sub-total - Non-current assets  105,351.31  106,157.89 

 2 Current assets
(a) Current investments 15  16,765.05  5,505.00 
(b) Inventories 16  44,722.23  55,865.10 
(c) Trade receivables 17  1,762.92  4,870.44 
(d) Cash and bank balances 18  1,041.18  1,230.02 
(e) Short-term loans and advances 19  12,305.71  12,286.28 
Sub-total - Current assets  76,597.09  79,756.84 
TOTAL - ASSETS  181,948.40  185,914.73 

Notes to the nancial statements form an integral part of the balance sheet 1
As per our report of even date
For M/s P. G. Bhag at Prakash P. Chhabria Executive Chairman DIN: 00016017
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101118W Sanjay K. Asher DIN: 00008221

Kanaiyalal N. Atmaramani DIN: 00129768
Ritu P. Chhabria DIN: 00062144
Dara N. Damania DIN: 00403834

Abhijeet Bhag at Anil V. Whabi Saurabh S. Dhanorkar Managing Director DIN: 00011322
Partner Chief Financial Of cer Shrikrishna N. Inamdar DIN: 00025180
M. No. 136835 Prabhakar D. Karandikar DIN: 02142050

Umesh M. Gosavi Sanjay S. Math Director (Operations) DIN: 01874086
Company Secretary Dr. Sunil U. Pathak DIN: 00049315

Pune: 21st May, 2016 Pune: 21st May, 2016
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st

` in lakhs
Particulars Note  

No.
2015-16 2014-2015

Income
I Revenue from operations (Gross) 20  281,404.03  282,709.60 

Less : Excise Duty  (36,120.94)  (35,094.67)
II Other income 21  3,912.19  2,023.58 
III Total Revenue (I + II)  249,195.28  249,638.51 
IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 22  161,384.81  177,907.48 
Changes in inventories of nished goods, ork-in progress and 
stock-in-trade

23  3,337.79  5,384.92 

Employee bene ts expense 24  9,340.38  7,396.87 
Other expenses 25  33,709.30  35,817.07 
Finance costs 26  4,464.34  7,037.10 
Depreciation and amortization expense  5,057.36  5,867.42 
Total expenses  217,293.98  239,410.86 

V
(III - IV)

 31,901.30  10,227.65 

VI Exceptional items 1.13  (2,447.79)  2,149.59 
VII  34,349.09  8,078.06 
VIII Extraordinary Items  -   -  
IX  34,349.09  8,078.06 
X Tax expense:

Current tax  10,266.76  1,810.44 
Deferred tax  722.92  1,489.79 

 10,989.68  3,300.23 
XI  23,359.41  4,777.83 
XII  -   -  
XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations  -   -  
XIV

XIII)
 -   -  

XV  23,359.41  4,777.83 
XVI Earning per equity share (nominal value of share ` 10 each) 1.12

Basic  18.82  3.85 
Diluted   18.82  3.85 

Notes to the nancial statements form an integral part of the statement of 
pro t and loss

1

As per our report of even date
For M/s P. G. Bhag at Prakash P. Chhabria Executive Chairman DIN: 00016017
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101118W Sanjay K. Asher DIN: 00008221

Kanaiyalal N. Atmaramani DIN: 00129768
Ritu P. Chhabria DIN: 00062144
Dara N. Damania DIN: 00403834

Abhijeet Bhag at Anil V. Whabi Saurabh S. Dhanorkar Managing Director DIN: 00011322
Partner Chief Financial Of cer Shrikrishna N. Inamdar DIN: 00025180
M. No. 136835 Prabhakar D. Karandikar DIN: 02142050

Umesh M. Gosavi Sanjay S. Math Director (Operations) DIN: 01874086
Company Secretary Dr. Sunil U. Pathak DIN: 00049315

Pune: 21st May, 2016 Pune: 21st May, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement 
st

` in lakhs
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

A
           34,349.09 8,078.06 

Adjustments for :
Depreciation 5,057.36 5,867.42 
Provision for diminution in value of investments - 279.31 
Provision for doubtful deposits - 128.30 
Debit balances ritten off  99.67 513.41 
Pro t on sale of investments (net) (1,563.99) (900.68)
(Pro t) / Loss on sale of assets (net) 255.11 79.98 
Dividend income (492.66) (425.00)
Interest income (639.33) (56.81)
Interest expenses 4,210.61 5,726.11 
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities (496.73) 549.95 
Difference of Sales tax loan and net present value (1,056.68)  -  
CSR expenditure 352.83 383.36

40,075.28 20,223.39
Adjustments for :
Trade and other receivables 2,611.85 3,588.86 
Inventories 11,142.89 (5,270.48)
Trade and other payables 9,229.61 6,595.70 
Cash generated from operations 63,059.63 25,137.49
Less:
Taxes paid ( net of refund ) (6,626.58) (3,917.38)
Net cash from operating Activities (A) 56,433.05 21,220.11 

B
Purchase of xed assets/ capital expenditure (3261.13) (3121.34)
Sale of xed assets 138.82 52.49 
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments ( net ) (9,273.15) 4,800.67 
Interest received 639.33 56.81 
Dividend received 492.66 425.00 
Capital subsidy received 3,544.69  -  
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (7,718.78) 2,213.63 

C
Repayment of long term borro ings (12,309.13) (5,750.00)
Short term loans movement (28,949.43) (2,567.68)
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` in lakhs
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Interest paid (4,386.28) (5,789.21)
Dividend and corporate dividend tax paid (2,905.44) (9,794.95)
Dividend paid for earlier years - (10.41)

(48,550.28) (23,912.25)
A+B+C 163.99 (478.51)
CSR expenditure (352.83) (383.36)

(188.84) (861.87)
Opening balance of cash and cash e uivalents 1,230.02 2,091.89 
Closing balance of cash and cash e uivalents 1,041.18 1,230.02 
Refer Note 18

Notes:- 1) The above Cash Flo  Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard-3  
      on Cash Flo  Statement issued by ICAI.
   2) Previous year’s gures have been regrouped herever necessary to conform to the current year’s classi cation.

As per our report of even date
For M/s P. G. Bhag at Prakash P. Chhabria Executive Chairman DIN: 00016017
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101118W Sanjay K. Asher DIN: 00008221

Kanaiyalal N. Atmaramani DIN: 00129768
Ritu P. Chhabria DIN: 00062144
Dara N. Damania DIN: 00403834

Abhijeet Bhag at Anil V. Whabi Saurabh S. Dhanorkar Managing Director DIN: 00011322
Partner Chief Financial Of cer Shrikrishna N. Inamdar DIN: 00025180
M. No. 136835 Prabhakar D. Karandikar DIN: 02142050

Umesh M. Gosavi Sanjay S. Math Director (Operations) DIN: 01874086
Company Secretary Dr. Sunil U. Pathak DIN: 00049315

Pune: 21st May, 2016 Pune: 21st May, 2016
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Basis of preparation:
 The nancial statements o  the Company have een prepared in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles in India Indian GAA . The Company has prepared these 
nancial statements to comply in all material respects with the Accounting tandards 

speci ed under ection 133 o  the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 o  the Companies 
Accounts  Rules, 2014 and the relevant provision o  the Companies Act, 2013. The nancial 

statements have een prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual asis. 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation o  nancial statements are consistent 
with those o  the previous year. 
Use of estimates

 The preparation o  nancial statements in con ormity with Indian GAA  re uires the 
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that a ect the reported 
amounts o  revenues, expenses, current assets, non-current assets, current lia ilities and 
non-current lia ilities and the disclosure o  contingent lia ilities at the end o  the reporting 
period. Although these estimates are ased on the management s est knowledge o  current 
events and actions, uncertainty a out these assumptions and estimates could result in the 
outcomes re uiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts o  assets or lia ilities in 
uture periods.

Valuation of inventories:
 Inventories are valued at lower o  cost and net reali a le value. Cost is determined on moving 

weighted average method. Cost o  inventories comprises o  cost o  materials, conversion 
cost, other cost incurred in ringing the inventories to their present location and condition 
and excise duty wherever applica le.
Cash and cash equivalents: 

 Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with anks. Cash e uivalents are short 
term, highly li uid investments that are readily converti le into known amounts o  cash which 
are su ject to an insigni cant risk o  changes in value. 
Depreciation:

 epreciation on xed assets has een provided in a manner that amorti es the cost o  
the assets over their estimated use ul lives on straight line method as per the use ul li e 
prescri ed under chedule-   II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case o  Captive 

ower lant where the management, ased on a technical evaluation, have estimated the 
li e to e 25 years which is lower than the li e prescri ed in chedule  II

 Amortisation is provided in respect o  leasehold land over the period o  lease.
Revenue recognition:

 Revenue is recogni ed to the extent it is pro a le that the economic ene ts will ow to the 
company and the revenue can e relia ly measured. ale o  goods is recogni ed when the 
signi cant risks and rewards o  ownership o  the goods have passed to the uyer. 
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 here the a ility to assess the ultimate collection with reasona le certainty is lacking at 
the time o  raising any claim, revenue recognition is postponed to the extent o  uncertainty 
involved.   In such cases revenue is recogni ed only when it is reasona ly certain that the 
ultimate collection will e made.

 Interest income is recognised on a time proportion asis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the rate applica le. 

 ividend rom investments is not recogni ed in the pro t and loss statement until a right to 
receive payment is esta lished in the reporting period.
Fixed assets:

 Fixed Assets are stated at cost o  ac uisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. 
Attri uta le nance costs and expenses o  ringing the respective assets to working 
condition or their intended use are capitalised. Borrowing costs that are directly attri uta le 
to the ac uisition or production o  a uali ying asset are capitalised as part o  the cost o  
those assets. ther orrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they 
are incurred.
Foreign currency transactions:

 Initial recognition: A oreign currency transaction is recorded on initial recognition in the 
reporting currency y applying to the oreign currency amount, the exchange rate etween 
the reporting currency and the oreign currency at the date o  the transaction.  

 Conversion: At the year end, monetary items denominated in oreign currencies are converted 
into rupee e uivalents at the year-end exchange rates.   

 Exchange differences: All exchange di erences arising on settlement conversion on oreign 
currency transactions are included in the ro t and Loss tatement. 

 In accordance with CA noti cation on Accounting tandard 11 A  11 , in respect o  long 
term oreign currency loan taken or ac uisition o  assets, the exchange di erence arising on 
reporting o  said loan is adjusted to the cost o  the respective assets.

 Forward exchange contracts  The Company uses oreign exchange orward contracts and 
options to hedge its risks associated with oreign currency uctuations.

 Forward contracts options entered into to hedge oreign currency risk on underlying lia ilities 
are accounted as per Accounting tandard 11, The E ects o  changes in Foreign Exchange 
Rates . The premium arising at the inception o  such orward contracts options is amortised 
as expense over the li e o  the contract. Gains and losses arising on account o  roll over
cancellation o  orward contracts are recognised as income  expense o  the period in which 
such roll over cancellation takes place.

 Forward contracts options entered into to hedge oreign currency risk on unexecuted rm 
commitments are accounted, keeping in view the principle o  prudence as enunciated in A  
1, isclosure o  Accounting olicies  in pursuance o  the announcement o  the ICAI dated 

arch 29, 2008 on Accounting or erivative Losses. 
Accounting for Government Grants

 Government grants availa le to the enterprise are considered or inclusion in accounts  
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i  where there is reasona le assurance that the enterprise will comply with the conditions 
attached to them  and ii  where such ene ts have een earned y the enterprise and it is 
reasona ly certain that the ultimate collection will e made.

 Government grants in the nature o  promoters  contri ution, i.e., they are given with 
re erence to the total investment in undertaking or y way o  contri ution towards its total 
capital outlay and no repayment is ordinarily expected in respect thereo  are treated as 
capital reserve.

 Government grants related to revenue are recognised on a systematic asis in the 
statement o  pro t and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs which they are intended to compensate. uch grants are shown separately under 
other income .
Valuation of investments:

 Investments that are readily reali a le and intended to e held or not more than a year rom 
the date on which such investment is made are classi ed as current investments. All other 
investments are classi ed as long-term investments. 

 Current investments are carried at lower o  cost and air value determined on an individual 
investment asis.

 Long-term investments are carried at cost. owever, provision or diminution in value is 
made to recogni e a decline other than temporary in the value o  such investments.   

 I. hort term employee ene ts
 All employee ene ts paya le wholly within twelve months o  rendering the services are 

classi ed as short term employee ene ts. Bene ts such as salaries, wages, expected cost 
o  onus and short term compensated a sences, etc. is recogni ed in the period in which the 
employee renders the related service.

 II. ost-employment ene ts
a  e ned contri ution plans
 The Company s superannuation scheme, state governed provident und and employee 

state insurance scheme are de ned contri ution plans. The contri ution paid paya le 
under the scheme is recogni ed during the period in which the employee renders the 
related service.

 e ned ene t plans
 The employees  gratuity und scheme is the Company s de ned ene t plan. The 

present value o  the o ligation under such de ned ene t plan is determined ased 
on actuarial valuation using the rojected Unit Credit ethod, which recogni es each 
period o  service as giving rise to additional unit o  employee ene t entitlement 
and measures each unit separately to uild up the nal o ligation. The o ligation is 
measured at the present value o  the estimated uture cash ows. The discount rates 
used or determining the present value o  the o ligation under de ned ene t plan, is 

ased on the market yields on Government securities as at the alance sheet date, 
having maturity periods approximating to the terms o  related o ligations. Actuarial 
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gains and losses are recogni ed immediately in the ro t  Loss tatement. The air 
value o  the plan s assets is reduced rom the gross o ligation under the de ned ene t 
plans, to recogni e the o ligation on net asis. Gains or a loss on the curtailment or 
settlement o  the de ned ene t plan is recogni ed, when the curtailment or settlement 
occurs. ast service cost is recogni ed as expenses on a straight-line asis over the 
average period until the ene ts ecome vested.

 III. Long term employee ene ts
 The o ligation o  long term compensated a sences are recogni ed in the same manner 

as in the case o  de ned ene t plans as mentioned in note II  a ove. Accumulated 
leaves that are expected to e utili ed within the next 12 months are treated as short 
term employee ene ts.

Segment accounting:
 The Company s operating usinesses are organi ed and managed separately according to 

the nature o  products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic 
usiness unit that o ers di erent products and serves di erent markets. The analysis o  

geographical segments is ased on the areas in which major operating divisions o  the 
Company operate.

 Allocation o  common costs 
 Common alloca le costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contri ution 

o  each segment to the total common costs.
 Unalloca le items 
 Unalloca le items include general corporate income and expense items which are not 

allocated to any usiness segment.
 Inter-segment
 egment revenue rom intersegment transactions is accounted on the asis o  trans er price 

agreed etween the segments.
 egment accounting policies 
 The Company prepares its segment in ormation in con ormity with the accounting policies 

adopted or preparing and presenting the nancial statements o  the Company as a whole.
Accounting for leases:

 Assets taken on lease where signi cant portion o  risk and rewards incidental to the 
ownership are not trans erred are treated as operating leases. perating lease payments 
are recognised as an expense in the ro t and Loss tatement on straight line asis over 
the lease term. 
Earnings per share:

 Basic earnings per share is calculated y dividing the net pro t or loss or the period 
attri uta le to e uity hareholders y the weighted average num er o  e uity shares 
outstanding during the period.

 For the purpose o  calculating diluted earnings per share, the net pro t or loss or the period 
attri uta le to e uity shareholders and the weighted average num er o  shares outstanding 
during the period are adjusted or the e ects o  all dilutive potential e uity shares.
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Taxes on income:
 Tax on income or the current period is determined on the asis o  taxa le income a ter 

considering the various deductions availa le under The Income Tax Act, 1961.
 e erred tax is recogni ed on timing di erences etween the accounting income and the 

taxa le income or the year. The tax e ect is calculated on the accumulated timing di erences 
at the end o  the accounting period ased on prevailing enacted or su stantively enacted 
regulations. 

 e erred tax lia ilities are recogni ed or all timing di erences. e erred tax assets are 
recogni ed or deducti le timing di erences only to the extent there is reasona le certainty 
that su cient uture taxa le income will e availa le against which such de erred tax assets 
can e reali ed. At each reporting date the company reassesses the unrecogni ed de erred 
tax assets and reviews the de erred tax assets recogni ed.

 Intangible assets:
 Intangi le Assets are amortised over the use ul li e o  the assets on traight Line ethod 

over a period o  6 years.
 Research and development costs are expensed out as and when incurred, except or 

development costs which relate to the design and testing o  new or improved material, 
products or processes which are recogni ed as an asset, when it is expected that such 
assets will generate uture economic ene ts.
Impairment policy:

 The company assesses at each alance sheet date whether there is any indication that 
an asset or cash generating unit CGU  may e impaired. I  any such indication exists, the 
company estimates the recovera le amount o  the asset.  The recovera le amount is the 
higher o  an asset s or CGU s net selling price or its value in use. here the carrying amount 
o  an asset or CGU exceeds its recovera le amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to its recovera le amount.
Provisions:

 A provision is recogni ed when the Company has a present o ligation as a result o  past 
event, it is pro a le that an out ow o  resources em odying economic ene ts will e 
re uired to settle the o ligation and a relia le estimate can e made o  the amount o  the 
o ligation. rovisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined ased on 
the est estimate re uired to settle the o ligation at the reporting date. These estimates are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to re ect the current est estimates.

 Contingent liability:
 A contingent lia ility is a possi le o ligation that arises rom past events whose existence will 

e con rmed y the occurrence or non-occurrence o  one or more uncertain uture events 
eyond the control o  the Company or a present o ligation that is not recognised ecause 

it is not pro a le that an out ow o  resources will e re uired to settle the o ligation. A 
contingent lia ility also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a lia ility that cannot 
e recognised ecause it cannot e measured relia ly. The Company does not recognise a 

contingent lia ility ut discloses its existence in the nancial statements.
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16
As at 

31st March 15
Note 2 - Share Capital
Authorised:
150,000,000 (150,000,000) E uity Shares 
of ` 10 each  15,000.00  15,000.00 

Unclassi ed share capital  8,500.00  8,500.00 
 23,500.00  23,500.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
124,095,381 (124,095,381) E uity shares 
of ` 10 each fully paid  12,409.54  12,409.54 

 12,409.54  12,409.54 

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding 
at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting period:

 As At 31st March 2016  As At 31st March 2015 

 No.  ` in lakhs  No.  ` in lakhs 
At the beginning of the period  124,095,381  12,409.54  124,095,381  12,409.54 
Outstanding at the end of the period  124,095,381  12,409.54  124,095,381  12,409.54 

Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only class of e uity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of the e uity shares is entitled to 
one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 
subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. For year ended March 31, 2016, the amount of 
per share dividend recognised as distributed to e uity shareholders as ` 10 (March 31, 2015 ` 2)
In the event of li uidation of the company, the holders of e uity shares are entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts.The distribution ill be in proportion to the number of e uity shares held by the shareholders.

 As At 31st March 2016  As At 31st March 2015 
Details of shareholders holding more 
than 5% shares in the company: No. % of holding No. % of holding

E uity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Finolex Cables Ltd.  40,192,597 32.39%  40,192,597 32.39%
Orbit Electricals Private Limited  23,330,901 18.80%  23,330,901 18.80%
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16
As at 

31st March 15
Note 3 - Reserves and Surplus
Capital reserve
As per last balance sheet  60.54  60.54 

 60.54  60.54 
Share capital buyback reserve
As per last balance sheet  2,517.93  2,517.93 

 2,517.93  2,517.93 
Share premium
As per last balance sheet  15,126.81  15,126.81 

 15,126.81  15,126.81 
General reserve
As per last balance sheet  27,950.22  27,450.22 
Add : transferred from surplus  4,000.00  500.00 

 31,950.22  27,950.22 
Debenture redemption reserve
As per last balance sheet  7,500.00  7,500.00 

 7,500.00  7,500.00 
Contingency reserve
As per last balance sheet  1,215.00  1,215.00 

 1,215.00  1,215.00 
Capital Subsidy Reserve
As per last balance sheet  -   -  
Add: Claim for the period (Refer Note 1.16 a)  8,614.80  -  

 8,614.80  -  

Surplus at the beginning of the year  11,959.95  12,688.83 
Add: Excess Dividend tax provision reversed  3.00  -  
Less: As per Schedule II Note 7(b) of Companies Act, 2013 (Refer Note 1.14)  -   2,028.57 
Pro t for the year  23,359.41  4,777.83 
Less: Appropriations
- General reserve  4,000.00  500.00 
- Proposed dividend  12,409.53  2,481.91 
- Tax on dividend  2,526.29  496.23 
Net surplus in statement of pro t & loss  16,386.54  11,959.95 

Grand total  83,371.84  66,330.45 
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16
As at 

31st March 15
Note 4 - Long-Term Borrowings
Debentures
Secured
Nil (1000) 10.90% Secured redeemable non-convertible debentures of ` 1,000,000 each  -   10,000.00 
Refer Note no.1.1 for terms of redemption and nature of security
Term Loans
Secured
From Banks  -   6,250.00 
Deferred payment liabilities
Unsecured
Sales Tax deferral loan (Refer Note 1.16 b)  -   2,115.80 
Deferred sales tax loan is interest free and payable from March 2020.

 -   18,365.80 
Note 5 - Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (net)
Deferred tax liabilities
On depreciation  12,488.58  11,662.70 
Deferred tax assets
On provision for employee bene ts  (687.90)  (584.95)
Net  11,800.68  11,077.75 

Note 6 - Other long-term liabilities
Trade and security deposits  39.21  39.01 

 39.21  39.01 
Note 7 - Long-term provisions
Leave encashment (Refer Note 1.11)  552.56  366.48 
Gratuity (Refer Note 1.5)  569.14  497.64 

 1,121.70  864.12 
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` in lakhs

As at 
31st March 16

As at 
31st March 15

Note 8 - Short-term borrowings
Secured
Loans repayable on demand:
Acceptances from banks  11,131.71  29,909.28 
Working capital borro ings from banks  39.49  18.53 
(Refer Note 1.1)
Other loans:
Foreign currency short term loan from bank  -   10,412.33 

 11,171.20  40,340.14 

Note 9 - Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long term debts
Debentures
1000 (Nil) 10.90% Secured redeemable non-convertible debentures of  
` 1,000,000 each. 

 10,000.00  -  

Term loans from banks  -   5,000.00 
Interest accrued but not due on loans  293.83  469.49 
Unclaimed dividend  879.87  807.17 
Other payables 
Advances from customers  4,048.63  2,361.29 
Salary and reimbursement  1,866.78  1,215.13 
Statutory dues  4,182.21  2,835.93 
Provision for expenses  1,398.92  728.15 

 22,670.24  13,417.16 
Note 10 - Short-term provisions
Proposed dividend  12,409.53  2,481.91 
Tax on dividend  2,526.29  496.23 
Leave encashment (Refer Note 1.11)  43.53  34.11 

Gratuity (Refer Note 1.5)  65.89  58.41 
 15,045.24  3,070.66 
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16 
No. of Shares

As at 
31st March 15 
No. of Shares

As at 
31st March 16 

As at 
31st March 15 

Note 12 - Non - Current Investments 
Non-trade-Long term ( At Cost )
Quoted and Listed
Other Companies
E uity Shares of ` 2 each fully paid-up in Finolex 
Cables Ltd

 22,187,075  22,187,075 10,260.02 10,260.02 

E uity Shares of ` 2 each fully paid-up in Gulf Oil 
Corporation Ltd.

 9,900  9,900 1.21 1.21 

E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Gold 
Crest Finance Ltd.

 12,400  12,400 4.96 4.96 

(Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments ` 
62,320.23 lakhs (Previous year ` 63,195.74 lakhs))

10,266.19 10,266.19 
Unquoted
Associate Companies
E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Finolex 
Plasson Industries Private Ltd. 

 4,635,000  4,635,000 749.77 749.77 

E uity Shares of ` 1000 each fully paid-up in 
Rajsthan Olive Cultivation Ltd.

 -   7,500  -  75.00 

E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Pa as 
Port Ltd.

 49,994  49,994 5.00 5.00 

Others Companies
E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in I2IT 
Private Limited

 -   61,000,000  -  330.69 

(Net off diminution in value of ` NIL (Previous year 
` 279.31 lakhs))
E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Finolex 
Infrastructure Ltd.

 5,343,404  5,343,404 534.34 534.34 

Units of ` 100000 each fully paid-up in Peninsula 
Realty Fund

 483  500 482.79 500.00 

E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in The 
Saras at Co-op Bank Ltd

 1,000  1,000 0.10 0.10 

Sub total 1,772.00 2,194.90 
Total  12,038.19  12,461.09 

(Refer Note 1 (x) for basis of valuation)
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` in lakhs
As at

31st March 16
As at 

31st March 15

Note 13 - Long-term loans and advances
Unsecured - considered good

Security deposits  656.20  642.76 
Capital advances  633.92  102.75 
Other loans and advances 
Unsecured - considered good
Claims Receivable :
Under Package Scheme of Incentives  5,070.11  -  
Other  62.22  60.92 
Prepaid expenses  87.14  62.64 
Advance tax (Net off provision)  708.02  4,370.19 
Other deposits and advances 
Unsecured - considered good  469.37  641.24 
Doubtful  569.76  213.24 

 1,039.13  854.48 
Less : Provision for doubtful deposits & advances  (569.76)  (213.24)

 469.37  641.24 
 7,686.98  5,880.50 

Note 14 - Other non-current assets
Long term trade receivables
Unsecured - considered doubtful  12.96  12.96 
Less: provision for doubtful receivables  (12.96)  (12.96)

 -   -  
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16 
No. of Units

As at 
31st March 15 

No. of Units

As at 
31st March 16 

As at 
31st March 15

Note 15 - Current Investments
Quoted but not listed - Mutual Fund (MF) Units 
of ` 100 each 
Birla MF - BSL Cash Plus - Gro th  -   534,643  -   1,200.00 
ICICI Prudential Li uid Fund - Direct Plan - Gro th  1,205,314  -   2,700.00  -  
Quoted but not listed - Mutual Fund (MF) Units 
of ` 1000 each 
Axis MF - Axis Li uid Fund -Gro th  246,696  -   4,100.00  -  
Templeton MF - Templeton India Treasury Mgt A/c - 
Super Inst - Gro th

 -  57,482  -   1,200.00 

DSPBR Li uidity Fund - Gro th  -   54,991  -   1,100.00 
Reliance MF-Reliance Li uid Fund-Treasury Plan 
Gro th

 126,062  -   4,614.52  -  

SBI Premier Li uid Fund - Direct Plan - Gro th  225,390  -   5,350.53 -
Quoted and listed - Secured Redeemable index 
Linked NCD of ` 100000 each 
Citi Financial Consumer Finance India Limited  -   2,005  -   2,005.00 
Aggregate value of Quoted Investments  16,765.05  5,505.00 

(Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments ` 16,870.89 lakhs(Previous Year ` 5,559.51 lakhs))

(Refer note 1 (x) for basis valuation)
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16
As at 

31st March 15
Note 16 - Inventories
Ra  materials *  23,605.39  31,886.30 
Work-in-progress  3,746.79  3,703.34 
Finished goods  12,861.30  16,242.54 
Stores and spares  4,357.74  3,856.58 
Packing material  151.01  176.34 
* Includes goods in transit ` 5,473.37 lakhs (previous year ` 7,549.44 lakhs)
(Refer Note 1 (iii) for basis of valuation)  44,722.23  55,865.10 

Note 17- Trade receivables
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date of 
payment:
Unsecured - Considered good  190.00  168.11 
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from due date of payment:
Unsecured - Considered good  1,572.92  4,702.33 

 1,762.92  4,870.44 
Note 18 - Cash and bank Balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  24.56  32.94 
Balances ith banks in current accounts  136.76  389.91 
Balances ith banks for unpaid dividend  879.86  807.17 

 1,041.18  1,230.02 
Note 19 - Short term loans and advances
Others
Unsecured - Considered good
Advances to employees  22.86  16.08 
Advances to suppliers and others  1,059.47  1,083.91 

Prepaid expenses  269.67  264.92 
Advance tax (net off provision)  1,781.04  1,759.05 
Claims Receivable
 - Excise, Service Tax, Customs  4,394.47  4,557.21 
 - VAT and Sales Tax  4,778.20  4,605.11 

 12,305.71  12,286.28 
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` in lakhs
2015-16 2014-15

Note 20 - Revenue from operations
Sale of manufactured goods  279,154.21  280,265.64 
Other operating revenues  2,249.82  2,443.96 
Revenue from Operations (Gross)  281,404.03  282,709.60 
Less: Excise duty  36,120.94  35,094.67 
Net  245,283.09  247,614.93 
Details of Goods sold
Finished Goods
PVC  65,892.04  76,803.27 
PVC pipes and ttings  175,796.82 163,953.44
Po er (excluding captive)  31.69  317.55 
Others  3,562.54  6,540.67 

 245,283.09  247,614.93 
Note 21 - Other Income
Interest earned on
Overdues from customers  45.78  54.52 
Bank Deposits  72.74  -  
Others  520.81  2.29 
Dividend Received
From Long Term Investments  492.66  425.00 
Net gain on sale of current investments  1,564.00  900.67 

 4.50  4.54 
Other non-operating income
Sales tax deferral loan (Refer Note 1.16 b)  1,056.68  -  
Others  155.02  636.56 

 3,912.19  2,023.58 
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` in lakhs
2015-16 2014-15

Note 22 - Cost of materials consumed
Cost of Ra  material consumed  159,049.02  175,594.33 
Packing material consumed  2,335.79  2,313.15 

 161,384.81  177,907.48 
Details of raw material consumed
EDC  22,414.35  31,622.19 
Ethylene  27,603.09  30,028.15 
VCM  44,654.18  49,059.85 
Coal  6,966.09  6,368.69 
PVC (excluding captive)  17,469.60  29,839.94 
Others  39,941.71  28,675.51 

 159,049.02  175,594.33 

 3,337.79  5,384.92 
Inventories at the end of the year
Work in progress  3,746.79  3,703.34 
Finished goods  12,861.30  16,242.54 

 16,608.09  19,945.88 
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work in progress  3,703.34  3,312.92 
Finished goods  16,242.54  22,017.88 

 19,945.88  25,330.80 
Details of inventory
(a) Raw material
  EDC  4,695.92  9,427.02 
  Ethylene  10,181.95  15,272.31 
  VCM  3,022.71  202.85 
  Coal  1,347.10  2,352.68 
  PVC (excluding captive, including GIT)  1,312.85  892.49 
  Others  3,044.86  3,738.95 

 23,605.39  31,886.30 
(b) Work-in-progress
  PVC  515.48  578.18 
  VCM  213.28  256.94 
  PVC compound  2,894.22  2,838.32 
  Others  123.81  29.90 

 3,746.79  3,703.34 
(c) Finished goods 
  PVC  2,236.44  3,792.90 
  PVC pipes & ttings  9,869.28  12,041.64 
  Others  755.58  408.00 

 12,861.30  16,242.54 
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` in lakhs
2015-16 2014-15

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Commission  7,879.33  6,137.34 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds (Refer Note 1.5)  500.39  358.31 
Staff elfare expenses  960.66  901.22 
Total  9,340.38  7,396.87 
Note 25 - Other expenses
Po er and fuel  8,716.79  11,253.10 
Stores and spares consumed  4,190.26  3,696.16 
Other manufacturing expenses  7,804.85  7,017.73 
Rent  265.60  226.54 
Rates and taxes  780.73  1,097.22 
Insurance  431.60  462.70 
Repairs & maintenance (Buildings)  726.77  960.22 
Repairs & maintenance (Plant & machinery)  1,356.37  1,692.07 
Repairs & maintenance (Others)  319.15  312.11 
Communication expenses  212.29  176.81 
Travelling and conveyance  940.73  1,044.54 
Directors sitting fees  32.76  26.40 
Auditor’s remuneration :
 -Statutory audit fees  25.50  22.00 
 -Limited revie  fees  6.00  4.50 
 -Tax audit fees  5.00  5.00 
 -Certi cation  1.96  3.20 
 -Out Of pocket expenses  0.81  0.69 
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion  3,039.81  2,436.51 
Commission on sales  341.36  398.58 
Freight out ard & other selling expenses  1,256.86  1,441.05 
Donations (Refer Note 1.15)  15.57  285.21 
Loss on sale of assets  259.61  84.52 
Provision for diminution in value of non-current investment  -  279.31 
Legal and professional fees  1,029.52  1,027.59 
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 1.17)  352.83  383.36 
Provision for doubtful deposits  -  128.30 
Security expenses  503.98  495.16 

` in lakhs
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2015-16 2014-15
Foreign exchange loss (net)  287.52  228.09 
Miscellaneous Expenses  805.07  628.40 
Total  33,709.30  35,817.07 
Note 26 - Finance costs
Interest expense  2,069.39  3,911.15 
Other borro ing costs  253.73  250.59 
Premium on for ard exchange contracts  18.13  1,814.96 
Applicable net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations  2,123.09  1,060.40 
Total  4,464.34  7,037.10 
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1,000 privately placed 10.90  secured redeema le non-converti le de entures o  ` 10 lakhs 
each, aggregating to ` 10,000 lakhs 10.90  NC s  will e redeemed in 3 years ullet rom the 
date o  allotment i.e. 31st ecem er, 2013

Debentures
The outstanding amount paya le on 10.90  NC s o  ` 10,000 lakhs with the interest accrued 
there on ut unpaid and all other costs, charges, expenses and ees paya le to the de enture 
trustees namely Axis Trustee ervices Limited AT L  secured under the e enture Trust eed 
and creation o  simple mortgage on pari passu asis in avour o  AT L on immovea le properties 
o  the Company alling within the attery limit o  the site o  the Company s plant or manu acture 
o  C Resin, situated at illage Golap, istrict Ratnagiri in the tate o  aharashtra together 
with all uildings and structures thereon and all plants and machinery attached to the earth or 
permanently astened to anything attached to the earth.

The aggregate limits o  working capital orrowings o  ` 1,39,575 lakhs rom the Bank o  India 
Consortium together with all interest, li uidated damages, costs, charges and other moneys 
paya le under working capital consortium agreement sanction letters are secured y
i  ypothecation o  inventories and ook de ts  and
ii  Extension o  second e uita le mortgage, created in avour o  Bank o  India Consortium on 

pari passu asis with other second charge holder y deposit o  title deeds with Axis Bank 
Ltd. ABL , New elhi. ABL acting as an agent or Bank o  India Consortium, which ranks 
su se uent and su servient in rank o  priority over the rst e uita le mortgages created y 
deposit o  title deeds in respect o  immovea le properties alling within the attery limit o  the 
site o  the Company s plant or manu acture o  C Resin, situated at illage Golap, istrict 
Ratnagiri in the tate o  aharashtra together with all uildings and structures  thereon and 
all plant and machinery attached to the earth or permanently astened to anything attached 
to the earth.
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Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2015-16

Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2014-15
1.2 Contingent liabilities and commitments:

i)  Claims against the Company not ackno ledged as debt:
a)  Liabilities in respect of income tax matters for hich the Company has succeeded in 

appeal but Income Tax Department has gone in further appeal and exclusive of the 
effect of similar matters in respect of pending assessments

10.17  10.17 

b)  Liabilities in respect of income tax matters for hich the Company has gone in further 
appeal and exclusive of the effect of similar matters in respect of pending assessments

 502.06  930.29 

c)  Excise/Customs/Service Tax in respect of hich either sho  cause notice is received 
or the Company/Department is in appeal

 6,322.90  6,322.90 

d)  Sales Tax matters in respect of hich either sho  cause notice is received or the 
Company/Department is in appeal

 326.55  8,122.91 

e)  Amounts claimed by banks in respect of derivative transactions hich are under 
dispute not ackno ledged as debt is USD 20,821,480/- (USD 20,821,480/-)

  In vie  of counter claims of the Company against the banks, the facts and circumstances 
of the case and uncertainty of period for hich the litigations ill continue, a reliable 
estimate of the liability,if any, cannot be made. It is unlikely that there ill be a material 
liability on the Company on this account in the near future. Therefore, in vie  of hat 
is stated above no provision is re uired to be made out of the current year’s pro t.

  The company has been legally advised in respect of this issue con rming the aforesaid.

 13,794.95  13,022.56 

ii)  Commitments:
  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 

provided for (net of capital advances)
 3,471.22 104.89

1.3 A. Details of derivative instruments outstanding as at the balance sheet date Nil Nil
B. The Company has not hedged the following foreign currency exposures:

(i)  Borro ings grouped under :-
  (a) Secured Loans -USD 168.30 lakhs (645.69 lakhs)  11,150.80  40,355.06 

  (ii) (a) Trade Payables -USD 311.27 lakhs (182.39 lakhs)  20,623.12  11,399.09 
  (b) Trade Payables -EURO 0.0019 lakhs ( 0.0019 lakhs)  0.14  0.13 

The foreign currency exposure of ` 31,773.92 lakhs (` 41,228.40 lakhs) included above, hich are not hedged by derivative 
instruments, are naturally hedged by future earnings linked to foreign currency due to import parity of PVC resin.

1.4 Details relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Principal amount  60.22  25.19 
Interest due on above and unpaid interest  -  - 
Interest paid  -  - 
Payment made beyond appointment day  -  - 
Interest due and payable for the period of delay  -  - 
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid  -  - 
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeding years
The identi cation of suppliers as micro, small and medium enterprise de ned under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006” as done on the basis of information to the extent provided by the suppliers of the Company.
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1.5 Disclosure as per Accounting Standard 15 (Revised)
Amount of ` 500.39 lakhs (` 358.31.lakhs) is recognised as an expense and included in “Employees bene ts expense” (Note 
24) in the Pro t and Loss Statement.

(Revised).
Amount 

(` In lakhs)
Amount 

(` In lakhs)
Particulars As at  

31.03.16
As at  

31.03.15
a) Statement showing changes in the present value of the obligation 

 Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year  871.55  826.18 
 Interest cost  67.78  63.55 
 Current service cost  63.27  58.59 
 Bene ts paid  (48.64)  (63.72) 
 Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation  30.05 (13.05) 
 Present value of obligation as at the end of the year  984.01  871.55 

b) Statement showing changes in the fair value of planned assets
 Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  315.50  296.29 
 Expected return on plan assets  25.88  23.45 
 Contributions  64.68  57.41 
 Bene ts paid  (48.64)  (63.72) 
 Actuarial gain/ (loss) plan assets (8.44)  2.07 
 Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  348.98  315.50 

c) Amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet  
 Present value of obligation  984.01  871.55 
 Fair value of plan assets  (348.98)  (315.50) 
 Liability/(asset)  635.03  556.05 
 Unrecognised past service cost  -  - 
 Liability/(asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet  635.03  556.05 

d) 
 Current service cost  63.27  58.59 
 Interest cost  67.78  63.55 
 Expected return on plan assets  (25.88)  (23.45) 
 Net actuarial gain/(loss) recognised in the year  38.48 (15.12) 
 Past service cost  -  - 

 143.65  83.57 
e) Principal acturial assumptions at the balance sheet date

 Discount rate  8% p.a.  8% p.a. 
 Expected return on plan assets  8% p.a.  8% p.a. 
 Mortality as per Indian assured lives mortality (2006-08) ultimate
 Future salary increases  6% p.a.  6% p.a. 
 Disability  Nil  Nil 
 Attrition  1% p.a.  1% p.a. 
 Retirement 58 years  58 years 

The company expects to contribute ` 75.82 lakhs in the nancial year 2016-17 to ards funding of the gratuity plan
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Basis used to determine the overall expected return:
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) manages the investments of Employee Gratuity Scheme. Expected rate of return 
on investments is determined based on the assessment made by the LIC at the beginning of the year on the return expected 
on its existing portfolio, along ith the estimated incremental investments to be made during the year. Yield on the portfolio is 
calculated based on a suitable mark-up over the benchmark Government securities of similar maturities.

Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2015-16

Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2014-15
Particulars Percentage Percentage
Central Government Securities  24.16  23.86 
State Government Securities  22.24  16.14 
Other Approved Securities (Government Guaranteed Securities)  -  1.21 
Bonds and Debentures  26.36  39.32 
Fixed Deposits  27.07  14.20 
E uity Shares  0.17  4.67 
Money Market Instruments  -  0.02 
Mutual Fund  -  0.58 
Grand Total  100.00  100.00 
The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take into account in ation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Gratuity Plan:
The Company operates gratuity plan herein every employee is entitled to the bene t e uivalent to fteen days salary last 
dra n for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service or retirement hichever is earlier. 
The bene t vests after ve years of continuous service.

1.6 CIF Value of Imports:
Ra  materials * 116,333.72 153,209.07
Stores, spares and components 162.41 227.80
Capital goods 121.53 92.43
* Inclusive of high seas purchases

1.7 Earnings in foreign currencies:
F.O.B value of goods exported 16.23  - 

1.8 Consumption of Raw Materials:
Imported 134,030.10 155,277.47

84.27% 88.43%
Indigenous 25,018.92 20,316.86

15.73% 11.57%
Total  159,049.02 175,594.33

1.9 Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
Interest  301.90  450.20 
Subscription  22.51  34.79 
Travelling expenses  45.13  17.88 
Legal and Professional fees  71.35  21.36 
Sales promotion and others  85.06  - 
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1.10 Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures as re uired by Accounting Standard 18 ‘’Related Party Disclosures’’ are given 
belo :
A) Names of related parties and nature of relationship where control exists

 Name of the related Party Nature of relationship
   1. Pa as Port Limited Substantial interest (Associate)
B) Names of related parties with whom transactions have been entered into
   Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria - Executive Chairman Key management personnel
   Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar - Managing Director Key management personnel
   Mr. Sanjay S Math - Director Operations Key management personnel
   Finolex Cables Limited holding 32.39 % in the Company Associate Company
   Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited Associate Company
   Finprop Advisory Services Limited  Enterprises over hich key 

management personnel or their 
relatives exercise signi cant 

in uence

   Magnum Machine Technologies Limited

C) Transactions with Related Parties Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2015-16

Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2014-15
Nature of Transactions
I. Sales, Services and other income 
  Sale of goods
  Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  2,765.79  3,148.81 
  Reimbursement received of expenditure incurred  
  Finolex Cables Limited  4.28  124.94 
  Dividend Received  
  Finolex Cables Limited  399.37  354.99 
  Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  92.70  69.53 
II. Purchase of Material / Assets
  Purchase of Raw Material and Components
  Finolex Cables Limited  -  24.14 
  Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  0.95  1.25 
  Magnum Machine Technologies Limited  20.96  55.54 
  Purchase of Fixed Assets
  Finolex Cables Limited  -  5.27 
  Magnum Machine Technologies Limited  76.61  342.84 
III. Expenses
  Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
  Mr. Prakash P.Chhabria 956.42  373.86 
  Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar 225.37  133.10 
  Mr. Sanjay S. Math 180.65  99.21 
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C) Transactions with Related Parties Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2015-16

Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2014-15
  Services received
  Finprop Advisory Services Limited  -  14.23 
  Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  8.87  - 
  Rent
  Finolex Cables Limited  3.42  70.28 
  Reimbursement of Expenses Paid
  Finprop Advisory Services Limited  -  0.36 
  Dividend Paid
  Finolex Cables Limited  803.85  2,813.48 
  Amounts Outstanding
  Due to
  Finolex Cables Limited  0.04  0.04 
  Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  16.08  20.85 
  Due from
  Finolex Cables Limited  21.91  20.81 

1.11 Movement of Provision for Leave Encashment (` In lakhs) (` In lakhs)
Particulars 2015-16 2014-15
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year  400.59  331.39 
Provision made during the year  276.10  262.79 
Amount used during the year  80.60  193.59 
Unused amounts reversed during the year  -  - 
Carrying amount at the end of the year  596.09  400.59 

1.12 Earning per share
Basic
a) Pro t for the year 34,349.09 8,078.06
b) Less: Attributable tax thereto 10,989.68 3,300.23
c) Pro t after tax 23,359.41 4,777.83
Weighted average number of e uity shares used as denominator 124,095,381 124,095,381
Basic earning per share of nominal value of ` 10/- each 18.82 3.85
Note: There are no potential shares that have a dilutive effect on the EPS

1.13 Electricity duty exemption amounting to ` 2,447.79 lakhs for earlier periods, although it is another form of subsidy, is accounted 
in the Statement of Pro t and Loss and disclosed as an exceptional item. Exceptional item for the previous year includes 
settlement of claim against derivative and rite off of insurance claim on aircraft.

1.14 Effective from 1st April, 2014 the company had charged depreciation based on the revised useful life of the assets as per the 
re uirements of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 and in certain cases on the basis of technical evaluation. Conse uently, 
depreciation charged as lo er by ` 477.28 lakhs for the previous year. Further, carrying value of the assets hose useful life 

as already exhausted as on 1st April,2014, amounting to ` 3,073.12 lakhs and deferred tax credit of ` 1,044.55 lakhs thereon 
has been recognised in the opening balance of Retained Earnings.
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1.15 Particulars Amount 
(` in lakhs) 

2015-16

Amount 
(` in lakhs) 

2014-15
Donations include political contributions of ` 2 lakhs (` 280 lakhs) paid to follo ing 
political parties:
Bharatiya Janata Party  2.00  155.00 
Maharashtra Pradesh Nationalist Congress Party  -  50.00 
Shivsena  -  75.00 

1.16 a) In terms of eligibility certi cate and sanction letter received under Package Scheme of Incentives from Government of 
Maharashtra during the year, Industrial Promotion Subsidy of ` 8,614.80 lakhs in respect of the Company’s plant located at 
Ratnagiri, is accounted for as capital subsidy under Reserves and Surplus in the Balance Sheet. 

b) The Company during the current year has paid off its sales tax deferral loan of ` 2,115.80 lakhs at the net present value 
of ` 1,059.12 lakhs and has taken the balance amount of ` 1,056.68 lakhs to the Statement of Pro t and Loss under the 
heading other non operating income.

1.17 CSR Expenditure:
a) Amount re uired to be spent by the Company during the year is ` 317.24 lakhs.
b) Amount spent by the Company during the year is ` 352.83 lakhs.

1.18 Segment Reporting:
Primary Segment
Based on the guiding principle given in the Accounting Standard-17 “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institue of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the Company’s primary segments are PolyVinyl Chloride (PVC), Pipes & ttings and Po er.
The above business segments have been identi ed considering :
i)  The nature of the products
ii) The related risks and returns
iii) The internal nancial reporting systems
Revenue and expenses have been accounted for on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment . 
Revenue and expenses , hich relate to the enterprise as a hole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis 
, have been included under “Net unallocable (expenditure)/income”. Assets and liabilities hich relate to the enterprise as a 

hole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under “Other than segment”.
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Independent auditors’ Report

e have audited the accompanying consolidated nancial statements o  Finolex Industries 
Limited hereina ter re erred to as the olding Company  and its associate, comprising o  the 
Consolidated Balance heet as at 31st arch, 2016, the Consolidated tatement o  ro t and 
Loss, the Consolidated Cash Flow tatement or the year then ended, and a summary o  the 
signi cant accounting policies and other explanatory in ormation hereina ter re erred to as the 
consolidated nancial statements .

The olding Company s Board o  irectors is responsi le or the preparation o  these consolidated 
nancial statements in terms o  the re uirements o  the Companies Act, 2013 hereina ter re erred 

to as the Act  that give a true and air view o  the consolidated nancial position, consolidated 
nancial per ormance and consolidated cash ows o  the olding Company including its 

associate, in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting tandards speci ed under ection 133 o  the Act, read with Rule 7 o  the Companies 
Accounts  Rules, 2014.  The respective Board o  irectors o  the olding Company and its 

associate are responsi le or maintenance o  ade uate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions o  the Act or sa eguarding the assets o  the olding Company and its associate 
and or preventing and detecting rauds and other irregularities  the selection and application 
o  appropriate accounting policies  making judgments and estimates that are reasona le and 
prudent  and the design, implementation and maintenance o  ade uate internal nancial controls, 
that were operating e ectively or ensuring the accuracy and completeness o  the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation o  the consolidated nancial statements that 
give a true and air view and are ree rom material misstatement, whether due to raud or error, 
which have een used or the purpose o  preparation o  the consolidated nancial statements y 
the irectors o  the olding Company, as a oresaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility
ur responsi ility is to express an opinion on these consolidated nancial statements ased on 

our audit. hile conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions o  the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are re uired to e included in the audit 
report under the provisions o  the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

e conducted our audit in accordance with the tandards on Auditing speci ed under ection 
143 10  o  the Act. Those tandards re uire that we comply with ethical re uirements and plan 
and per orm the audit to o tain reasona le assurance a out whether the consolidated nancial 
statements are ree rom material misstatement. An audit involves per orming procedures to o tain 
audit evidence a out the amounts and the disclosures in the consolidated nancial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor s judgment, including the assessment o  the risks 
o  material misstatement o  the consolidated nancial statements, whether due to raud or error.  
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In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal nancial control relevant to the 
olding Company s preparation o  the consolidated nancial statements that give a true and air 

view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness o  the accounting policies used and the reasona leness 
o  the accounting estimates made y the olding Company s Board o  irectors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation o  the consolidated nancial statements.

e elieve that the audit evidence o tained y us and the audit evidence o tained y the other 
auditors in terms o  their reports re erred to in the ther atters paragraph elow, is su cient 
and appropriate to provide a asis or our audit opinion on the consolidated nancial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the est o  our in ormation and according to the explanations given to us, the 
a oresaid consolidated nancial statements give the in ormation re uired y the Act in the manner 
so re uired and give a true and air view in con ormity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, o  the consolidated state o  a airs o  the olding Company and its associate 
as at 31st arch, 2016 and their consolidated pro t and their consolidated cash ows or the year 
ended on that date.

Other Matters
The consolidated nancial statements include the olding Company Company s share o  net 
pro t o  Rs. 628.24 lakhs or the year ended 31st arch, 2016, in respect o  its associate, whose 
nancials statements have not een audited y. These nancial statements have een audited 
y other auditors whose reports have een urnished to us y the anagement and our opinion 

on the consolidated nancial statements, in so ar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect o  this associate and our report in terms o  su -sections 3  and 11  o  ection 
143 o  the Act, inso ar as it relates to the a oresaid associate, is ased solely on the reports o  
the other auditors.

ur opinion on the consolidated nancial statements, and our report on ther Legal and 
Regulatory Re uirements elow, is not modi ed in respect o  the a ove matters with respect to 
our reliance on the work done and the reports o  the other auditors and the nancial statements  
nancial in ormation certi ed y the anagement.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As re uired y ection 143 3  o  the Act, we report, to the extent applica le, that  

a  e have sought and o tained all the in ormation and explanations which to the est o  
our knowledge and elie  were necessary or the purposes o  our audit o  the a oresaid 
consolidated nancial statements.

 In our opinion, proper ooks o  account as re uired y law relating to preparation o  the 
a oresaid consolidated nancial statements have een kept so ar as it appears rom 
our examination o  those ooks and the reports o  the other auditors.

c  The Consolidated Balance heet, the Consolidated tatement o  ro t and Loss, and 
the Consolidated Cash Flow tatement dealt with y this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant ooks o  account maintained or the purpose o  preparation o  the 
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consolidated nancial statements.
d  In our opinion, the a oresaid consolidated nancial statements comply with the 

Accounting tandards speci ed under ection 133 o  the Act, read with Rule 7 o  the 
Companies Accounts  Rules, 2014. 

e  n the asis o  the written representations received rom the directors o  the olding 
Company as on 31st arch, 2016 taken on record y the Board o  irectors o  the 

olding Company and the reports o  the statutory auditors o  its associate company 
incorporated in India, none o  the directors o  the olding Company companies and 
associate company incorporated in India is dis uali ed as on 31st arch, 2016 rom 

eing appointed as a director in terms o  ection 164 2  o  the Act.
 ith respect to the ade uacy o  the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting 

o  the olding Company and its associate and the operating e ectiveness o  such 
controls, re er to our separate Report in Annexure I .

g  ith respect to the other matters to e included in the Auditor s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 o  the Companies Audit and Auditor s  Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the est o  our in ormation and according to the explanations given to us  

i. The consolidated nancial statements disclose the impact o  pending litigations 
on the consolidated nancial position o  the olding Company and its associate 

 Re er Note 1.1 to the consolidated nancial statements.

ii. The olding Company and its associate did not have any long term contracts 
including derivative contracts or which there were any material oreseea le 
losses.

iii. There has een no delay in trans erring amounts, re uired to e trans erred, to 
the Investor Education and rotection Fund y the olding Company and its 
associate company incorporated in India. 

For s P.G.BHAGWAT
Chartered Accountants

Firm s Registration No.  101118
A hijeet Bhagwat

artner
em ership No.  136835

une 
21st ay, 2016
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Annexure I
To the Independent Auditors  Report o  even date on the consolidated nancial statements o  
Finolex Industries Limited

 

In conjunction with our audit o  the consolidated nancial statements o  the Company as o  and 
or the year ended 31st arch, 2016, we have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial 
reporting o  Finolex Industries Limited hereina ter re erred to as the olding Company  and 
it s associate, which are companies incorporated in India, as o  that date.

The respective Board o  irectors o  the o  the olding company and its associate, which are 
companies incorporated in India, are responsi le or esta lishing and maintaining internal 
nancial controls ased on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria esta lished y 

the Company considering the essential components o  internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit o  Internal Financial Controls ver Financial Reporting issued y the Institute o  
Chartered Accountants o  India ICAI .  These responsi ilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance o  ade uate internal nancial controls that were operating e ectively or 
ensuring the orderly and e cient conduct o  its usiness, including adherence to the respective 
company s policies, the sa eguarding o  its assets, the prevention and detection o  rauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness o  the accounting records, and the timely preparation o  
relia le nancial in ormation, as re uired under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

ur responsi ility is to express an opinion on the olding Company and its associate s internal 
nancial controls over nancial reporting ased on our audit.  e conducted our audit in accordance 

with the Guidance Note on Audit o  Internal Financial Controls ver Financial Reporting the 
Guidance Note  issued y the ICAI and the tandards on Auditing, issued y ICAI and deemed 

to e prescri ed under section 143 10  o  the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applica le to 
an audit o  internal nancial controls, oth issued y the Institute o  Chartered Accountants o  
India. Those tandards and the Guidance Note re uire that we comply with ethical re uirements 
and plan and per orm the audit to o tain reasona le assurance a out whether ade uate internal 
nancial controls over nancial reporting was esta lished and maintained and i  such controls 

operated e ectively in all material respects.
ur audit involves per orming procedures to o tain audit evidence a out the ade uacy o  the 

internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting and their operating e ectiveness.  ur 
audit o  internal nancial controls over nancial reporting included o taining an understanding o  
internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating e ectiveness o  internal control ased 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor s judgement, including the 
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assessment o  the risks o  material misstatement o  the nancial statements, whether due to raud 
or error.

e elieve that the audit evidence we have o tained and the audit evidence o tained y the other 
auditors in terms o  their reports re erred to in the ther atters paragraph elow, is su cient and 
appropriate to provide a asis or our audit opinion on the olding Company and its associate s 
internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting.

A company s internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasona le assurance regarding the relia ility o  nancial reporting and the preparation o  
nancial statements or external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company s internal nancial control over nancial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that 1  pertain to the maintenance o  records that, in reasona le detail, 
accurately and airly re ect the transactions and dispositions o  the assets o  the company  2  
provide reasona le assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
o  nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures o  the company are eing made only in accordance with authorisations 
o  management and directors o  the company  and 3  provide reasona le assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection o  unauthorised ac uisition, use, or disposition o  the company s 
assets that could have a material e ect on the nancial statements.

Because o  the inherent limitations o  internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including 
the possi ility o  collusion or improper management override o  controls, material misstatements 
due to error or raud may occur and not e detected. Also, projections o  any evaluation o  the 
internal nancial controls over nancial reporting to uture periods are su ject to the risk that the 
internal nancial control over nancial reporting may ecome inade uate ecause o  changes 
in conditions, or that the degree o  compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the olding Company and its associate, which are companies incorporated in 
India, have, in all material respects, an ade uate internal nancial controls system over nancial 
reporting and such internal nancial controls over nancial reporting were operating e ectively 
as at 31st arch, 2016 ased on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria esta lished 
y the Company considering the essential components o  internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit o  Internal Financial Controls ver Financial Reporting issued y the Institute o  
Chartered Accountants o  India.

Other Matters

ur a oresaid reports under ection 143 3 i  o  the Act on the ade uacy and operating 
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e ectiveness o  the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting inso ar as it relates the 
associate company, which is a company incorporated in India, is ased on the corresponding 
reports o  the auditors o  the company incorporated in India.

For s .G.B AG AT
Chartered Accountants

Firm s Registration No.  101118
A hijeet Bhagwat

lace  une  artner
ate  21st ay, 2016  em ership No.  136835
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st

` in lakhs
Particulars Note  

No.
As at  

31st March 2016
A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 1 Shareholders’ Funds

(a) Share Capital 2  12,409.54 
(b) Reserves & Surplus 3  87,016.88 
Sub-total - Shareholders’ funds  99,426.42 

 2 Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-term borro ings  -   
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 4  11,800.68 
(c) Other long-term liabilities 5  39.21 
(d) Long-term provisions 6  1,121.70 
Sub-total - Non-current liabilities  12,961.59 

 3 Current liabilities
(a) Short-term borro ings 7  11,171.20 
(b) Trade payables
  (i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  60.22 
  (ii)    Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
    and small enterprisess  24,258.53 
(c) Other current liabilities 8  22,670.24 
(d) Short-term provisions 9  15,045.24 
Sub-total - Current liabilities  73,205.43 
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  185,593.44 

B ASSETS
 1 Non-current assets

(a) Fixed assets 10
  (i) Tangible assets  84,697.96 
     (ii) Intangible assets  266.62 
     (iii) Capital ork-in-progress  661.56 
(b) Non-current investments 11  15,683.23 
(c) Deferred tax assets (net)  -   
(d) Long-term loans and advances 12  7,686.98 
(e) Other non-current assets 13  -   
Sub-total - Non-current assets  108,996.35 

 2 Current assets
(a) Current investments 14  16,765.05 
(b) Inventories 15  44,722.23 
(c) Trade receivables 16  1,762.92 
(d) Cash and bank balances 17  1,041.18 
(e) Short-term loans and advances 18  12,305.71 
Sub-total - Current assets  76,597.09 
TOTAL - ASSETS 185,593.44

Notes to the nancial statements form an integral part of the consolidated balance sheet 1
As per our report of even date
For M/s P. G. Bhag at Prakash P. Chhabria Executive Chairman DIN: 00016017
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101118W Sanjay K. Asher DIN: 00008221

Kanaiyalal N. Atmaramani DIN: 00129768
Ritu P. Chhabria DIN: 00062144
Dara N. Damania DIN: 00403834

Abhijeet Bhag at Anil V. Whabi Saurabh S. Dhanorkar Managing Director DIN: 00011322
Partner Chief Financial Of cer Shrikrishna N. Inamdar DIN: 00025180
M. No. 136835 Prabhakar D. Karandikar DIN: 02142050

Umesh M. Gosavi Sanjay S. Math Director (Operations) DIN: 01874086
Company Secretary Dr. Sunil U. Pathak DIN: 00049315

Pune: 21st May, 2016 Pune: 21st May, 2016
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st

` in lakhs
Particulars Note  

No.
2015-16

Income
I Revenue from operations (Gross) 19  281,404.03 

Less : Excise Duty  (36,120.94)
II Other income 20  3,819.49 
III Total Revenue (I + II)  249,102.58 

IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21  161,384.81 
Changes in inventories of nished goods, ork-in progress and stock-in-trade 22  3,337.79 
Employee bene ts expense 23  9,340.38 
Other expenses 24  33,709.30 
Finance costs 25  4,464.34 
Depreciation and amortization expense  5,057.36 
Total expenses  217,293.98 

V  31,808.60 
VI Exceptional items 1.6  (2,447.79)
VII Pro t before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)  34,256.39 
VIII Extraordinary Items  - 
IX  34,256.39 
X Tax expense:

Current tax  10,266.76 
Deferred tax  722.92 

 10,989.68 
XI  23,266.71 
XII  -   
XIII Tax expense of discontinuing operations  -   
XIV  -   
XV  628.24 
XVI  23,894.95 
XVII Earning per equity share (nominal value of share ` 10 each) 1.4

Basic  19.26 
Diluted  19.26 

Notes to the nancial statements form an integral part of the consolidated statement of  
pro t and loss

1

As per our report of even date
For M/s P. G. Bhag at Prakash P. Chhabria Executive Chairman DIN: 00016017
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101118W Sanjay K. Asher DIN: 00008221

Kanaiyalal N. Atmaramani DIN: 00129768
Ritu P. Chhabria DIN: 00062144
Dara N. Damania DIN: 00403834

Abhijeet Bhag at Anil V. Whabi Saurabh S. Dhanorkar Managing Director DIN: 00011322
Partner Chief Financial Of cer Shrikrishna N. Inamdar DIN: 00025180
M. No. 136835 Prabhakar D. Karandikar DIN: 02142050

Umesh M. Gosavi Sanjay S. Math Director (Operations) DIN: 01874086
Company Secretary Dr. Sunil U. Pathak DIN: 00049315

Pune: 21st May, 2016 Pune: 21st May, 2016
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st

` in lakhs
Particulars 2015-16

A
34,884.63 

Adjustments for :
Depreciation 5,057.36 
Debit balances ritten off  99.67 
Pro t on sale of investments (net) (1,563.99)
(Pro t) / Loss on sale of assets (net) 255.11 
Dividend income (399.97)
Interest income (639.33)
Interest expenses 4,210.61 
Effect of exchange differences on translation of assets and liabilities (496.73) 
Difference of Sales tax loan and net present value (1,056.68)
CSR expenditure 352.83

40,703.51 
Adjustments for :
Trade and other receivables 2,611.85 
Inventories 11,142.89 
Trade and other payables 9,229.61 
Cash generated from operations 63,687.86
Less:
Taxes paid ( net of refund ) (6,626.58)
Net cash from operating Activities (A) 57,061.28 

B
Purchase of xed assets/ capital expenditure (3,261.13)
Sale of xed assets 138.82 
(Purchase)/Sale of Investments ( net ) (9,808.69)
Interest received 639.33 
Dividend received 399.97 
Capital subsidy received 3,544.69 
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (8,347.01)

C
Repayment of long term borro ings  (12,309.13)
Short term loans movement (28,949.43)
Interest paid  (4,386.28)
Dividend and corporate dividend tax paid (2,905.44)

(48,550.28)



131

Finolex Industries Limited

` in lakhs
Particulars 2015-16
A+B+C 163.99
CSR expenditure (352.83)

(188.84)
Opening balance of cash and cash e uivalents 1,230.02 
Closing balance of cash and cash e uivalents 1,041.18 
Refer Note 17

Note: The above Cash Flo  Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Accounting Standard-3  
    on Cash Flo  Statement issued by ICAI.

As per our report of even date
For M/s P. G. Bhag at Prakash P. Chhabria Executive Chairman DIN: 00016017
Chartered Accountants
FRN 101118W Sanjay K. Asher DIN: 00008221

Kanaiyalal N. Atmaramani DIN: 00129768
Ritu P. Chhabria DIN: 00062144
Dara N. Damania DIN: 00403834

Abhijeet Bhag at Anil V. Whabi Saurabh S. Dhanorkar Managing Director DIN: 00011322
Partner Chief Financial Of cer Shrikrishna N. Inamdar DIN: 00025180
M. No. 136835 Prabhakar D. Karandikar DIN: 02142050

Umesh M. Gosavi Sanjay S. Math Director (Operations) DIN: 01874086
Company Secretary Dr. Sunil U. Pathak DIN: 00049315

Pune: 21st May, 2016 Pune: 21st May, 2016
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The consolidated nancial statements relate to Finolex Industries Limited FIL  and its associate 
Finolex lasson Industries rivate Limited F IL .
Investment in Associate Company has een accounted under the e uity method as per 
Accounting tandard A  23 Accounting or Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial 

tatements , where y the investment is initially recorded at cost, identi ying any goodwill capital 
reserve arising at the time o  ac uisition. The carrying amount o  the investment is adjusted 
therea ter or the post ac uisition change in the Company s share o  net assets o  the Associate 
company.
The excess o  cost to the Company o  its investment in the Associate entity is set o  against the 
adjusted carrying amount o  the investment. istri utions received rom the Associate Company 
reduce the carrying amount o  the investment. 
The consolidated statement o  pro t and loss re ects the Company s share o  the results o  the 
operations o  the Associate Company.
Unrealised pro ts and losses resulting rom transactions etween the Associate and the Company 
are eliminated to the extent o  Company s interest in the associate.
The name o  associate, country o  incorporation, proportion o  ownership interest and reporting 
date considered in the Consolidated Financial tatements are as per the ta le mentioned elow

Name of the Company Country of Incorporation Proportion  of Ownership 
Interest of FIL

Reporting Date

Finolex Plasson Industries 
Pvt. Ltd.

India 46.35% 31st March 2016

Accounting policies o  Finolex Industries Limited are set out in Note 1  signi cant accounting 
policies o  the company.
The consolidated nancial statements have een prepared using uni orm accounting policies 
or like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent 
possi le, in the same manner as the Company s separate nancial statements except those 
speci ed elow.

igni cant Accounting olicies other than those adopted y Finolex Industries Limited
i  
 Raw materials and components, stores and spares are valued at lower o  cost or net 

reali a le value. Cost is determined on First In First ut FIF  asis. 
ii  
 Income rom services is recogni ed when the services are rendered or when the contracted 

milestone is achieved. 
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iii  Intangible assets:
 Intangi le assets are amortised over their estimated use ul li e on straight line method as 

ollows
 Technical now how- 10 Years 
 The estimated use ul li e o  the intangi le assets and the amortisation period are reviewed 

at the end o  each nancial year and the amortisation period is revised to re ect the 
changed pattern, i  any.

iv  Provisions:
 rovision or warranty o ligations is ased on technical evaluation and past Experience or 

trend.
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16
Note 2 - Share Capital
Authorised:
150,000,000 (150,000,000) E uity Shares of ` 10 each  15,000.00 
Unclassi ed share capital  8,500.00 

 23,500.00 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
124,095,381 (124,095,381) E uity shares of ` 10 each fully paid  12,409.54 

 12,409.54 

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting period:  As At 31st March 2016 

 No.  ` in lakhs 
At the beginning of the period  124,095,381  12,409.54 
Outstanding at the end of the period  124,095,381  12,409.54 

Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only class of e uity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of the e uity shares is entitled to one 
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. 
In the event of li uidation of the company, the holders of e uity shares are entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after 
distribution of all preferential amounts.The distribution ill be in proportion to the number of e uity shares held by the shareholders.

 As At 31st March 2016 
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company: No. % of holding
E uity shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Finolex Cables Ltd.  40,192,597 32.39%
Orbit Electricals Private Limited  23,330,901 18.80%
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16
Note 3 - Reserves and Surplus
Capital reserve
As per last balance sheet  60.54 

 60.54 
Share capital buyback reserve
As per last balance sheet  2,517.93 

 2,517.93 
Share premium
As per last balance sheet  15,126.81 

 15,126.81 
General reserve
As per last balance sheet  27,950.22 
Add : transferred from surplus  4,000.00 

 31,950.22 
Debenture redemption reserve
As per last balance sheet  7,500.00 

 7,500.00 
Contingency reserve
As per last balance sheet  1,215.00 

 1,215.00 
Capital Subsidy Reserve
As per last balance sheet  -   
Add: Claim for the period (Refer Note 1.7 a)  8,614.80 

 8,614.80 

Surplus at the beginning of the year  11,959.95 
Add: Excess Dividend tax provision reversed  3.00 
        Share of pro t of associate (Refer Note 1.8)  3,109.50 
Pro t for the year  23,894.95 
Less: Appropriations
          -General reserve  4,000.00 
          -Proposed dividend  12,409.53 
          -Tax on dividend  2,526.29 
Net surplus in statement of pro t & loss  20,031.58 

Grand total  87,016.88 
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16
Note 4 - Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (net)
Deferred tax liabilities
On depreciation  12,488.58 
Deferred tax assets
On provision for employee bene ts  (687.90)
Net  11,800.68 

Note 5 - Other long-term liabilities
Trade and security deposits  39.21 

 39.21 
Note 6 - Long-term provisions
Leave encashment  552.56 
Gratuity  569.14 

 1,121.70 
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` in lakhs

As at 
31st March 16

Note 7 - Short-term borrowings
Secured
Loans repayable on demand:
Acceptances from banks  11,131.71 
Working capital borro ings from banks  39.49 

 11,171.20 

Note 8 - Other current liabilities
Current maturities of long term debts
Debentures
1000 (Nil) 10.90% Secured redeemable non-convertible debentures of ` 1,000,000 each.  10,000.00 

Interest accrued but not due on loans  293.83 
Unclaimed dividend  879.87 
Other payables 
Advances from customers  4,048.63 
Salary and reimbursement  1,866.78 
Statutory dues  4,182.21 
Provision for expenses  1,398.92 

 22,670.24 
Note 9 - Short-term provisions
Proposed dividend  12,409.53 
Tax on dividend  2,526.29 
Leave encashment  43.53 

Gratuity  65.89 
 15,045.24 
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16 
No. of units

As at 
31st March 16 

Note 11 - Non - Current Investments 
Non-trade-Long term ( At Cost )
Quoted and Listed
Other Companies
E uity Shares of ` 2 each fully paid-up in Finolex Cables Ltd  22,187,075  10,260.02 
E uity Shares of ` 2 each fully paid-up in Gulf Oil Corporation Ltd.  9,900  1.21 
E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Gold Crest Finance Ltd.  12,400  4.96 
(Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments ` 62,320.23 lakhs)

 10,266.19 
Unquoted
Associate Companies
E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Finolex Plasson Industries Private Ltd. - At cost  4,635,000  389.84 
Add: Accumalated income from associate for previous years (Refer Note 1.8) 3,469.43
Less: Dividend received during the yesr (92.70)   
Add: Share in current year’s pro t of associate 628.24
Value of investment in associate 4,394.81
E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Pa as Port Ltd.  49,994 5.00
Others Companies
E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in Finolex Infrastructure Ltd.  5,343,404  534.34 
Units of ` 100000 each fully paid-up in Peninsula Realty Fund  483  482.79 
E uity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up in The Saras at Co-op Bank Ltd  1,000  0.10 

Sub total  5,417.04 
Total  15,683.23 
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16
Note 12 - Long-term loans and advances
Unsecured - considered good

Security deposits  656.20 
Capital advances  633.92 
Other loans and advances 
Unsecured - considered good
Claims Receivable :
Under Package Scheme of Incentives  5,070.11 
Other  62.22 
Prepaid expenses  87.14 
Advance tax (Net off provision)  708.02 
Other deposits and advances 
Unsecured - considered good  469.37 
Doubtful  569.76 

 1,039.13 
Less : Provision for doubtful deposits & advances  (569.76)

 469.37 
 7,686.98 

Note 13 - Other non-current assets
Long term trade receivables
Unsecured - considered doubtful  12.96 
Less: provision for doubtful receivables  (12.96)

 - 
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16 
No. of  units

As at 
31st March 16 

Note 14 - Current Investments
Quoted but not listed - Mutual Fund (MF) Units of ` 100 each 
ICICI Prudential Li uid Fund - Direct Plan - Gro th  1,205,314  2,700.00 
Quoted but not listed - Mutual Fund (MF) Units of ` 1000 each 
Axis MF - Axis Li uid Fund -Gro th  246,696  4,100.00 
Reliance MF-Reliance Li uid Fund-Treasury Plan Gro th  126,062  4,614.52 
SBI Premier Li uid Fund - Direct Plan - Gro th  225,390  5,350.53 
Aggregate value of Quoted Investments  16,765.05 

(Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments ` 16,870.89 lakhs) 
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` in lakhs
As at 

31st March 16 
Consolidated

Note 15 - Inventories
Ra  materials *  23,605.39 
Work-in-progress  3,746.79 
Finished goods  12,861.30 
Stores and spares  4,357.74 
Packing material  151.01 
* Includes goods in transit ` 5,473.37 lakhs

 44,722.23 

Note 16- Trade receivables
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from due date of payment:
Unsecured - Considered good  190.00 
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from due date of payment:
Unsecured - Considered good  1,572.92 

 1,762.92 
Note 17 - Cash and bank Balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  24.56 
Balances ith banks in current accounts  136.76 
Balances ith banks for unpaid dividend  879.86 

 1,041.18 
Note 18 - Short term loans and advances
Others
Unsecured - Considered good
Advances to employees  22.86 
Advances to suppliers and others  1,059.47 

Prepaid expenses  269.67 
Advance tax (net off provision)  1,781.04 
Claims Receivable
      - Excise, Service Tax, Customs  4,394.47 
      - VAT and Sales Tax  4,778.20 

 12,305.71 
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` in lakhs
2015-16

Note 19 - Revenue from operations
Sale of manufactured goods  279,154.21 
Other operating revenues  2,249.82 
Revenue from Operations (Gross)  281,404.03 
Less: Excise duty  (36,120.94) 
Net  245,283.09 
Details of Goods sold
Finished Goods
PVC  65,892.04 
PVC pipes and ttings  175,796.82 
Po er (excluding captive)  31.69 
Others  3,562.54 

 245,283.09 
Note 20 - Other Income
Interest earned on
Overdues from customers  45.78 
Bank Deposits  72.74 
Others  520.81 
Dividend Received
From Long Term Investments  399.96 
Net gain on sale of current investments  1,564.00 

 4.50 
Other non-operating income
Sales tax deferral loan (Refer Note 1.7 b)  1,056.68 
Others  155.02 

 3,819.49 
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` in lakhs
2015-16

Note 21 - Cost of materials consumed
Cost of Ra  material consumed  159,049.02 
Packing material consumed  2,335.79 

 161,384.81 
Details of raw material consumed
EDC  22,414.35 
Ethylene  27,603.09 
VCM  44,654.18 
Coal  6,966.09 
PVC (excluding captive)  17,469.60 
Others  39,941.71 

 159,049.02 

 3,337.79 
Inventories at the end of the year
Work in progress  3,746.79
Finished goods  12,861.30 

 16,608.09
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work in progress  3,703.34 
Finished goods  16,242.54 

 19,945.88 
Details of inventory
(a) Raw material
  EDC  4,695.92 
  Ethylene  10,181.95 
  VCM  3,022.71 
  Coal  1,347.10 
  PVC (excluding captive, including GIT)  1,312.85 
  Others  3,044.86 

 23,605.39 
(b) Work-in-progress
  PVC  515.48 
  VCM  213.28 
  PVC compound  2,894.22 
  Others  123.81 

 3,746.79 
(c) Finished goods 
  PVC  2,236.44 
  PVC pipes & ttings  9,869.28 
  Others  755.58 

 12,861.30 
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` in lakhs
2015-16

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and Commission  7,879.33 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds  500.39 
Staff elfare expenses  960.66 
Total  9,340.38 
Note 24 - Other expenses
Po er and fuel  8,716.79 
Stores and spares consumed  4,190.26 
Other manufacturing expenses  7,804.85 
Rent  265.60 
Rates and taxes  780.73 
Insurance  431.60 
Repairs & maintenance (Buildings)  726.77 
Repairs & maintenance (Plant & machinery)  1,356.37 
Repairs & maintenance (Others)  319.15 
Communication expenses  212.29 
Travelling and conveyance  940.73 
Directors sitting fees  32.76 
Auditor’s remuneration :
 -Statutory audit fees  25.50 
 -Limited revie  fees  6.00 
 -Tax audit fees  5.00 
 -Certi cation  1.96 
 -Out Of pocket expenses  0.81 
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion  3,039.81 
Commission on sales  341.36 
Freight out ard & other selling expenses  1,256.86 
Donations  15.57 
Loss on sale of assets  259.61 
Legal and professional fees  1,029.52 
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 1.5)  352.83 
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` in lakhs
2015-16

Security expenses  503.98 
Foreign exchange loss (net)  287.52 
Miscellaneous Expenses  805.07 
Total  33,709.30 
Note 25 - Finance costs
Interest expense  2,069.39 
Other borro ing costs  253.73 
Premium on for ard exchange contracts  18.13 
Applicable net loss on foreign currency transactions and translations  2,123.09 
Total  4,464.34 
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Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2015-16
1.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments:

i)  Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
a) Liabilities in respect of income tax matters for hich the Company has succeeded in appeal but Income 

Tax Department has gone in further appeal and exclusive of the effect of similar matters in respect of 
pending assessments

10.17

b) Liabilities in respect of income tax matters for hich the Company has gone in further appeal and 
exclusive of the effect of similar matters in respect of pending assessments

 502.06 

c) Excise/Customs/Service Tax in respect of hich either sho  cause notice is received or the Company/
Department is in appeal

 6,322.90 

d) Sales Tax matters in respect of hich either sho  cause notice is received or the Company/Department 
is in appeal:-

   Finolex Industries Limited  326.55 
   Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  872.91 
e) Amounts claimed by banks in respect of derivative transactions hich are under dispute not 

ackno ledged as debt is USD 20,821,480/- 
 In vie  of counter claims of the Company against the banks, the facts and circumstances of the case 

and uncertainty of period for hich the litigations ill continue, a reliable estimate of the liability,if any, 
cannot be made. It is unlikely that there ill be a material liability on the Company on this account in the 
near future. Therefore, in vie  of hat is stated above no provision is re uired to be made out of the 
current year’s pro t.

 The company has been legally advised in respect of this issue con rming the aforesaid.

 13,794.95 

f) Claims against associate not ackno ledged as debt.  68.85 
h) Guarantees issued by the banks on Associate's behalf.  2,156.66 

ii) Commitments:
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net off 

capital advances):-
  Finolex Industries Limited  3,471.22 
  Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited  322.72 

1.2 A. Details of derivative instruments outstanding as at the balance sheet date Nil
B.The Company has not hedged the following foreign currency exposures:

(i) Borro ings grouped under :-
  a) Secured Loans - 

       Finolex Industries Limited-USD 168.30 lakhs  11,150.80 
(ii) (a) Trade Payables -

        Finolex Industries Limited-USD 311.27 lakhs  20,623.12 
        Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited-USD 0.0026 lakhs  0.02 
     (b) Trade Payables 
     Finolex Industries Limited-EURO 0.0019 lakhs  0.14 
     Finolex Plasson Industries Private Limited-EURO 0.26 lakhs  19.55 
The foreign currency exposure of ` 31,773.92 lakhs out of ` 31,793.63 lakhs relating to Finolex Industries 
Limited included above, hich are not hedged by derivative instruments, are naturally hedged by future 
earnings linked to foreign currency due to import parity of PVC resin.
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1.3 Related Party Disclosures Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2015-16
Disclosures as re uired by Accounting Standard 18 ''Related Party Disclosures'' are given belo :
A) Names of related parties and nature of relationship where control exists

Name of the related Party Nature of relationship
1. Pa as Port Limited Substantial interest (Associate)
B) Names of related parties with whom transactions have been entered into
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria - Executive Chairman Key Managerial Person of Finolex Industries Limited
Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar - Managing Director
Mr. Sanjay S Math - Director Operations
Mr. K. P. Chhabria Key Managerial Person of Finolex Plasson Industries 

Private LimitedMr. V. K. Chhabria
Mr. M. S. Moorthy (Upto 11.01.2016)
Finolex Cables Limited holding 32.39 % in the Company Associate Company of Finolex Industries Limited
Plasson Limited, Israel Associates of entities having signi cant in uence on 

Finolex Plasson Industries Private LimitedMotay Limited (Upto 29.09.2015)
Rajasthan Olive Cultivation Limited * Partner in Joint Venture ith Finolex Plasson 

Industries Private Limited 
Finprop Advisory Services Limited Enterprises over hich key management 

personnel or their relatives exercise signi cant 
in uence 

Magnum Machine Technologies Limited
Kaya Soft are Private Ltd
International Institute of Information Technology
I2IT Private limted
C) Transactions with Related Parties

Nature of Transactions Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2015-16
I. Sales, Services and other income 
  Reimbursement received of expenditure incurred
   Finolex Cables Limited  4.28 
  Dividend Received
   Finolex Cables Limited  399.37 
II. Purchase of Material / Assets
   Purchase of Raw Material and Components
    Magnum Machine Technologies Limited  20.96 
    Plasson Ltd., Israel  8.53 
   Purchase of Fixed Assets
    Magnum Machine Technologies Limited  76.61 
III. Expenses
  Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
     Mr. Prakash.P. Chhabria  956.92 
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Nature of Transactions Amount 
(` In lakhs) 

2015-16
     Mr. Saurabh S. Dhanorkar  225.37 
     Mr. Sanjay S Math  180.65 
     Mr. K.P. Chhabria  0.50 
     Mr. V.K. Chhabria  128.88 
     Mr. M.S. Moorthy  33.64 
  Rent
   Finolex Cables Limited  3.42 
   Kaya Soft are Private Limited  9.89 
   l2lT Private Limited  9.97 
  Dividend Paid
   Finolex Cables Limited  823.85 
   Plaschin Ltd., Israel  67.30 
  Others
   International Institute of Information Technology  6.40 
   l2lT Private Limited  0.67 
  Amounts Outstanding
   Due to
     Finolex Cables Limited                                               0.04 
   Due from
     Finolex Cables Limited                                               21.91 
* The Board of Directors of the Associate Company have given consent/approval for the Associate Company to exit from 
M/s Rajasthan Olive Cultivation Ltd ("ROCL") at such time as may be deemed appropriate by the Associate Company. The 
terms and conditions for the Associate Company exiting ROCL hen nalized ill be placed before a meeting of the Board 
of Associate Company for due noting and record. Pending nalization of terms and conditions no effect of the proposed exit 
has been given in the nancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

1.4 Earning per share
Basic
a) Pro t for the year including Share in Associate's pro t 34,884.63
b) Less: Attributable tax thereto 10,989.68
c) Pro t after tax 23,894.95
Weighted average number of e uity shares used as denominator 124,095,381
Basic earning per shar of nominal value of ` 10/- each 19.26
Note: There are no potential shares that have a dilutive effect on the EPS

1.5 CSR expenditure
a) Amount re uired to be spent during the year:
    i) Finolex Industries Ltd. - ` 317.24 lakhs.
   ii) Finolex Plasson Industries Pvt. Ltd. - ` 35.38 lakhs.
b) Amount spent during the year:
    i) Finolex Industries Ltd. - ` 352.83 lakhs.
   ii) Finolex Plasson Industries Pvt. Ltd. - Nil.
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1.6 Electricity duty exemption amounting to ̀  2,447.79 lakhs for earlier periods, although it is another form of subsidy, is accounted 
in the Statement of Pro t and Loss and disclosed as an exceptional item. Exceptional item for the previous year includes 
settlement of claim against derivative and rite off of insurance claim on aircraft.

1.7 a) In terms of eligibility certi cate and sanction letter received under Package Scheme of Incentives from Government of 
Maharashtra during the year, Industrial Promotion Subsidy of ` 8,614.80 lakhs in respect of the Company’s plant located 
at Ratnagiri, is accounted for as capital subsidy under Reserves and Surplus in the Balance Sheet. 

b) The Company during the current year has paid off its sales tax deferral loan of ` 2,115.80 lakhs at the net present value 
of ` 1,059.12 lakhs and has taken the balance amount of ` 1,056.68 lakhs to the Statement of Pro t and Loss under the 
heading other non operating income.

1.8 As per the provisions of section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has prepared consolidated nancials 
statements for the rst time in the current year and as such previous gures have not been disclosed. 
Share in accumulated income of associate net off dividend received of ` 3,469.93 lakhs and Good ill of ` 359.93 lakhs on 
ac uisitions of share pertaining to earlier years is adjusted in retained earnings.
The Management has not consolidated Pa as Port Limited in hich the Company holds 49.99 % (` 5 lakhs) hich has not 
started its operations yet and does not have any material impact to the consolidated nancials statements.

1.9 Segment Reporting:
Primary Segment
Based on the guiding principle given in the Accounting Standard-17 “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institue of Chartered 
Accountants of India, the Company’s primary segments are PolyVinyl Chloride (PVC), Pipes & ttings and Po er.  
The above business segments have been identi ed considering :
i)   The nature of the products
ii)  The related risks and returns
iii) The internal nancial reporting systems
Revenue and expenses have been accounted for on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. 
Revenue and expenses, hich relate to the enterprise as a hole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, 
have been included under “Net unallocable (expenditure)/income”. Assets and liabilities hich relate to the enterprise as a 

hole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under “Other than segment”.
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NOTICE
N TICE is here y given that the thirty- th annual general meeting o  the em ers o  Finolex 
Industries Limited will e held on Thursday, 11th August, 2016 at 10.00 a.m. at irloskar Institute o  
Advanced anagement tudies, Gat No. 356  357, Near Tata Foundry aval, illage hamane, 
Taluka aval, istrict une - 410506 to transact the ollowing usiness

Ordinary business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited nancial statement including the consolidated 

nancial statements  o  the Company or the nancial year ended 31st arch, 2016 together 
with the reports o  the directors and the auditors.

2. To declare nal dividend on e uity shares or the nancial year ended 31st arch, 2016.
3. To appoint a director in place o  r. anjay . ath IN 01874086 , who retires y rotation 

and, eing eligi le, o ers himsel  or reappointment.
4. To consider, and, i  thought t, to pass the ollowing resolution as an ordinary resolution
 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions o  section 139 and other applica le provisions, 

i  any, o  the Companies Act, 2013, as amended,  read with Rule 3 7  o  the Companies Audit 
and Auditors  Rules, 2014, as amended, and urther ased on the recommendation o  the 
Audit Committee and the Board o  irectors the Board , the Company here y rati es the 
appointment o  s. . G. Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants Firm Registration No.101118  
as the tatutory Auditors o  the Company to hold o ce rom the conclusion o  this annual 
general meeting until the conclusion o  the annual general meeting o  the Company to e 
held in the nancial year 2017-18 on such remuneration and reim ursement o  out o  pocket 
expenses as may e mutually agreed etween the Board and the tatutory Auditors plus 
service tax and the Board e and is here y authori ed to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things as may e necessary, relevant, usual and  or expedient or implementing and 
giving e ect to this resolution.

5. To rati y the remuneration paya le to the Cost Auditors or the nancial year ending 31st 
arch, 2017 and to consider, and, i  thought t, to pass the ollowing resolution as an 

ordinary resolution
 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions o  section 148 and other applica le provisions, 

i  any, o  the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and the Companies Audit and Auditors  
Rules, 2014, as amended, the approval o  the Board o  irectors the Board  ased on 
the recommendation o  the Audit Committee and su ject to guidelines and approvals o  the 
Central Government as may e applica le, the appointment o  s. . R. Bhargave  Co., 
Cost Accountants to audit the cost records o  the Company or the nancial year ended 
31st arch, 2017 e and is here y rati ed at a consolidated remuneration o  ` 4,00,000 - 
Rupees our lakhs only  plus service tax, as applica le and out o  pocket expenses paya le 

to s. . R. Bhargave  Co., Cost Accountants.
 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board e and is here y authori ed to do or to authori e 

any person to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and give such directions as may 
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e considered necessary, relevant, usual, customary and  or expedient to give e ect to this 
resolution and or matters connected therewith or incidental thereto .

6. To consider, and, i  thought t, to pass the ollowing resolution as a special resolution
  pursuant to the provisions o  sections 42, 71 and other applica le 

provisions, i  any, o  the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, read with the Companies 
rospectus and Allotment o  ecurities  Rules, 2014, as amended, the Companies hare 

Capital and e entures  Rules, 2014, as amended, and in accordance with the provisions o  
the ecurities and Exchange Board o  India Issue and Listing o  e t ecurities  Regulations, 
2008 and EBI Listing ligations and isclosures Re uirements  Regulations 2015, the 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Circulars thereunder, as issued and amended rom 
time to time and the provisions o  the Articles o  Association o  the Company, the approval 
o  the em ers o  the Company e and is here y accorded to the Board o  irectors o  
the Company the Board  or making o er s  or invitation s  to su scri e to secured Non-
Converti le e entures NC s  on a private placement asis in one or more tranches 
during a period o  one year rom the date o  passing o  this resolution within the overall 

orrowing limits o  the Company, as approved y the em ers rom time to time.
 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board e and is here y authori ed to do all such acts, 

deeds and things and give such directions as may e considered necessary, relevant, usual, 
customary and or expedient to give e ect to this resolution including determining the terms 
and conditions o  the NC s.

7. To consider, and, i  thought t, to pass the ollowing resolution as an ordinary resolution  
  pursuant to the recommendation o  the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, the approval o  the Board o  irectors the Board  and pursuant to the 
provisions o  sections 196,197 and other applica le provisions o  the Companies Act, 2013, 
as amended, and the relevant Rules made thereunder, as amended read with chedule  o  
the Companies Act, 2013, as amended,, approval o  the em ers e and is here y accorded 
to reappoint r. rakash . Chha ria, as the hole-time irector designated as Executive 
Chairman IN 00016017 , rom 1st ecem er, 2016 to 30th Novem er, 2021 su ject to the 
approval o  the Central Government as may e re uired and on the terms and conditions 
as speci ed in the Explanatory tatement pursuant to section 102 1  o  the Companies Act, 
2013 annexed to this notice.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the dra t Agreement s  which is are placed e ore this meeting 
e and is are here y speci cally approved with li erty to the Board and or Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee o  the Company to alter and vary the terms and conditions o  the 
same in accordance with the applica le provisions o  the Companies Act, 2013 and  or any 
schedules thereto.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration as mentioned in the dra t Agreement s  
rom time to time shall e the minimum remuneration y way o  asic salary and  or 

varia le pay and other allowances not exceeding the limits speci ed under ection II o  
art II o  chedule  o  the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, or such other limits as may 
e prescri ed y the Government rom time to time as minimum remuneration paya le to  
r. rakash . Chha ria in case o  inade uate pro ts or no pro ts in any nancial year during 
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the currency o  his tenure as the hole-time irector, designated as Executive Chairman 
as may e re uired.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board e and is here y authorised to enhance, alter 
or vary rom time to time the scope and uantum o  remuneration, per uisites, ene ts 
and amenities paya le during the tenure o  the appointment o  r. rakash . Chha ria, 
provided that any revision in the uantum o  remuneration paya le to him shall not exceed 
the statutory limits speci ed under section 197 read with chedule  o  the Companies Act, 
2013 as amended, and shall e su ject to such approvals, sanctions, or permissions, as may 
e re uired or such revision in the remuneration.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board e and is here y authorised to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters, and things as may e necessary, usual or expedient to give e ect to the 
a ove resolution .

8. To consider, and, i  thought t, to pass the ollowing resolution as an ordinary resolution
 pursuant to the recommendation o  the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, the approval o  the Board o  irectors the Board  and pursuant to the 
provisions o  section 196,197 and other applica le provisions o  the Companies Act, 2013, 
as amended, and the Rules made thereunder, as amended read with chedule  o  the 
Companies Act, 2013, as amended, approval o  the em ers e and is here y accorded to 
appoint r. anjay . ath as anaging irector IN 01874086 , who shall e the hole-
time irector rom 1st ecem er, 2016 to 30th Novem er, 2021 su ject to the approval o  the 
Central Government as may e re uired and on the terms and conditions as speci ed in the 
Explanatory tatement pursuant to ection 102 1  o  the Companies Act, 2013 annexed to 
this notice.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board e and is here y authori ed to vary the existing 
terms o  appointment in such a manner that the terms o  appointment o  r. anjay . 

ath, hole-time irector designated as irector perations  shall stand terminated on 
30th Novem er, 2016.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the dra t Agreement s  which is are placed e ore this 
meeting e and are here y speci cally approved with li erty to the Board and or Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee o  the Company to alter and vary the terms and conditions o  
the same.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration as mentioned in the dra t Agreement s  
rom time to time shall e the minimum remuneration y way o  asic salary and  or varia le 

pay, and other allowances not exceeding the limits speci ed under ection II o  art II o  
chedule  o  the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, or any such other limits as may e 

prescri ed y the Government rom time to time as minimum remuneration paya le to r. 
anjay . ath in case o  inade uate pro ts or no pro ts in any nancial year during the 

currency o  his tenure as anaging irector, the hole-time irector, as may e re uired.
 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board e and is here y authorised to enhance, alter or 

vary rom time to time the scope and uantum o  remuneration, per uisites, ene ts and 
amenities paya le during the tenure o  the appointment o  r. anjay . ath, provided that 
any revision in the uantum o  remuneration paya le to him shall not exceed the statutory 
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limits speci ed under section 197 read with chedule  o  the Companies Act, 2013, as 
amended, and shall e su ject to such approvals, sanctions, or permissions, as may e 
re uired or such revision in the remuneration.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board e and is here y authorised to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters, and things as may e necessary, usual or expedient to give e ect to the 
a ove resolution.

By rder o  the Board o  irectors
For Finolex Industries Limited

lace  une  Umesh M. Gosavi 
ate   21st ay, 2016    Company ecretary
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NOTES:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE 
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING. 

 A person can act as proxy on ehal  o  em ers not exceeding ty 50  and holding in 
aggregate not more than ten 10  percent o  the total paid-up share capital o  the Company. 

 A proxy orm is enclosed herewith.

 The register o  the proxy will e availa le or inspection at the registered o ce o  the 
Company on all working days except aturday, unday and u lic olidays during usiness 
hours i.e. 10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m.  o  the Company. 

2. The Explanatory tatement pursuant to section 102 1  o  the Companies Act, 2013, in 
respect o  special usinesses under Item Nos. 5 ve  to 8 eight  is annexed hereto.

3. The register o  mem ers and the share trans er ooks o  the Company will remain closed 
rom 30th uly, 2016 to 11th August, 2016, oth days inclusive or the purpose o  the payment 
o  dividend or the nancial year ended 31st arch 2016.

4. ividend, i  declared at the eeting, will e credited  dispatched etween 17th August, 2016 
to 26th August, 2016 to those em ers whose names appear on the register o  mem ers o  
the Company as on 11th August, 2016 or on the register o  ene cial owners maintained y 
the depositories as at the close o  their usiness hours on 29th uly, 2016.

5. oting through electronic means

a  In compliance with provisions o  section 108 o  the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
20 o  the Companies anagement and Administration  Rules, 2014, as su stituted 
vide Noti cation F. No. 01 34 2013-CL- - art-II dated arch 19, 2015 enacting the 
Companies anagement and Administration  Amendment Rules, 2015, the Company 
is pleased to provide em ers, the acility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions 
proposed to e passed at the 35th eeting y electronic means and the usiness 
may e transacted through e-voting services provided y Central epository ervices 
India  Limited C L .

 em ers may cast their votes using an electronic voting system rom a place other 
than the venue o  the eeting remote e-voting .

 The em ers who have cast their vote y remote e-voting may also attend the 
eeting ut shall not e entitled to cast their vote again.

 In terms o  the Regulation 44 o  EBI Listing ligations and isclosure Re uirements  
Regulations, 2015, the em ers are re uested to cast their votes through e-voting as 
explained a ove. Further pursuant to the said Regulations, the em ers who do not 
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have access to e-voting facility may also cast their vote by returning the enclosed 
ballot form on or before 5.00 p.m. of 10th August, 2016 to the scrutini er ( ll in the 
enclosed Ballot Form and post it to the Scrutinizer at the investors’ grievance address 
mentioned in this annual report) or polling paper at the Meeting. Instructions for 
casting votes by ballot can be found on the ballot form.

 Members who have not exercised their voting rights either through e-voting or ballot 
may exercise their voting right at the Meeting in a manner provided in the Companies 
Act, 2013.

b) The instructions for Members voting electronically are as under:
(i) The voting period begins on Monday, 8th August, 2016 at 9.30 a.m. and ends on 

Wednesday, 10th August, 2016 at 5.00 p.m. During this period, Members of the 
Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 
the cut-off date (record date) of 4th August, 2016 may cast their vote electronically. 
The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Members who have already voted prior to the Meeting date would not be entitled 
to vote at the Meeting venue.

(iii) The Members should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
(iv) Click on Shareholders.
(v) Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits bene ciary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number 

registered with the Company. Members holding multiple folios are 
requested to get their holdings consolidated.

(vi) Next enter the Image Veri cation as displayed and Click on Login.
(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.

com and voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password 
is to be used. 

(viii) If you are a rst time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat Members 
as well as physical Members)
• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use 

the rst two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN eld.
• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the number after 

the rst two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence 
number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN eld.
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Dividend Bank 
Details
OR Date of Birth 
(DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or 
in the company records in order to login.
• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id / folio number 

in the Dividend Bank details eld as mentioned in instruction (v).

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company 
selection screen. However, Members holding shares in demat form will now 
reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter 
their login password in the new password eld. indly note that this password 
is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for 
e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
con dential.

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for 
e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xii) Click on the EVSN of FINOLEX INDUSTRIES LIMITED. on which you choose to 
vote.

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against 
the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option 
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LIN ” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details.

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A 
con rmation box will be displayed. If you wish to con rm your vote, click on “O ”, 
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to 
modify your vote.

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” 
option on the Voting page.

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User 
ID and the image veri cation code and click on Forgot Password  enter the 
details as prompted by the system.

(xix) 

Non-Individual Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and 
Custodian are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 
themselves as Corporates.
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A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the 
entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details, a Compliance User should be created 
using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able 
to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.
evoting cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be 
able to cast their vote. 

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney which they 
have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF 
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xx) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the 
Frequently Asked uestions (“FA s”) and e-voting manual available at www.
evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting
cdslindia.com.

(c)  Mr. Sridhar G. Mudaliar, Partner, SVD  Associates, Company Secretaries, has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner.

 The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of the e-voting period, unblock 
the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the 
Company and make, not later than three (3) days of conclusion of the Meeting, a 
consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith 
to the Chairman of the Company or a person authorized by him in writing who shall 
countersign the same.

 The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the 
Company’s website www. nolexwater.com and on the website of CDSL immediately 
after the result is declared by the Chairman and communicated to the National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited  BSE Limited.

6. The details of the Whole-time Directors proposed to be re-appointed as required under 
Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2016 are given in the explanatory statement which forms part of this notice.

 The details of Mr. Sanjay S. Math (DIN 01874086), who is proposed to be re-appointed 
as director liable to retire by rotation, are given in Item no. 8 of the Explanatory Statement 
attached hereto.

7. Members whose shareholding is in the dematerialized form are requested to direct the 
change of address noti cations and updations of bank/mandate/ECS details to their 
respective depository participants. Members holding shares in physical form may please 
send  such details to  the  Company  at  its  Investor Relations  Centre  at  D1/10, MIDC, 
Chinchwad, Pune 411 019 quoting their folio numbers.
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8. Since the scrip of the Company is mandated for trading compulsorily in demat form, 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider dematerializing the 
same.

9. Members who have not appointed nominees are requested to appoint nominees. The 
prescribed form for appointment of nominee / change in nomination are available on 
website.

10. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of 
the Company for the nancial year ended 31st March, 2016 are requested to address their 
questions to the Company Secretary at the registered of ce of the Company so as to reach 
on or before 31st uly, 2016 so that the requested information may be made available.

11. Please ensure that copies of PAN card(s) of all transferees/legal heirs while lodging 
requests for share transfer/transmission of shares are enclosed. In the absence of such 
PAN card copies, the Company cannot give effect to the requests for transfer/transmission/
name deletion etc.

12. Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of section 124 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, and rules made thereunder, 
as amended. The dividend remaining unclaimed / unpaid for the period of seven (7) years 
from the date of transfer to “Unclaimed Dividend Account” shall be credited to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund set up by the Central Government. Members are also 
requested to furnish Bank Account No., name of the Bank, Branch, IFSC Code and Place 
with PIN Code No. where the account is maintained to prevent fraudulent encashment of 
dividend warrants. 

13. Members are requested to bring their copies of the annual reports and the attendance 
slips duly lled-in to the Meeting. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to 
bring their Client ID and Depository Participant (DP) ID numbers for easy identi cation for 
attendance at the Meeting.

14. Pursuant to the provisions of Rule 18 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 that a Company can send annual report by electronic mail (e-mail address) to 
the Members as per the records of the Company or as provided by depositories. As such, 
Members holding shares in physical form are advised to forward their e-mail addresses to 
the Company for registration at e-mail address investors nolexind.com and Members 
holding shares in dematerialized form are requested register or update their e-mail 
addresses with the concerned depository participants to enable the Company to send the 
soft copy of the annual report by e-mail. It is also clari ed that in case any Member desires 
to get a hard copy of annual report, the same would be sent to the Member free of cost. 
Members are further advised to mention their e-mail addresses and land-line and mobile 
nos. in all correspondence for quick communication.

15. All documents referred to in the notice and explanatory statement annexed thereto will be 
available for inspection at the Company’s registered of ce during normal business hours 
on working days except Saturday, Sunday and Public Holidays during business hours i.e. 
10.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m.) of the Company upto the date of the Meeting.
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16. The Company has in house share transfer activity situated at the address mentioned in the 
Investor Relations Center.

17. Route map showing directions to the venue of the Meeting is given on page 184.

st May, 2016.
Item No. 5
In terms of the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) the Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) at its meeting held on 21st May, 2016 has, on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s. S. R. Bhargave  Co., Cost Auditor, for the 
audit of cost records maintained by the Company as per the requirements of the Act and Rules 
made thereunder for the nancial year ending 31st March, 2017. As approved by the Board, the 
annual remuneration payable to M/s. S. R. Bhargave  Co. for  the nancial year ending 31st 
March, 2017 is ` 4,00,000 and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses at actuals plus service 
tax, as applicable.

M/s. S. R. Bhargave  Co. have submitted a letter regarding their eligibility for appointment as 
Cost Auditors.

As per rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of M/s. S. R. 
Bhargave  Co., Cost Auditor shall be rati ed by the Members. Hence, this resolution is put for 
consideration of the Members.

None of the directors or key managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives are 
concerned or interested, nancially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item no. 5, except as 
Members of the Company.

Item No. 6
Pursuant to the provisions of section 42 of the Act read with the Companies (Prospectus and 
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 
2014, (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Rules”), the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015, a company offering or making an invitation 
to subscribe to secured Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) on a private placement basis is 
required to obtain the prior approval of the Members by way of a special resolution. Such an 
approval by way of special resolution can be obtained once a year for all the offers and invitations 
for such NCDs during the year.

NCDs issued on private placement basis are a signi cant source of borrowings for the Company. 
The secured borrowings of the Company as on 31st March, 2016 aggregate to ` 21,171.20 lakhs 
(approximately), of which, NCDs aggregate to approximately ` 10,000.00  lakhs. 

The approval of the Members is being sought by way of a special resolution under sections 42 
and 71 of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder to enable the Company to offer or invite 
subscription for secured NCDs on a private placement basis, in one or more tranches during 
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the period of one year from the date of passing of the resolution at Item No. 6, within the overall 
borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the Members from time to time.

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item no. 6 for approval of the Members.

None of the directors or key managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned 
or interested, nancially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item no. 6.

Item No. 7
Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria, Whole-time Director designated as Executive Chairman was appointed 
at the Annual General Meeting held on 11th August, 2012 from 11th August, 2012 till the expiry of 
the term of his of ce on 30th November, 2016.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”), on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, at a meeting held on 21st May, 2016 considered reappointment of Mr. 
Prakash P. Chhabria, Whole-time Director designated as Executive Chairman for a period of ve 
(5) years from 1st December, 2016 to 30th November, 2021 on the terms and conditions including 
remuneration to be paid including in case of inadequate pro ts or no pro ts in the manner set out 
in the draft Agreement to be entered into by the Company with Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria subject 
to necessary approvals, sanctions, or permissions.

The main terms and conditions of the draft Agreement to be entered into by the Company with Mr. 
Prakash P. Chhabria are as under:

A. 

 From 1st December, 2016 to 30th November, 2021.  

B. Remuneration

 The Company shall pay to Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria in consideration of his duties a basic 
salary as under in the scale of ̀  8.00 lakhs to ̀  25.00 lakhs per month with annual increment 
as may be decided by the Board and/ or Nomination and Remuneration Committee within 
the abovementioned scale:

 Basic salary for the period beginning on 1st December, 2016: `.8,97,560/- per month.

C. Commission

 Commission as such percentage of the net pro ts of the Company computed in the manner 
laid down under section 198 of the Act or such amount as the Board may determine subject 
to a minimum commission being equivalent to the annual salary.

D. 

 In addition to the Salary and Commission as stated above, Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria shall be 
entitled to the following allowances / perquisites as per policy.

i. Housing- Rent free furnished accommodation. In case no accommodation is provided 
by the Company, Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria shall be paid 30  of basic salary as House 
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Rent Allowance

ii. Soft furnishing allowance.

iii. Reimbursement of gas, electricity and water charges.

iv. Bonus/Ex-gratia as announced by the Company.

v. Medical allowance including reimbursement as per the rules of the Company.

vi. Club fees: Subject to a maximum of two clubs including admission and life membership 
fees.

vii. Leave with full pay and all allowances as per the rules of the Company, but not 
exceeding one month’s leave for eleven (11) months’ service and in addition two 
weeks leave every third year.

viii. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure as per the rules of the Company.  

ix. Leave Travel Concession: For self and members of his family as per the rules of the 
Company.

x. Personal Accident Insurance as per the rules of the Company.

xi. Company’s contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund, special allowance and 
gratuity fund or payment in lieu of the said bene ts as per the rules of the Company.

xii. Free use of motor car with driver provided by the Company for business purposes 
and the Company paying for all expenses including running, maintenance expenses 
whatsoever incurred in respect thereof.

xiii. Telephone: Free landline facility at residence and mobile phone facility that is to say all 
charges including rentals, call and internet charges etc. shall be paid by the company 
in full. Personal long distance calls to be billed by the Company to Mr. Prakash P. 
Chhabria.

xiv. Retirement and other bene ts, as per rules of the Company.

E. Minimum Remuneration

i. In the event of inadequate pro ts or no pro ts in any nancial year during the tenure 
of the Agreement, the salary mentioned in paragraph B and allowances/ perquisites 
mentioned in D above, shall be the minimum remuneration payable to Mr. Prakash P. 
Chhabria subject to necessary approvals and other applicable provisions of the Act.

F. 

i. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria shall have the substantial powers of management of the 
affairs of the Company and shall exercise and perform such powers and duties as the 
Board from time to time determines.
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ii. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria is entrusted with substantial powers of management and 
shall work under the superintendence, control and direction of the Board. He shall 
have the powers of general conduct and management of business and affairs of the 
Company except in the matters which may be speci cally required to be done by the 
Board either by the Act or by the Articles of Association of the Company.

iii. During his employment with the Company, Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria shall devote such 
time and attention to the business and affairs of the Company as may be necessary 
and shall use his best endeavors to promote its interest and welfare.

iv. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria shall also be entitled to reimbursement of entertainment or 
other business promotion expenses actually incurred in the course of business of the 
Company.

v. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria, so long as he functions as Whole-time Director designated 
as Executive Chairman, shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the meetings of 
the Board or of any Committees thereof.

vi. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria shall not, so long as he functions as Whole-time Director 
designated as Executive Chairman, become interested or otherwise concerned 
directly or through his wife and/or minor children in any selling agency of the Company 
without prior approval of the Central Government or such authority as authorised 
under the law.

vii. Either party shall be entitled to determine the Agreement by giving to the other advance 
notice of six (6) months or by giving in cash the basic salary for six (6) months in lieu 
of the notice.

 The aforesaid may be treated as details of the terms and conditions of the reappointment 
and remuneration, including revision thereof, payable to Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria as Whole-
time Director designated as Executive Chairman of the Company pursuant to Section 196 of 
the Act.

 The additional information on Whole-time Director recommended for reappointment required 
under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is given in the page no.169 of this report.

 The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item no.7 for approval of the Members.

 None of the directors except Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria and Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria or key 
managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, 
nancially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item no. 7.

Item No. 8

Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Whole-time Director designated as Director (Operations) was appointed at 
the Annual General Meeting held on 11th August, 2012 from 4th February, 2012 till the expiry of the 
term of the of ce on 3rd February, 2017.
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The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, at a meeting 
held on 21st May, 2016 considered reappointment of Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Managing Director who 
shall be Whole-time Director for a period of ve (5) years with effect from 1st December, 2016 on 
the terms and conditions including remuneration to be paid including in case of inadequate pro ts 
or no pro ts in the manner set out in the draft Agreement to be entered into by the Company with 
Mr. Sanjay S. Math subject to necessary approvals, sanctions, or permissions.

The Board, in pursuance of powers conferred on it under clause 3 of the Agreement dated 4th 
February, 2012 formerly executed by the Company with Mr. Sanjay Math, has also proposed to 
terminate the current terms of appointment of Mr. Sanjay S. Math, Whole-time Director designated 
as Director (Operations) on 30th November, 2016 instead of 3rd February, 2017.

The main terms and conditions of the draft Agreement to be entered into by the Company with Mr. 
Sanjay S. Math are as under:

A. 

 From 1st December, 2016 to 30th November, 2021.

B. Remuneration

 The Company shall pay to Mr. Sanjay S. Math in consideration of his duties a basic salary 
as under in the scale of ` 3.00 lakhs to ` 10.00 lakhs per month with annual increment as 
may be decided by the Board and/ or Nomination and Remuneration Committee within 
abovementioned scale:

 Basic salary for the period beginning on 1st December, 2016 ` 3,05,940/- per month.

C. Commission

 Commission as such percentage of the net pro ts of the Company computed in the manner 
laid down under section 198 of the Act or such amount as the Board may determine subject 
to a minimum commission being equivalent to the annual salary.

D. 

 In addition to the Salary and Commission as stated above, Mr. Sanjay S. Math shall be 
entitled to the following allowances / perquisites as per policy.

i. House Rent Allowance- 30  of basic salary per month.

ii. Soft furnishing allowance.

iii. Reimbursement of gas, electricity and water charges or compensatory allowance.

iv. Conveyance allowance as per rules of the Company

v. Bonus/Ex-gratia/Performance Incentive as announced by the Company as per rules.

vi. Medical allowance including reimbursement as per the rules of the Company.

vii. Club fees: Subject to a maximum of two club including admission and life membership 
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fees.

viii. Leave with full pay and all allowances as per the rules of the Company.

ix. Yearly encashment of leave during the tenure of employment as per the rules of the 
Company.  

x. Leave Travel Concession as per the rules of the Company.

xi. Personal Accident Insurance as per the rules of the Company.

xii. Company’s contribution to provident fund, superannuation fund and gratuity fund or 
payment in lieu of the said bene ts as per the rules of the Company.

xiii. Provision of motor car as per rules of the Company.

xiv. Reimbursement of driver salary as per policy of the Company.

xv. Telephone: Free landline facility at residence and mobile phone facility that is to say all 
charges including rentals, call and internet charges etc. shall be paid by the company 
in full. Personal long distance calls to be billed by the Company to Mr. Sanjay S. Math

xvi. Retirement and other bene ts, as per rules of the Company.

E. Minimum Remuneration

i. In the event of inadequate pro ts or no pro ts in any nancial year during the tenure 
of the Agreement, the salary mentioned in paragraph B and allowances/ perquisites 
mentioned in D above, shall be the minimum remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjay S. 
Math subject to necessary approvals and other applicable provisions of the Act.

F. 

i. Mr. Sanjay S. Math will be entrusted with substantial powers of management and shall 
work under the superintendence, control and direction of the Board. He shall have the 
powers of general conduct and management of business and affairs of the Company 
except in the matters which may be speci cally required to be done by the Board 
either by the Act or by the Articles of Association of the Company.

ii. During his employment with the Company, Mr. Sanjay S. Math shall devote such time 
and attention to the business and affairs of the Company as may be necessary and 
shall use his best endeavors to promote its interest and welfare.

iii. Mr. Sanjay S. Math, so long as he functions as Managing Director shall not be paid 
any sitting fees for attending the meetings of the Board or of any Committees thereof.

iv. Mr. Sanjay S. Math would be ceased to be director, ipso facto, on the employment with 
the Company getting terminated. 

v. Either party shall be entitled to determine the Agreement by giving to the other advance 
notice of three (3) months or by giving in cash/ cheque the basic salary for three (3) 
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months in lieu of the notice.

 The aforesaid may be treated as details of the terms and conditions of the reappointment 
and remuneration, including revision thereof, payable to Mr. Sanjay S. Math as Managing 
Director of the Company pursuant to Section 196 of the Act. 

 The additional information on Managing Director recommended for reappointment required 
under Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 is given in the page no.170 of this report.

 The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item no.8 for approval of the Members.

 None of the directors except Mr. Sanjay S. Math or key managerial personnel of the Company 
and their relatives are concerned or interested, nancially or otherwise, in the resolution set 
out at Item no. 8.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Finolex Industries Limited

Umesh M. Gosavi 
Place : Pune General Manager (Legal)  
Date : 21st May, 2016 Company Secretary
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Additional information on directors recommended for reappointment required under Regulation 
36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria

(a) 

 Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria, Executive Chairman, age 53 years is a Whole-time Director since 
March, 1992. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria is B.Sc. in International Business from University 
of Evansville, USA and has completed Advanced Management Programme from Wharton 
Business School, USA. Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria is a well-known industrialist.    

(b) 

 Expert in international business and general management.

(c) 

 Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria is part of promoters’ group and related to Mrs. Ritu P. Chhabria, 
Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company.

(d) 

 Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria does not hold directorship of any other listed entities. The details 
of the committee positions held by him in this Company are given on page no.72.

(e) Shareholding in the Company.
 Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria holds 1,70,749 equity shares of the Company.
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Mr. Sanjay S. Math

(a) 

 Mr. Sanjay S. Math age 60 years is B.E. (Chemicals), UDCT and PGDM, Mumbai. He is 
a member of American Institute of Chemical Engineering. He has to his credit 40 years of 
rich working experience in various projects and petrochemical plant operations. He has 
worked in reputed organizations like NOCIL, Bombay Dyeing, Rama Petrochemicals, Saudi 
Yanbu Petrochemicals, Essar Re nery etc. Mr. Math has earlier worked with the Company 
at Ratnagiri from December 2004 to uly 2008 as Director (Manufacturing). 

(b) 

 Expertise in Chemical and Petrochemical eld and general business administration.

(c) 

 None of the directors are related to Mr. Sanjay S. Math.

(d) 

 Mr. Sanjay S. Math does not hold any directorship except in this Company and also he does 
not hold any membership of the Committee of the Board in any listed company.

(e) Shareholding in the Company.
 Mr. Sanjay S. Math holds 3,000 equity shares of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Finolex Industries Limited

Umesh M. Gosavi 
Place : Pune General Manager (Legal)  
Date : 21st May, 2016 Company Secretary
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(` in lakhs)
2015/16 

Consolidated
2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT DATA
Gross Revenue  2,85,223.52  2,85,316.22  2,84,733.18  2,83,033.11  2,46,679.52  2,35,240.36 
Materials and manufacturing cost 
(including excise duty )

 2,21,555.44  2,21,555.44  2,40,354.06  2,21,614.56  1,89,783.07  1,93,266.37 

Personnel expenses  9,340.38  9,340.38  7,396.87  7,171.24  7,191.05  5,640.78 
Administration and selling expenses  10,549.61  10,549.61  15,999.67  17,194.77  20,103.21  11,611.66 
Finance charges  4,464.34  4,464.34  7,037.10  6,637.17  5,144.89  7,496.07 
Depreciation  5,057.36  5,057.36  5,867.42  6,229.18  5,441.64  7,551.28 
(Loss) / Pro t before tax  34,256.39  34,349.09  8,078.06  24,186.19  19,015.64  9,674.21 
Share of pro t of Associate  628.24 - - - - -
Taxation  10,989.68  10,989.68  3,300.23  7,171.53  5,401.95  2,159.08 
(Loss) / Pro t after tax  23,894.95  23,359.41  4,777.83  17,014.66  13,613.69  7,515.13 
Dividend ( including tax on dividend if 
applicable )

 14,935.82  14,935.82  2,978.14  10,162.97  7,932.65  4,326.80 

BALANCE SHEET DATA
Share capital  12,409.54  12,409.54  12,409.54  12,409.54  12,408.68  12,408.68 
Reserves and surplus  87,016.88  83,371.84  66,330.45  66,559.33  59,707.59  53,802.24 
Net worth  99,426.42  95,781.38  78,739.99  78,968.87  72,116.27  66,210.92 
Deferred tax ( net )  11,800.68  11,800.68  11,077.75  10,632.53  9,363.58  8,985.55 
Long term Loans  -    -    18,365.80  23,220.87  13,970.87  18,956.07 
Short term Loans  11,171.20  11,171.20  40,340.14  42,371.22  57,092.20  82,288.35 
Total liabilities  1,22,398.30  1,18,753.26  1,48,523.68  1,55,193.49  1,52,542.92  1,76,440.89 
Gross block  1,92,268.92  1,92,268.92  1,89,393.63  1,84,996.56  1,77,099.66  1,62,553.92 
Net block (including CWIP)  85,626.14  85,626.14  87,816.30  93,768.00  93,013.17  86,937.35 
Investments  15,683.23  12,038.18  12,461.09  12,740.40  12,740.40  12,208.56 
Net current assets  21,088.93  21,088.94  48,246.29  48,685.09  46,789.35  77,294.98 
Total assets  1,22,398.30  1,18,753.26  1,48,523.68  1,55,193.49  1,52,542.92  1,76,440.89 

KEY RATIOS
Return on net worth ( % )  24.03  24.39  6.07 21.55 18.88 11.35
Earnings per share (`)  19.26  18.82  3.85 13.71 10.97 6.06
Long term debt to equity  -    -    0.23 0.29 0.19 0.29
Dividend payout ( % ) 62.51 63.94 62.33 59.73 58.27 57.57
Interest coverage 8.81 8.69 2.15 4.64 4.70 2.29
Book value per share 80.12 77.18 63.45 63.64 58.11 53.35
Note: As a result of change in the Schedule VI format, the gures of the nancial years 2011-12 and 2012-13, pertaining to Long & short term loans, 
investments and net current assets are not comparable with the other nancial years.
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Form No. MGT-11

Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

CIN: L40108PN1981PLC024153

Name of the Company: 

Registered of ce: Gat No.399, Urse, Taluka Maval, District Pune 410506.
Tel No.02114-237251 Fax No.02114-237252.
Email: investors nolexind.com Website: www. nolexwater.com

Name of the member(s) :

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No./DPID & Client Id:

I/We, being the member(s) of  shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:

1 Name :

Address:

E-mail address:                    
                                 or failing him

2 Name :

Address:

E-mail address:
                                 or failing him

3 Name :

Address:

E-mail address:

                                 or failing him
as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the thirty-
fth annual general meeting of the Company, to be held on the Thursday, 11th August, 2016 at 

10.00 a.m. at irloskar Institute of Advanced Management Studies, Gat No.356  357, Near Tata 
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Foundry Maval, Village Dhamane, Taluka Maval, District Pune 410 506 and at any adjournment 
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Ordinary business

1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited nancial statements (including the consolidated nancial statements) of the 
Company for the nancial year ended 31st March, 2016 together with the reports of the directors’ and the auditors’

2 To declare nal dividend on equity shares for the nancial year ended 31st March, 2016.

3 To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sanjay S.Math (DIN 01874086), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment. 

4 To rati es the appointment of M/s. P. G. Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.101118W), as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold of ce from the conclusion of this annual general meeting until the conclusion of the annual 
general meeting to be held in the nancial year 2017-18 on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board 
of Directors (the “Board”) and the Statutory Auditors

Special business

5 To ratify a consolidated remuneration of ` 4,00,000/- plus service tax, as applicable and out of pocket expenses payable to 
M/s. S. R. Bhargave & Co., Cost Accountants who have been appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company for the 
audit of the cost records of the Company for the nancial year ending 31st March, 2017.

6 To give approval for making offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to secured Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCD”) on a private 
placement basis in one or more tranches during a period of one year from the date of passing of this resolution within the 
overall borrowing limits of the Company, as approved by the members, from time to time.

7 To give approval for re-appointment of Mr. Prakash P. Chhabria (DIN 00016017) as Whole-time Director designated as 
Executive Chairman and remuneration payable to him with effect from 1st December, 2016.

8 To give approval for re-appointment of Mr. Sanjay S. Math (DIN 01874086) as Managing Director who shall be Whole-time 
Director and remuneration payable to him with effect from 1st December, 2016.

Signed this  day of  2016

 

Af x 
Revenue 
Stamp of  

fteen  
paise

Signature of shareholder  Signature of Proxy

Notes:
1.  This form  of proxy in order to be  effective should  be  duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Of ce  of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
meeting.

2.   For the  resolutions,  explanatory statement  and  notes  please refer   notice  of  35th  annual   
general meeting.
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Registered Of ce : Gat No.399, Urse, Taluka Maval, 
District Pune 410 506, Maharashtra, India 

CIN :L40108PN1981PLC024153 
Tel No.02114-237251, Fax No.02114-237252 

E-mail: investors nolexind.com 
Website: www. nolexwater.com 

BALLOT FORM

1 Name

Registered Address of the sole/ rst named shareholder

2 Name of the joint shareholder(s), if any.

3 Registered folio/DPID & Client ID No

4 No of shares held

I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the resolutions to be  passed for the business 
stated in the notice of thirty- fth annual general meeting of the Company to be  held on Thursday, 
11th August, 2016  by  sending my /our assent or dissent to the said resolution(s) by placing the 
( ) marks at the appropriate box  below:

Item 
No

Description No of equity 
shares held

I/We assent to 
the resolution 

(For)

I/We dissent to 
the resolution 

(Against)
1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited nancial statements 

(including the consolidated nancial statements) of the Company for 
the nancial year ended 31st March, 2016 together with the reports of 
the directors’ and the auditors’.

2 To declare nal dividend on equity shares for the nancial year ended 
31st March, 2016.

3 To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sanjay S.Math (DIN 01874086), 
who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. 

4 To rati es the appointment of M/s. P. G. Bhagwat, Chartered 
Accountants (Firm Registration No.101118W), as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold of ce from the conclusion of this 
annual general meeting until the conclusion of the annual general 
meeting to be held in the nancial year 2017-18 on such remuneration 
as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors (the 
“Board”) and the Statutory Auditors.
Special Business

5 To ratify a consolidated remuneration of ` 4,00,000/- plus service 
tax, as applicable and out of pocket expenses payable to M/s. S. R. 
Bhargave & Co., Cost Accountants who have been appointed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company for the audit of the cost records of 
the Company for the nancial year ending 31st March, 2017.
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6 To give approval for making offer(s) or invitation(s) to subscribe to 
secured Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCD”) on a private placement 
basis in one or more tranches during a period of one year from the 
date of passing of this resolution within the overall borrowing limits of 
the Company, as approved by the members, from time to time.

7 To give approval for re-appointment of Mr.Prakash P. Chhabria 
(DIN 00016017) as Whole-time Director designated as Executive 
Chairman and remuneration payable to him with effect from 1st 
December, 2016.

8 To give approval for re-appointment of Mr. Sanjay S. Math (DIN 
01874086) as Managing Director who shall be Whole-time Director 
and remuneration payable to him with effect from 1st December, 
2016.

Place:

Date :
Signature of shareholder

1.   Members  may  ll  up the  ballot  form  and submit the same in  a sealed envelope to   
the Scrutinizer, Mr. Sridhar G. Mudaliar, Partner, SVD  Associates, Company Secretaries, 
at Finolex Industries  Limited,  D 1/10,  MIDC, Chinchwad,  Pune  411019  so as  to   reach  by  
5.00  p.m.  on Wednesday, 10thAugust, 2016.  Ballot form received  thereafter will strictly be 
treated  as if not received.

2.   The Company will  not  be responsible if  the  envelope containing the  ballot  form  is   lost  
in transit.

3.  Unsigned, incomplete or incorrectly ticked forms  are liable to be rejected  and the  decision 
of  the Scrutinizer  on the validity of  the forms will be  nal.

4.   In the event member casts his votes through  both the processes  i.e.  e -voting and ballot 
form,  the votes in the electronic  system would be considered and the ballot form would be 
ignored.

5.  There  will be  only  one ballot form for every Folio/DP ID Client  ID irrespective  of  the 
number of  joint members.

6. In case of  joint holders, the ballot form should be signed  by  the rst named  shareholder,and 
in his/her  absence by the next named  shareholders.

7.   Where  the  ballot  form   has  been   signed   by   an  authorized representative  of   the   
body corporate/Trust/Society,   etc. a certi ed   copy  of    the  relevant   authorization/Board 
resolution to vote should accompany  the ballot form.

8.  For the resolutions, explanatory statement and instructions for e-voting procedure  please 
refer  notice  of the 35th  annual  general meeting  of the Company.
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Registered Of ce : Gat No.399, Urse, Taluka Maval, 
District Pune 410 506, Maharashtra, India 

CIN :L40108PN1981PLC024153 
Tel No.02114-237251, Fax No.02114-237252 

E-mail: investors nolexind.com 
Website: www. nolexwater.com

35th Annual General Meeting – 11th August, 2016

ATTENDENCE SLIP 
(To be handed over at the entrance of the venue of the meeting)

Folio No.

DP ID No. & Client Id No.

Member’s Name 
(In block letter)

No of shares held

Proxy’s Name (In block letter) 

I hereby record  my presence at the 35th Annual General Meeting held  at irloskar Institute of 
Advanced Management Studies, Gat No.356  357, Near Tata Foundry, Maval Village Dhamane, 
Taluka Maval, District Pune 410 506 on Thursday, 11th August, 2016 at 10.00 a.m. 

 Member’s / Proxy’s Signature 

Notes:
1. Interested joint members may obtain attendance slips from the Registered Of ce of 

the Company.

2. Members/joint members/proxies are requested to bring  the attendance slips with 
them. Duplicate slips  will not be issued at the entrance of the meeting hall. 
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